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Since 1972, Amreli Steels has strengthened the foundations 
of countless projects across Pakistan. The company has 
de�ned standards, de�ed expectations and achieved 
milestones after milestones that have helped shape the local 
steel landscape. However, none of these great successes 
would have been possible without our dedicated workforce. 
These heroes have positioned Amreli Steels as the largest 
selling brand of steel bars. Their commitment and conviction 
is our real strength and Amreli Steels pays tribute to the 
gems of our unshakeable foundation.



PUSHING 
THE LIMITS 
OF PASSION
Our aim at Amreli Steels is to raise 
the standard of quality by providing 
the most superior steel products to 
our clients. For this, we use the 
most technologically advanced 
manufacturing equipment 
available to us in the steel industry.



ON THE 
BRINK OF 
GREATNESS
At Amreli Steels, state-of-the-art 
technology has led us to an increased 
level of production. The installation of 
Direct Hot Charging Technology will 
amplify the production of steels bars. 
We also intend to introduce Multi Slit 
Rolling Technology which will result 
in a massive boost to our annual 
capacity.



BOILING IN 
THE HEAT OF 
COMMITMENT
Pakistan is a country with diverse and 
speci�c construction needs. Amreli 
Steels is committed to launch steel 
bars in various sizes to cater to all 
construction requirements. We will 
also introduce new grades of steel in 
accordance with international 
standards, to meet the requirements 
for construction in high earthquake 
risk regions of Pakistan.
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Vision

Mission

We are committed to setup integrated steel 
manufacturing facilities, value-added 
services and other diversi�ed businesses 
with the employment of best human 
resources and systems implementation. We 
aim to achieve a high pro�table growth 
rate, create value for our shareholders and 
customers, and to look after the well-being 
of our employees and their families.

Amreli Steels Limited exists to carry forward 
its legacy in maintaining its dominant 
position in trade and industry by being 
socially compliant and contributing to the 
well-being of shareholders and employees.
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Amreli Steels Limited was incorporated in 1984 as a private limited 
company and converted into a public unquoted company in 
2009. The Company enlisted on Pakistan Stock Exchange in 
December 2015, and is mainly engaged in manufacturing and 
sale of steel bars and billets.

We are one of the largest manufacturers of Steel Reinforcement 
Bars in Pakistan. Situated in the industrial hub of Karachi, our plant 
uses one of the most modern hot re-rolling mill technologies in 
the industry and is currently capable of producing 180,000 metric 
tons of rebars per year. Our Steel Melt Shop plant in Dhabeji is the 
largest in Pakistan boasting a billet manufacturing capacity of 
200,000 metric tons per year.

To bridge the supply-demand gap of Pakistan's steel industry, our 
ambitious expansion plan have been in action since 2015 and will 
continue through 2019. These plans will increase our rebar 
manufacturing capacity to 750,000 metric tons and billet 
manufacturing capacity to 600,000 tons.

At Amreli, we have created a strong culture based on values that 
have been a part of our long tradition. The hallmark of our success 
is our reputation as a company that generates and supports 
exceptional levels of opportunity, initiative and goodwill.

During the past two decades, Amreli Steels has achieved many 
milestones that have contributed to its success today. It is our 
belief of using the most sophisticated technologies, our strategic 
partnerships with the world’s most prominent re-rolling mill 
manufacturers and investment in the best talent that has enabled 
Amreli Steels to become and remain the largest selling brand of 
steel bars in Pakistan.

Company Pro�le



The Amreli family has been in the business of steel 
manufacturing for over 50 years. The founders of Amreli 
Steels (ASL) came to Karachi in 1946 from a small town 
called Amreli in India, and established themselves in 
Karachi dealing with nails, screws, wires and other 
hardware items. They then started manufacturing nails, 
rivets, screws and wires drawn from wire-rod. 

During the 70’s, the sponsors established a number of hot 
rolling mills to produce steel bars, angles, T-iron and also 
started ship-breaking operations in 1973 for using ship 
plates to roll into bars under the umbrella of Amreliwala 
Hardware Industries. From 1973 onwards, the younger 
generation started entering the business after acquiring 
higher education and experience from world class 
universities & steel companies in various �elds of 
engineering and management.

By the early 80’s and with the advent of strong increase in 
the demand for quality steels, the sponsors scrapped all its 
manual re-rolling mills and imported a semi-automatic 
mill from the United Kingdom, manufactured by Danieli - 
Italy, one of the world’s top manufacturers of steel 
equipment. In 1984, the sponsors converted Amreliwala 
Hardware Industries into a Private Limited Company. 

In 1989, ASL became the �rst company to introduce the 
concept of deformed steel bars in Pakistan. In 1993, (ASL) 
produced 50,000 metric tons of steel bars for the �rst time 
in Pakistan’s history using European technology.

The ASL’s conviction in using the most modern re-rolling 
technology available in the world resulted in the company 
installing a continuous mill train in 2007, which increased 
the production capacity of the plant from 75,000 metric 
tons per annum to 180,000 metric tons per annum. ASL was 
once again the �rst company to have a capacity of this size. 

In 2008, ASL introduced Thermo Mechanical Treatment 
technology in Pakistan for the �rst time which resulted in 
high strength deformed bars being produced in the 
country. This was yet another milestone in the ASL’s 
history. 

Moving ahead with technological advancements, in 2009 
Amreli added another feather to its cap by introducing 
earthquake resistant rebars in Pakistan. 

Since its inception, ASL has managed to build its 
reputation as one of the most trusted and reliable 
manufacturers of steel reinforcement bars in Pakistan. Not 
only does the company take pride in it being the largest 
steel bar manufacturer in the country, but the Amreli 
Steels brand has become synonymous with quality, 
strength and durability, making it the preferred choice of 
industry professionals today. ASL is a dynamic and a 

mission-driven company that believes in strict adherence 
to its corporate values and code of ethics.

Today, ASL is the backbone that supports some of the 
mega structures of Pakistan including famous landmarks, 
airports, infrastructures and other residential projects. 
Jinnah International Airport, Allama Iqbal International 
Airport, Aga Khan University and Hospital, MCB Tower, 
Ghazi Barotha Dam and the Northern Bypass are just a few 
of many remarkable structures whose foundations were 
laid with ASL’s rebars and they continue to stand tall with 
pride as integral monuments adding value to the skylines 
of this nation. 

The product portfolio includes high strength deformed 
bars as per American and British speci�cations. A high 
degree of automation enables materials to remain 
untouched from the input stage of being fed into the 
reheating furnace upto the �nal bundling stage.

ASL products were earlier manufactured from prime 
quality steel billets which were procured from Pakistan 
Steel Mills Limited (PSML). Since procurement from PSML 
did not ful�ll the company’s total raw material demand, 
steel billets were also imported from di�erent countries. 
The management then decided to install a state-of-the-art 
Steel Melt Shop (SMS) enabling continuous supply of raw 
material and ensuring quality output for its products. It 
was with this objective that the management set up a SMS 
on 32 acres located in Dhabeji, 20 kms from Port Qasim. It 
was the �rst Melt Shop in Pakistan having a capacity to 
produce 200,000 tons of high quality billets. 

The SMS comprises of two induction furnaces, one Ladle 
Re�ning Furnace and a two-strand continuous billet 
casting machine. ASL has spent approximately US$ 40 
million on the project and commercial production of the 
plant commenced on October 1st, 2011.

Self-dependency of the company in its raw material 
further enhanced its ability to produce the best quality 
product at an a�ordable price. The SMS also provides the 
�exibility to produce the quality and lengths of billets as 
per the rolling mill requirements. The management’s 
vision for the future is to produce low alloy steel for the 
automotive industry in the coming years.

Being a trail blazer in Pakistan’s steel industry, ASL is one of 
the few vertically integrated steel bars manufacturers, 
giving it the liberty to ensure strict compliance with 
international standards. The Company’s billet 
manufacturing plant is installed with cutting edge 
technology and is the largest in the country in terms of 
capacity. Continuously upgrading its manufacturing 
process, ASL’s fully automated manufacturing

plant is a pioneer in producing 500 MPA High Strength 
Deformed Bars Xtreme® G-500 and ASTM Deformed bars – 
Grade 60, which are the mainstay of worldwide 
construction today. 

The Company got listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange on 01 
December 2015. The raising of funds to meet its capital 
requirement through IPO was a great success story for 
your Company. The investors from secondary market 
reposed great con�dence on ASL by subscribing to its 
fresh equity o�er of 74,252,857 new shares at a rate of PKR 
51 per share. The fresh issue of Rs.3,786,895,707 was made 
through the Book Building process at a Strike Price of PKR 
51 per share (including a premium of PKR 41 per share) 
whereby 74.75% of the total issue size i.e. 55,502,857 
ordinary shares were issued through the Book Building 
process to Eligible Investors. The balance 25.25% of the 
total issue size i.e. 18,750,000 ordinary shares were issued 
to the general public through the retail o�er at the strike 
price determined through the Book Building process.

A few of the reasons why ASL prides itself in being in the 
league of ace steel reinforcement bar manufacturers 
internationally are:

• Continuous and stringent testing of �nished 
product to check for uniformity and accuracy in 
dimensions.

• Steel bars manufactured by ASL are consistent in 
weight, and therefore add to the reliability of a 
structure.

• Tension Free Rolling keeps the construction of the 
bars accurate and straight.

• ISO 9001:2008 and PSQCA certi�cation. 

• Conformity of products with the British and 
American standards.

With its priceless contribution to the nation’s 
infrastructure, ASL has become a household name in 
Pakistan’s construction industry. Over the past few 
decades, the ASL has achieved many a milestone with 
continuously striving to evolve dynamically and ethically, 
always keeping stakeholder value and interests in 
perspective. 
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Journey of Success 

1972

1984

1987

1989

1993

2007

2008

2011

2015

2017

 Inception

Imported 
state-of-the-art 

manufacturing plant 
from Europe

Re-rolling mill 
commissioned

Increased 
capacity to 

produce 60,000 
tons annually

Thermo Mechanical 
Treatment (TMT) 
plant technology 

introduced in 
Pakistan

Got listed in 
Pakistan Stock 

Exchange

The journey 
continues

Inaugurated billet 
plant with 

200,000 tons 
capacity

Grade 60-Rebars 
introduced

Modernised 
plant to produce 

180,000 tons 
annually
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Ms. Kinza Shayan
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Chairman

Mr. Badar Kazmi
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Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited 

ASTL
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The objectives and development of Amreli Steels Limited (ASL) are aimed at achieving sustainable productivity and 
pro�tability and high standards of safety, occupational health and environmental care. This entails human resource 
develpoment, value addition, implementation of conservation measures, upgradation of existing facilities and installation 
of new facilities.

The key objectives of ASL’s management is to sustain market leadership in Pakistan’s steel industry and increase value for 
all the stakeholders. All the corporate goals are targeted towards this purpose and the key performance indicators are 
de�ned to measure in ASL’s improved performance in all spheres of its operations.

ASL takes organization-wide steps involving all the employees from top to bottom to formalize SOPs (Standard Operating 
Procedures) and sets individual KPIs (Key Performance Indicators) aligned with these broader corporate goals, making 
every employee a self-assessor with de�ned yearly targets and transparent measuring criteria. Furthermore, ASL also 
re�ned and improve its human resource policies. ASL’s �nancial performance and market leadership is a re�ection of 
achievement of its corporate goals through all around strategic alignment.

Some of the most signi�cant objectives of the Company are outlined as under:

• Ensure that business policies and targets are in conformity with the national goals; 

• Contribute in meeting the country’s demand of steel products; 

• Ensure customer’s satisfaction by providing best value and quality products; 

• Achieve and maintain a high standard of Occupational Health, Safety and Environmental Care; 

• Ensure reasonable return on the shareholders’ existing and projected investments; 

• Maintain modern management systems conforming to international standards needed for an 
e�cient organization. 

Management Objectives & Development Strategy



Board Of Directors

Mr. Shayan Akberali 
Chief Executive O�cer

Mr. Abbas Akberali 
Chairman
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Badar Kazmi
Independent 
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Teizoon Kisat 
Independent 
Non-Executive Director

Ms. Mariam Akberali
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Zafar Ahmed Taji
Independent 
Non-Executive Director

Ms. Kinza Shayan  
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Abbas Akberali founded Amreli 
Steels in 1972 and since then has 
led the company to see it become 
the largest and most well-known 
steel bar manufacturer in Pakistan. 
Mr. Akberali brings unparalleled 
experience with a metallurgical 
engineering background 
combined with an MBA from 
Columbia University, NY. He has 
played an in�uential role in driving 
reforms aimed towards the growth 
of Pakistan’s steel industry. With a 
passion for educating Pakistan, Mr. 
Akberali is also a founding member 
of The Hunar Foundation and 
serves on the Board of other 
notable non-pro�t organizations.

Mr. Shayan Akberali joined Amreli 
Steels in 2002 after completing a 
Bachelor’s Degree in Electrical  
Engineering from Northwestern 
University, USA and working for 
Lehman Brothers in New York. 
Over the past decade, he has 
played an integral role in 
expanding the company by 
overseeing production 
enhancement, technical 
development and planning. He  
was instrumental in expanding 
the annual output from 60,000 
tons to 180,000 tons per year and 
is leading the current expansion 
project to triple capacity up to 
625,000 tons per annum. Mr. 
Shayan has built a strong team of 
professionals that brings 
functional expertise as well as 
leadership to steer the company 
towards higher growth.

Mr. Kazmi brings an experience 
spanning over 34 years including 
almost all facets of the banking 
industry in Pakistan, Middle East, 
South Asia and Africa. He started 
his career with BCCI in 1980 and 
worked for 11 years in Pakistan and 
the Middle Eastern Region. 

Mr. Kazmi then joined Standard 
Chartered Group (SCB) in 1991 and 
held various positions including 
Regional Head of Global Markets 
for MESA (Middle East and South 
Asia) and Africa. In 2003, he was 
appointed as the CEO of SCB 
Pakistan, a position he held till late 
2010. In recognition for his services 
to banking in Pakistan, Mr. Kazmi 
was awarded the ‘Sitara-e-Imtiaz’ by 
the President of Pakistan. 

Mr. Taji started his career 
in 1971 after completing 
an MBA from IBA Karachi. 
Since then, he has spent 
35 years with 
multinationals like Exxon 
Corp, Union Carbide of 
USA, British American 
Tobacco/Pakistan Tobacco 
and Interloop. Mr. Taji is 
also a Certi�ed Corporate 
Governance professional 
from IFC/PICG. Presently 
he is a Special Advisor to 
Directors of Sapphire 
Fibers. He has the honor 
of being a member of 
Prime Minister Pay and 
Pension Commission, 
Advisor to NAB for 
developing and 
implementing its Change 
Management 
Programme, Advisor to 
Pakistan Air and the HR 
Advisor to PCB for a 
number of years. He has 
also served as Dean of 
Riphah University and 
Director General of NUST 
Business School.

Mr. Teizoon Kisat is a Fellow 
Member of Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan since 1986. He is also 
Associate Member of the 
Institute of Chartered 
Secretaries and Institute of 
Taxation & Management. Mr. 
Kisat possesses strong business 
and leadership record and has a 
deep understanding of 
business and �nancial sector of 
the country. He joined the 
leasing industry of Pakistan and 
has held many senior 
management positions in 
multiple business areas. He has 
more than 30 years of 
experience. During his 
association of 15 years with 
ORIX Leasing Pakistan Limited 
(OLP), he spearheaded many 
initiatives that demonstrated 
his leadership, problem solving 
skills and ability to manage 
build a strong team. He held 
senior positions including 
CEO/MD at OLP. Mr. Kisat was 
also recognised amongst best 
100 performing Chief 
Executives of Pakistan.

Ms. Shayan is a graduate 
in Management Sciences 
from SZABIST and is 
presently pursuing a 
diploma in Sports 
Nutrition. She is a 
respected writer for 
various publications, 
known for her expertise 
on �tness and nutrition. 
She is currently gearing 
up to start her own 
business in the �eld of 
Health Sciences.

Ms. Akberali brings great 
diversity to the board 
with signi�cant 
experience in the food, 
restaurant, mental health, 
and education sectors of 
Pakistan. She has earned a 
degree in Psychology 
from Franklin & Marshall 
College, USA and is 
passionate about social 
entrepreneurship in 
Pakistan.
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The Management Team
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Bottom Row, Left to Right
Asif Zahoor
Head of Human Resource 

Hadi Akberali
COO Strategy 

Fazal Ahmed
COO Operations and CFO 

Shayan Akberali
CEO

Noman Sajjad
Head of Plant and Projects – Dhabeji

Top Row, Left to Right 

Latif Bhano
Head of Plant – Dhabeji Steel Melt Shop 

Nasir Ali
Head of Security and Vigilance 

Hammad Ali
Head of Plant – Dhabeji Rolling Mill 

Shahab Qaiser
Head of Logistics

Ansar Rizvi
Head of Plant – D-89 Rolling Mill 

Fraz Ahmed
Head of Internal Audit

Bottom Row, Left to Right
Taha Umer
Senior Manager - Finance 

Syed Javed Asghar
Head of IT 

Anwar Kamal
Director Sales

Zoeb Salemwala
Head of Corporate A�airs 

Ashfaq Vighio
Head of Supply Chain
 

Top Row, Left to Right 
Asghar Rizvi
Head of New Businesses 

Wajid Bukhari
Head of Government & Public Relations 

Mohsin Ali Sadiq
Senior Manager - Marketing

Asif Majeed
Head of Procurement

Muhammad Imran
Senior Manager – Administration
and Industrial Relations

Adnan Abdul Gha�ar
Company Secretary
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Committees to the Board of Directors

Terms of Reference

The purpose of the Committee is to assist the Board of Directors in ful�lling its oversight responsibilities for the �nancial 
reporting process (more particularly, the integrity of company’s �nancial statements), the system of internal control, the 
audit process, disclosure systems and process, and the company’s process for monitoring compliance with laws and 
regulations and the code of conduct of the Company. 

The Audit Committee is, among other things, responsible for recommending to the Board of Directors the appointment of 
external auditors by Company’s shareholders and considers any questions of resignation or removal of external auditors, 
audit fees and provision by external auditors of any service to the Company in addition to audit of its �nancial statements. 

In addition to the generality of Audit Committee functions that embrace all aspects impinging on the well-being of the 
company, shareholder interests, ethical standards, and regulatory requirements, the committee shall perform the 
following speci�c responsibilities: 

i) Financial statements

 The committee shall review quarterly, half yearly 
and annual statements, with particular reference to 
compliance with applicable accounting policies, 
standards and practices. It shall focus on major 
judgmental areas, signi�cant adjustments 
resulting from audit, ‘going concern’ assumption, 
signi�cant related party transactions, and 
compliance with all statutory and regulatory 
requirements. It shall also review preliminary 
announcements of results prior to publication and 
vet the Directors’ report before its submission to 
the Board. 

ii) Internal Controls

 The committee shall review the Company’s 
statement on internal control system before its 
submission to the Board, and satisfy itself as to the 
adequacy and e�ectiveness of internal controls and 
measures to safeguard Company assets. Where 
necessary it shall submit appropriate 
recommendations to the Board. It shall also 
consider major �ndings of internal investigations of 
cases of fraud, embezzlement and abuse of power. 

iii) Internal Audit (IA)

 Whether out-sourced or in-house, the Committee 
will ensure that the function is adequately 
resourced, functionally independent with no 
unreasonable limitations on its proper functioning, 
and meets the quality assurance requirements, 
determined either through internal or external 
assessment. It shall review the audit reports, share 
them with the External Auditors, and report 
matters of signi�cance to the Board. Where it is 
decided to ‘out-source’ the IA function, the 
Committee will recommend to the Board a 
professional services �rm that has suitably 
quali�ed and experienced persons and is 
reasonably conversant with Company policies and 
procedures. It will also provide for the Company’s 
Head of Internal Aduit to act as coordinator 
between the Audit �rm and the Committee and 
the Board.

iv) External Audit

 The committee shall ensure requisite functional 
autonomy to the external auditors, review 
assessment of their quality assurance, and facilitate 
their coordination with Internal Audit. It shall 
review the Management letter, as also discuss with 

 the auditors any major �ndings and observations, 
and where appropriate submit its recommendations 
to the Board. 

v) Risk Management

 The committee shall cause to have installed a 
viable risk management system in the company. At 
least one meeting a year shall be devoted 
exclusively to review assessment of risk and 
measures to avoid, share, mitigate and accept 
residual risks within the overall risk appetite 
determined by the Board. 

vi) Compliance

 The committee shall have a system installed to 
determine, and monitor on a periodic basis, 
compliance with all legal and regulatory 
requirements and ‘best practices’ of corporate 
governance. The CEO shall be personally responsible 

to bring to the immediate notice of the committee, 
�ndings of any examination by regulatory agencies, 
major litigations or claims, or signi�cant tax issues 
for Committee’s review. Further, except where 
directed otherwise by the Board, the Committee 
shall guide, review, and monitor the formulation of 
‘signi�cant policies as de�ned in the Code of 
Corporate Governance’. It shall also examine all 
‘signi�cant issues as de�ned in the Code of 
Corporate Governance’ dealing with controls and 
compliance before their submission to the Board. 

vii) Reporting and Other Responsibilities

 The Chairperson shall keep the Board fully 
informed on all material issues coming within the 
committee’s remit. The committee shall act upon 
such directions as given by the Board, and have 
such studies or investigations carried out as desired 
by the Board, or that the committee itself deems to 
be useful. 

*Mr. Teizoon Kisat was appointed as a member of the Board of Directors as well as a member of the Audit Committee by the Board of 
Directors of the Company in their meeting held on 26 October 2016 to �ll the casual vacancy arose as a result of resignation tendered by 
Mr. Mirza Qamar Beg.

   Meetings Held   Meetings

 08 September 2016 26 October 2016 31 January 2017 19 April 2017 Attended

Mr. Badar Kazmi
(Chairman) • • – – 02

Mr. Teizoon Kisat *
(Member) – – • • 02

Ms. Kinza Shayan
(Member) • • • • 04

Composition
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  Meetings Held  Meetings

 02 July 2016 30 September 2016 09 March 2017 Attended

Mr. Zafar Ahmed Taji
Chairman • •   03

Mr. Badar Kazmi
Member   –   02

Mr. Shayan Akberali
Member • •   03

Ms. Mariam Akberali
Member – – – –

Composition

Human Resource & Remuneration Committee (HR & R Committee)

Terms of Reference

The HR & R Committee is responsible for performing the 
duties set out below as well as any other duties that are 
otherwise required by applicable corporate laws or Stock 
Exchange Rules and requirements as are delegated to the 
Committee by the Board: 

• Recommending human resource management 
policies to the Board;

• Recommending to the Board the selection, 
evaluation, compensation, (including retirement 
bene�ts) and succession planning of the CEO;

• Recommending to the Board the selection, 
evaluation, compensation, (including retirement 
bene�ts) of CEO, CFO, Company Secretary; and 

• Considering and approving on recommendation of 
CEO on such matters for key management 
positions who report directly to CEO; and 

• Reviewing and making recommendations to the 
Board for the appointment of Senior Executives and 
for determining terms of employment of their 
services. 

• Reviewing succession planning and matters of 
compensation as well as such other matters the 
Committee may consider suitable with respect to 
compensation or as may be speci�cally directed by 
the Board of the Company from time to time.

• Any additional matters delegated to the committee 
by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Audit Committee
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Management Committees

Price Setting 
Committee

HRS Committee

Scrap Planning 
Committee

SAP Committee

1) Analysing Demand and Supply

2) Analysing movement in global 
and local scrap prices

3) Analysing change in exchange 
rates

1) Oversee the Company's 
compensation and bene�ts 
policies generally

2) Evaluate employee’s 
performance and review the 
Company's management 
succession plan

3) Hiring and disciplinary action 
policies

4) Assessing departments needs 
of human resource

5) Evaluating overall / function 
wise organogram of the 
company

1) Obtaining sale forecast.

2) Production planning 
maintaining optimum 
inventory level

3) Scrap Procurement planning

1) Design and implementation of 
SAP for new projects

2) Discuss issues faced and their 
solutions

3) Discuss possibilities of 
induction of new modules

Shayan Akberali
Anwer Kamal
Fazal Ahmed

Shayan Akberali
Hadi Akberali
Asif Zahoor
Zoeb Salemwala
Noman Sajjad
Fazal Ahmed
Farid Ahmed

Shayan Akberali
Anwer Kamal
Noman Sajjad
Ansar Rizvi
Rehman Rao
Taha Umer
Fazal Ahmed

Hadi Akberali
Javed Asgher
Fazal Ahmed
Noman Sajjad
Zoeb Salemwala

As and when 
required

Monthly

Monthly

Monthly

CEO
Director Sales
COO & CFO

CEO
COO - Strategy
Head of HR
Head of Corporate A�airs 
Head of Production-Dhabeji
COO - Operation & CFO
Senior Manager HR

CEO
Director Sales
Head of Production-Dhabeji
Head of Rolling Mill
Deputy Manager Procurement
Senior Manager Finance
COO & CFO

COO – Strategy
Chief Information O�cer
COO & CFO
Head of Production-Dhabeji
Head of Corporate A�airs

Management
Committees Functions Frequency Members Designation

Product Protfolio

Amreli Steels manufactures Billets and reinforcement Bars which are widely used in construction industry. 

Amreli Steels rolls its rebars from in-house manufactured prime quality steel billets. We produce the following types of 
rebars as per the American and British quality standards:

1) Billet

 Billet is an intermediary steel product from which reinforcement bars are rolled. Consistency of physical properties 
in rebars comes from the consistency of steel billets which is why Amreli Steels produces its own billets. Amreli 
Steels has the largest billet manufacturing plant in Pakistan with a capacity of producing 200,000 tons of billets. Our 
SMS Plant produces billets in sizes ranging from 100 x 100 mm sq to 200 x 200mm sq that comply to BS 4449, ASTM 
A615, and ASTM A706 international standards. 

2) Reinforcement Bars

 a) G-60 Deformed Steel Bars 

   Amreli Steels’ Grade 60 Deformed Steel bars conform to ASTM A615 (American Standard for Testing and 
Materials) and is available in sizes ranging from 10mm to 40mm.  While we produce rebars in standard 
length of 12 meters, our plant is capable of rolling speci�c lengths as per requirements. Following are some 
key attributes of Amreli Steels’ Grade 60 Deformed Steel bars:

  Product Speci�cations:

  •   Yield Strength: 420 MPA (min) [60,000 psi]

  •   Ultimate Tensile Strength: 620 MPA (min) [90,000 psi]

  •   Elongation [%]: 9% (min)

 b) Xtreme Bars G-500W

   Xtreme G-500 is an ace of modern construction and is commonly used in the construction of high-rise 
construction and mega structures. The imposing skylines of mega cities like Dubai, Singapore, Kuala- 
Lumpur and Bangkok bear testimony to the popularity of 500 MPA bars. Amreli Steels was the �rst brand to 
introduce G-500W in Pakistani market which is based on British Standard BS 4449–2005:2009. All bars are 
cut in standard sizes of 12-16 meters. Following are some key attributes of Amreli Steels’ Grade 60 Deformed 
Steel bars:

  Product Speci�cations:

  •   Yield strength: 500 MPA (min) [72,500 psi]

  •   Ultimate Tensile Strength: 575 MPA (min) [83,375 psi]

  •   Elongation [%]: 14% (min)
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The Code of Conduct of the Company de�nes what we stand for and 
believe in, documenting the uncompromisingly high ethical standards 
our Company has upheld since its foundation. Strong business ethics 
forms the basis for all of our relationships with employees, customers, 
competitors, suppliers, regulators and colleagues. It is a fundamental 
policy of the Company to conduct its business with honesty, integrity 
and in accordance with the highest ethical, professional and legal 
standards. 

As such sustainability is an integral part of our business strategy and a 
key driver in all of our business activities. Our innovative technologies 
and our operational experience and expertise enable us to minimize 
our environmental impact and successfully manage the social 
challenges and inherent risk that are present in our industry.

Our guiding principles for sustainability are:

I. Maintain highest degree of corporate governance practices;

II. Conduct business activities with the highest principles of 
honesty, integrity, truthfulness and honor; 

III. Promote ethical business practices; 

IV. Respect the environment and communities in which we 
operate;

V. Assure equal employment opportunities; 

VI. Value diversity in the workplace;

VII. Provide healthy and safe working environments; 

VIII. Respect human rights and trade ethically;

IX. Act in utmost good faith and exercise due care, diligence and 
integrity in performing the o�ce duties; 

X. Comply with all applicable laws and regulations;

XI. Ensure that all business transactions are recorded in true, fair 
and timely fashion in accordance with the accounting and 
�nancial reporting standards, as applicable to the Company; 

XII. Deliver superior value for our shareholders − our intent is to 
outperform our competitors by delivering superior growth, 
margins and returns to our shareholders; 

XIII. Lead the industry in innovation, technology development, and 
conscientious stewardship of global resources − our intent is to 
develop technological solutions that give our customers 
economic access to high quality construction material with 
maximum use of scarce resources and maximize the value of 
their existing assets; 

XIV. Enhance the economic and social well-being of our employees, 
their families and the communities in which we operate − our 
intent is to be a preferred employer and make a positive impact 
in the communities where we live and work; 

XV. Be transparent in reporting and validating our progress − our 
intent is to provide our stakeholders with thorough and timely 
information on our progress; 

Sustainability/ 
Guiding Principles



Contributing to the community has been at the core of 
Amreli Steels since its inception. The company has always 
striven to alleviate the disenfranchised and empower the 
impoverished. Backed by a robust policy, Amreli Steels 
actively supports several established NGOs in their causes 
through donations and funding. The management has 
also undertaken several independent initiatives with the 
speci�c aim of reaching the grassroots of society. Our 
e�orts are focused on the areas of education, community 
and healthcare. 

EDUCATION

1) Women Industrial Home

 Women Industrial Home was established by the 
Amreli Foundation in Dhabeji with the aim of 
empowering women through vocational training. 
A class of 50 female students is trained in the skills 
of sewing and stitching at a time. The course is 3 
months long and each graduate is awarded with a 
personal sewing machine upon the completion of 
training. More so, the industrial home has become 
into a community center for women as it is seen as 
the only safe place for women to congregate, learn 
and socialize.

2) The Hunar Foundation

 Our Chairman, Mr. Abbas Akberali, is one of the 
founding members and trustees of The Hunar 
Foundation (THF). THF has grown exponentially in 
size since its beginning in 2008 thanks to its focus 
on highly technical skills and state-of-the-art 
learning environment. It currently has a network of 
6 campuses; a number which will increase to 8 by 
the end of 2017. Amreli Steels continues to support 
THF annually through funding and has committed 
funds for a purpose built institute. 

3) The Citizens Foundation

 The Citizens Foundation (TCF) is considered to be 
one of Pakistan’s leading organizations in the �eld 
of education for the less privileged. Being a strong 
proponent of education for the youth, the Akberali 
Family funded a campus in TCF’s Achar Salar, 
Dhabeji, Sindh Campus in 2010. The campus 
continues to provide classroom facilities for 142 
students every year. Amreli Steels has covered the 
operational expenses of the campus since its 
erection. As recognition of the contribution, the 
campus was named after the Akberali Family. 

4) Professional Education Forum

 PEF provides �nancial support to underprivileged 
students for their professional education in the 
�elds of engineering, medicine, agriculture, 
management & Information Technology. PEF 
scholarships are supporting the education for over 
1600 students all over Pakistan. Amreli Steels has 
sponsored the professional education of ten 
students for the year in 2016-17. 

COMMUNITY

1) Khana Ghar

 Khana Ghar strives to provide food at an a�ordable 
price to the needy. Parveen Saeed, who was 
dubbed as the 3 Rupee lady by international media 
because the food she o�ers is PKR 3 per head, has 
been running Khana Ghar for more than 15 years. 
The establishment serves 2 square meals to more 
than 4000 people in Karachi every day. Amreli 
Steels has been contributing to Parveen Saeed’s 
noble cause through funding to ensure over 
500,000 meals are served every year 

2) Sirat-ul-Jannah Orphanage

 Sirat-ul-Jannah orphanage is a network of 
orphanages operating in Karachi, Islamabad, 
Muree and Khanewal with the aim of providing a 
home-like environment to needy orphan children. 
In addition to lodging and essentials, educational 
and medical facilities are also being extended to 
these children. Amreli Steels supplies food for the 
135 children in its Karachi orphanage every month. 

HEALTHCARE

1) Civil Hospital Thatta

 According to recent estimates, over 20* million 
people su�er from Kidney Problems in Pakistan. 
This problem is further complicated by the high 
cost of procedures that detracts the majority of our 
population. The Civil Hospital in Thatta caters to an 
average of 10 to 12 dialysis patients daily with the 
help of eight machines in its Kidney Center. Amreli 
Steels �nanced the dialysis treatment of 100 
patients in 2017. 

*Figure published in the report “20m facing kidney disease in 
Pakistan” of The Nation printed on March 20th, 2017.

Corporate Social Responsibilty
Serving the Community to Strengthen the Nation 
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The Company is committed in developing, promoting and achieving the highest Standard of HSE operations. 

The Company believes to:

• Respond positively to environmental developments by reviewing such issues with the relevant authorities, local 
communities and others.

• Work e�ectively to encourage environment awareness and identify and share best practices and new techniques 
to reduce environmental impact.  

• Minimize emissions and waste by evaluating operations and ensuring they are as e�cient as possible.

• Reduce and where practical, eliminate hazardous and nuisance release to air, water and land.

• To inculcate a sense of responsibility towards the environment among our employees.

• Periodically review the suitability, adequacy and e�ectiveness of the HSE management system.

• Educate, train, encourage and motivate employees to carry out activities in a responsible manner in accordance 
with the requirements of generally accepted OHS & Environmental management system.

• Apply technologies that are not harmful to our employees’ health and are environment friendly.

• Set objectives and targets, key performance indicators and program for occupational health and safety.

• Strive to prevent any accident, and to achieve continual improvement of the H.S.E management system and 
related performance.

• Consult with employees on matters a�ecting their Health and Safety.

Health, Safety and Environment (HSE) 



Amreli Steels Limited Information Technology (IT) Department is devising and implementing IT strategies to support 
orginazation. Its primary objective is to make sure that the ASL Business Strategy can be realized through technology and 
investments that are aligned to business needs.

The whole IT team is geared up to take on new challenges and forge ahead with major technology changes needed by the 
ASL business. IT provide secure, reliable and integrated technology solutions in alignment with the needs and goals 
throughout the orginazation. 

Technology Developments (2016-17):

• IT Governance:

 Amreli Steels Corporate Governance constitutes the accountability framework of an organization. IT and 
Information Security (InfoSec) Governance is an integral part of it. It involves leadership support, organizational 
structure and processes to ensure that an organization’s IT and InfoSec sustains and extends business strategies 
and objectives. Its main purpose is to:

1. Establish, Maintain and Align IT and InfoSec strategy with business goals and objectives.

2. Establish and maintain a framework that guides activities to support IT and InfoSec strategy.

3. Integrate IT and InfoSec governance into corporate governance.

• SAP ERP reports and analytics

 The time of �nancial audit for year 2016-17 had been greatly reduced due to the best business practices and 
controls as well as the speed and e�ciency o�ered by SAP ERP reports and analytics.

• Establishing a Synchronized High Available Disaster Recovery (DR) Site

 A synchronized high available DR site has been established to support Amreli Steels Business Continuity Plan. 

• Cataloging the IT Services

 The IT services o�ered to its stakeholders has been cataloged under the guidelines of Information Technology 
Infrastructure Library (ITIL) to align the services with business needs.

• Revamping IT Infrastructure

 The IT infrastructure at Amreli Steels has been revamped to ensure con�dentiality, integrity and availability of the 
IT services anywhere all the time. 

• Video Conferencing

 Video Conferencing services have been implemented on internal cloud for communication between various 
locations. 

• IT helpdesk

 IT helpdesk has been established to provide ASL users better IT services through ticket management under the 
guidelines of ITIL. 

Information Technology
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When business is disrupted, it can cost money and lost revenues which necessiates extra expenses resulting in reduced 
pro�ts. Amreli Steels has a comprehensive Business Continuity Plan in place which includes activities required to keep the 
organization running during a period of displacement or interruption of normal operations. 

A Business Continuity Plan includes

• Plans, measures and arrangements to ensure the continuous delivery of critical services and products, which 
permits the organization to recover its facility, data and assets.

• Identi�cation of necessary resources to support business continuity, including personnel, information, equipment, 
�nancial allocations, legal counsel, infrastructure protection and accommodations.

Development of a business continuity plan includes four steps

• Conduct a business impact analysis to identify time-sensitive or critical business functions and processes and the 
resources that support them.

• Identify, document, and implement to recover critical business functions and processes.

• Organize a business continuity team and compile a business continuity plan to manage a business disruption.

• Conduct training for the business continuity team and testing and exercises to evaluate recovery strategies and the 
plan.

Due to the advancement of Information Technology, business nowadays depends heavily on IT. Information technology 
includes many components such as networks, servers, desktop and laptop computers and wireless devices. The ability to 
run both o�ce productivity and enterprise software is critical. Therefore, recovery strategies for information technology 
has been developed, with continuous improvements, so technology can be restored in time to meet the needs of the 
business. Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) for manual workarounds are also part of the IT plan so business can 
continue while computer systems are being restored.

All Business Continuity activities are reviewed every year by a Steering Committee as well as by internal and independent 
external auditors to assure the correctness and continuous improvement of the Amreli Steels Business Continuity Plan.

Business Continuity Plan
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Business continuity and growth is a perfect re�ection of succession planning. In pursuit of excellence, a well-articulated 
succession plan was developed after thorough deliberations with all stakeholders. Inputs duly validated by executive 
leadership enabled the organization to identify several positions as critical to the business. Each individual holding 
signi�cant position is discussed and placed under radar and in respective area for further career development. Additional 
discussions were carried out for those who have demonstrated exceptional skills and have potential to grow. Speci�c and 
targeted programs are underway for such high value individuals for further nurturing, coaching and mentoring. ASL 
management is committed to provide young workforce all the rights and possible reasons to stay and contribute in the 
growth of the organization. Building on the same philosophy, Company’s recently launched retirement policy aims at 
providing young talent to take up future leadership roles.  

HR Business Continuity & Growth

Our philosophy of a healthy work-life balance and emphasis on diversity allows us to attract talent beyond physical 
boundaries. Amreli Steels takes pride in attracting, developing and retaining talented individuals who bring out the best 
from our state-of-the-art technologies and dedicate themselves to upholding our business ideals and values. Today, we 
stand tall in the industry owing to invaluable contributions of our human capital. 

Culture of Learning

We believe that talented employees with appropriate potential may also require nurturing and guidance from 
experienced professionals at times. This year, our high performing individuals and teams have been linked to a seasoned 
mentor who has helped them develop further as professionals. Through group discussions and one-on-one sessions, our 
mentor shared his experiences gained over the course of 40 years while working with MNCs and local conglomerates. This 
was carried out on bi-monthly basis throughout the year. 

Beyond our Mentoring Program, our fellow colleagues were regularly sent to relevant trainings (technical / non-technical) 
and cross functional industry exposure carefully selected on a need basis. It is very heartening to see that our investment 
of around 1666 man hours / 208 man days training shows a considerable increase in engagement, e�ciency and 
performance all across. 

Our believe in communicating with our fellow colleagues helps us in bridging communication gaps. Young Amreli Forum 
(YAF) is just a mere re�ection of the same where young engineers are given full opportunity to share and discuss valuable 
inputs and concerns. Lot of new ideas were shared and few are implemented after due consideration from the forum.

Culture of Improvement

In order to benchmark ourselves against the leading companies of Pakistan and to determine how our team members felt 
about working for Amreli Steels, an “employee engagement” exercise was carried out by an independent third party as a 
�rst building block. Periodic “Salary Surveys” are also being carried out in which input is taken from 15 other leading 
industries with somehow similar business nature or business volumes. These surveys are playing a signi�cant role in 
enhancing employee motivation. With the support of the management, detailed action plans have been formulated and 
put into implementation to bridge the identi�ed gaps in our remuneration system. 

Culture of Reward

We are proud of our company’s enabling culture that is based on giving and reciprocating respect, promoting cooperation 
and empowerment. Our team is given all necessary means to achieve the business objectives and limitless opportunities 
to pursue new challenges. 

Our new and improved “Internal Customer Centric - Objective based Management System” is taking shape and moving 
towards best industry practices. It aimed at delivering the optimum business results that creates real value for all 
stakeholders. This system is based on a broad reward scheme that immediately grati�es high performing individuals while 
o�ering certain deferred incentives that create lifelong association with Amreli Steels. The well-crafted “Career Merit 
Points System” is another highlight that will enable our high performers to enjoy short term and long term bene�ts in due 
course. 

Beyond Duty

Besides normal business duties, we believe in providing our fellow colleagues multiple options through family, sporting 
and management gatherings. This puts the employees in an informal social setting to create a deep emotional association 
with Amreli Steels and promote a warm and cordial work environment.

Passion for People



Notice of the 33rd Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 33rd Annual General Meeting of Amreli Steels Limited will be held on Wednesday, October 
25, 2017 at 03:30 pm at Auditorium Hall of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), G-13, Block-8, 
Chartered Accountants Avenue, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan, to transact the following businesses:

Ordinary Business:

1. To con�rm minutes of the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 25 October 2016. 

2. To receive, consider and adopt annual audited �nancial statements of the Company for the year ended 
30 June 2017 together with the Directors’ and the Auditors’ Reports thereon.

3. To consider and if thought �t, declare �nal cash dividend of 20% i.e. PKR 2.00 per share, as recommended by 
the Board of Directors of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2017. 

4. To appoint auditors of the Company for the �nancial year ending 30 June 2018 and to �x their 
remuneration. The Board of Directors of the Company has recommended the name of retiring auditors M/s. 
EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants, for their appointment as external auditors for the year ending 
30 June 2018. The retiring auditors, being eligible, have o�ered themselves for re-appointment for the year 
ending 30 June 2018. 

Other Business:

5. To transact any other business as may be placed before the meeting with the permission of the Chairman.

Date: 04 October 2017      By Order of the Board

Place: Karachi             

         Adnan Abdul Gha�ar
           Company Secretary

Notes:

1. Book Closure:

 The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 13 October 2017 to 25 October 2017 (both days 
inclusive). Transfers received in order by our Share Registrar, M/s. THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited, 1st Floor,40-C, 
Block-6, P.E.C.H.S., Karachi by the close of business on 12 October 2017 will be considered in time for the 
determination of any entitlement, as recommended by the Board of Directors and attending the meeting.

2.  Appointment of Proxies and Attending AGM:

i) A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint another member as his/her proxy who 
shall have such rights as respects attending, speaking and voting at the meeting as are available to a 
member.

ii) A blank instrument of proxy applicable for the meeting is being provided with the notice sent to members. 
Further copies of the instrument of proxy may be obtained from the registered o�ce of the Company 
during normal o�ce hours.

iii) A duly completed instrument of proxy to be valid must be doposited at the registered o�ce not less than 48 
hours before the time of the meeting. Attested copies of valid CNIC or the passport of the member and the 
Proxy shall be furnished with the Proxy Form. 

iv) The instrument of proxy should be duly signed, stamped and witnessed by two persons with their names, 
address, CNIC numbers and signatures. 

v) CDC account holders are also required to follow the guidelines as laid down in Circular No.1 dated 26, 
January 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

 For Attending the Annual General Meeting:

i. In case of individual, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person, whose securities are in 
group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the regulations, shall authenticate his/her 
identity by showing his/her original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the 
time of attending the meeting.

ii. Members registered on Central Depository Company (CDC) are also requested to bring their particulars, I.D. 
numbers and account numbers in CDS.

iii. In case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/Power of Attorney with specimen signature 
of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of meeting.

 For Appointment of Proxies:

i. In case of individual, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are in 
group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the regulations, shall submit the proxy 
form as per requirement noti�ed by the Company.

ii. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be 
mentioned on the form.

iii. Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the bene�cial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the 
proxy form.

iv. The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of meeting.

v. Corporate entities shall submit the Board of Directors resolution/Power of Attorney with specimen 
signature along with proxy form.

3. Change in Members Addresses:

Members are requested to notify any changes in their addresses immediately to the Share Registrar M/s. THK 
Associates (Pvt.) Limited.

4. Submission of Copies of Valid CNICs (mandatory)

Members, who have not yet submitted attested photocopy of their valid CNIC alongwith folio number are 
requested to send the same, at the earliest, directly to the Company’s Share Registrar. 

5.  Dividend Mandate/ E-Dividend:

 In terms of section 242 of Companies Act, 2017(Act), every listed company is required to pay cash dividend, if any, 
to their members only through electronic mode by directly crediting the amount of dividend into the bank account 
provided by them. 

 The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through its Circular No. 18 of 2017 dated 01 August 
2017, has allowed one time extension from the aforesaid requirement till 31 October 2017 and keeping in view the 
mandatory requirements of the provisions of section 242 of the Act, the SECP has advised the listed companies to 
approach their shareholders for obtaining electronic dividend mandate, update their bank account records and 
put a system in place, as all dividend payments with e�ect from 01 November 2017 shall be paid through electronic 
mode only.

 Please note that the Company shall be bound to withhold dividend of those members who do not provide their 
bank details. Therefore, in order to receive e-dividend, members are requested to provide particulars relating to 
their bank account (i.e. title of account, complete bank account number (i.e. 24 digit IBAN), complete mailing 
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 address of the bank, name of the bank, folio number, mobile number and email address). E-Dividend Mandate 
Form is annexed with the Notice and it is also available at the Registered O�ce of the Company and on the 
Company’s website.

 In case of physical shares, a duly �lled-in e-Dividend Mandate Form shall be submitted with the Company’s Share 
Registrar. While for shares held in CDC, E-Dividend Mandate Form shall be submitted directly to member’s 
broker/participant/CDC as required by the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDCPL) vide its 
Circular No. 16 of 2017 issued on 31 August 2017.

6.  Updating NTN with respective participants/ Share Registrar:

 The corporate members having CDC accounts are required to have their National Tax Number (NTN) updated with 
their respective participants, whereas corporate members who have physical shares should send a copy of their 
NTN certi�cate to our Share Registrar. The members while sending NTN or NTN certi�cates, as the case may be, 
must quote the company name and their respective folio numbers.

7.  Deduction of Income Tax under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001:

a) Pursuant to the Finance Act, 2017, e�ective 01 July 2017, the rate of deduction of income tax under Section 
150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, from payment of dividend to a Non-Filer of income tax return is 
prescribed as 20% and for Filer of tax returns as 15%. List of �lers is available at Federal Board of Revenue’s 
(FBR) website: http://www.fbr.gov.pk. Members are therefore advised to update their tax Filer status latest 
by 12 October 2017.

b) Further, according to clari�cation received from Federal Board of Revenue (FBR), with-holding tax will be 
determined separately on ‘Filer/Non-Filer’ status of Principal shareholder as well as joint-holder(s) based on 
their shareholding proportions, in case of joint accounts.

 In this regard all shareholders who hold shares jointly are requested to provide shareholding                                             
proportions of Principal shareholder and Joint-holder(s) in respect of shares held by them to our Share 
Registrar, in writing as follows:

c) The required information must reach our Share Registrar by the close of business on 12 October 2017; 
otherwise it will be assumed that the shares are equally held by Principal Shareholder and Joint Holder(s).

d) The corporate shareholders having CDC accounts are required to have their NTN updated with their 
respective participants, whereas corporate physical shareholders should send a copy of their NTN certi�cate 
to the Share Registrar. The shareholders while sending NTN or NTN certi�cates, as the case may be, must 
quote company name and their respective folio numbers.

e) The information received within the above speci�ed time would enable the Company to deduct income tax 
at the applicable rates from the payment of dividend if announced by the Company on 25 October 2017.

f ) Members seeking exemption from deduction of income tax or deduction at a reduced rate under the 
relevant provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, are requested to submit a valid tax certi�cate or 
necessary documentary evidence, as the case may be, latest by 12 October 2017.

8.  Availability of Financial Statements and Reports on the Website:

 The Annual Report of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2017 has been placed on the Company’s website.

9. Circulation of Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2017 through CD/DVD/USB

 The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide SRO No. 470(I)/2016 dated 31 May 2016, has 
allowed listed companies to circulate their annual audited accounts (i.e. the annual balance sheet and pro�t and 
loss account, auditor’s report and director’s report) to its members through CD/DVD/USB at their registered 
addresses instead of sending them in hard copies, subject to approval obtained from shareholders in General 
Meeting. Accordingly, the Company has obtained approval from members in the 32nd Annual General Meeting 
held on 25 October 2016.

 Pursuant to the approval of shareholders, as aforesaid, the annual audited �nancial statements of the Company for 
the year ended 30 June 2017, are being circulated to the members through CD. 

10. Transmission of Annual Financial Statements and Notice of Meeting through email

 Pursuant to S.R.O. 787(I)/2014 dated 08 September 2014, SECP has permitted companies to circulate annual 
audited �nancial statements along with notice of Annual General Meeting to its members through e-mail. The 
Companies Act 2017 also allows electronic circulation of annual �nancial statements and reports thereon. 
Accordingly, we are pleased to o�er this facility to our members who desire to receive annual �nancial statements 
and notices of the Company through e-mail in future.

 We have uploaded the request form/consent form for the purpose on the Company’s website. Members who desire 
to receive annual �nancial statements and notice of Annual General Meeting through e-mail, instead of receiving 
them through CD/DVD/USB, are requested to submit their consent on the form duly �lled to the Share Registrar of 
the Company. Any changes to such arrangements should be communicated to the Company on standard request 
form.

 Members, who do not provide their email IDs, shall continue to receive their future annual �nancial statements 
(either in CD/ DVD/USB) at their registered addresses. However, they will have right to request for a hard copy at 
their registered addresses.

For any query/problem/information, members may contact our Share Registrar at the following address:

  Principal Shareholders Joint Holder (s)

Folio/CDC Total Name and Shareholding Name and Shareholding
A/c No. number of  CNIC No. Proportion CNIC No. Proportion  
 shares  (No. of Shares)  (No. of Shares)
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THK Associates (Pvt) Ltd 

1st Floor,40-C, Block-6, 
P.E.C.H.S. Karachi - 75400
UAN No: (021) 111-000-322
Direct No:. (021) 34168266-8
Email: secretariat@thk.com.pk                     
masood.ahmed@thk.com.pk 
Contact Person: Mr. Masood Ahmed
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Pattern of Shareholding-Additional Information
As on 30 June 2017

2

1

1

2

1

1

1

92,439,482

35,694,840

  1,746,383

37,420,212

        500

        1,000

           500

31.12

12.02

0.59

12.60

0.00

0.00

0.00

Abbas Akberali

Shayan Akberali

Kinza Shayan

Mariam Akberali

Teizoon Kisat

Badar Kazmi

Zafar Ahmed Taji

Categories of Shareholders Number of Shareholders Shares Held Percentage

Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children

Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties

8

9

6,715,500

28,106,022

2.26

9.46

Banks

Insurance Companies

Banks, development �nance institutions, non-banking �nance companies, insurance companies, 
takaful, modarabas and pension funds

9,358

127

13,148,608

2,222,950

4.43

0.75

Local

Foreign

General Public

1 55,732,930 18.76Mahvash Akberali

41 18,800,000 6.33Mutual Funds

55 4,355,000 1.47Others

4 577,000 0.19Foreign Companies

Public Sector Companies and Corporations

1 50,500 0.02National Investment Trust & Investment 
Corporation of Pakistan

Total 9,613 297,011,427 100.00

Shareholders holding 5% or more

Abbas Akberali

Mahvash Akbberali

Hadi Abbas Akberali

Shayan Akberali

Shares Held

91,294,723

55,732,930

37,419,212

35,694,840

Percentage

30.74

18.76

12.60

12.02

 NO. OF SHAREHOLDERS  From To  SHARES HELD  PERCENTAGE

 316 1  100  9261  0.0031

 6569  101  500  3259216  1.0973

 1446  501  1000  1434388  0.4829

 928  1001  5000  2228784  0.7504

 125  5001  10000  1023849  0.3447

 36  10001  15000  453092  0.1526

 40  15001 20000  750593  0.2527

 34  20001  25000  812604  0.2736

 9  25001  30000  257500  0.0867

 6  30001  35000  201400  0.0678

 7  35001  40000  271417  0.0914

 2  40001  45000  84500  0.0284

 10  45001  50000  489000  0.1646

 4  50001  55000  213000  0.0717

 2  55001 60000  115000  0.0387

 2  60001  65000  126000  0.0424

 2  65001  70000  140000  0.0471

 5  70001  75000  366000  0.1232

 1  75001  80000  80000  0.0269

 1  90001  95000  95000  0.0320

 3  95001  100000  297000  0.1000

 3  100001  105000  312000  0.1050

 1  105001  110000  106000  0.0357

 3  110001 115000  335500  0.1130

 3  120001  125000  372000  0.1252

 2  125001  130000  251476  0.0847

 1  135001  140000  139000  0.0468

 1  140001  145000  142000  0.0478

 1  170001  175000  172500  0.0581

 1  175001  180000  180000  0.0606

 2  195001  200000  397000  0.1337

 1  215001  220000  216500  0.0729

 2  220001  225000  447500  0.1507

 1  235001  240000  239000  0.0805

 1  245001  250000  250000  0.0842

 1  260001  265000  260500  0.0877

 1  265001  270000  267000  0.0899

 1  275001  280000  279000  0.0939

 1  280001  285000  283000  0.0953

Pattern of Shareholding
As on 30 June 2017

<---- Having Shares ---->
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Pattern of Shareholding
As on 30 June 2017

 NO. OF SHAREHOLDERS  From To  SHARES HELD  PERCENTAGE

 1  290001  295000  291000  0.0980

 1  305001  310000  308000  0.1037

 1  310001  315000  315000  0.1061

 1  345001  350000  350000  0.1178

 1  360001  365000  365000  0.1229

 1  370001  375000  372500  0.1254

 1  395001  400000  396000  0.1333

 1  425001  430000  425500  0.1433

 1  435001  440000  437500  0.1473

 1  460001  465000  464000  0.1562

 1  590001  595000  593500  0.1998

 1  645001  650000  650000  0.2188

 1  715001  720000  720000  0.2424

 1  725001  730000  727000  0.2448

 1  735001  740000  737000  0.2481

 1  770001  775000  775000  0.2609

 1 870001  875000  874500  0.2944

 1  945001  950000  947500  0.3190

 1  1140001  1145000  1144759  0.3854

 1  1145001  1150000  1150000  0.3872

 1  1185001  1190000  1190000  0.4007

 1  1220001  1225000  1225000  0.4124

 1  1230001  1235000  1232500  0.4150

 1  1250001  1255000  1251000  0.4212

 1  1370001  1375000  1375000  0.4629

 1  1410001  1415000  1413000  0.4757

 1  1530001  1535000  1532500  0.5160

 2  1745001  1750000  3491883  1.1757

 1  1885001  1890000  1888500  0.6358

 1  2515001  2520000  2518000  0.8478

 1  3260001  3265000  3262000  1.0983

 1  10205001  10210000  10208000  3.4369

 1  16880001  16885000  16881000  5.6836

 1  35690001  35695000  35694840  12.0180

 1  37415001  37420000  37419212  12.5986

 1  55730001  55735000  55732930  18.7646

 1  91290001  91295000  91294723  30.7378

 9,613                                             Company Total  297,011,427  100.0000

<---- Having Shares ---->

Stakeholders’ Engagement Process

STAKEHOLDERS

INSTITUTIONAL
INVESTORS /
SHAREHOLDERS

CUSTOMERS &
SUPPLIERS

BANKS 
AND OTHER 
LENDERS

MEDIA

REGULATORS

ANALYSTS

EMPLOYEES

LOCAL
COMMUNITY
AND GENERAL
PUBLIC

MANAGEMENT OF STAKEHOLDERS’ ENGAGEMENT

ASL acknowledges and honours the trust our investors have put in 
us by providing a steady return on their investment. We rigorously 
enforce a transparent relationship with all our stakeholders.

ASL has invested signi�cantly over the years in customer 
relationship management. Our continuous and sustainable 
growth is also attributable to engaging reputed suppliers as 
business partners for supply of industrial inputs, equipment and 
machinery.

Banks and other �nancial institutions are engaged by the 
Company on an on-going basis in relation to negotiation of 
rates, lending purposes, short term �nancing, deposits and 
investments. Banks are also consulted on issues linked with 
letters of credit and payments to suppliers, along with other 
disbursements of an operational nature.

Di�erent communication mediums are used on need basis to 
apprise the general public about new developments, activities 
and philanthropic initiatives of ASL.

ASL prides itself in being a responsible corporate citizen and 
abides by the laws and regulations of Pakistan. ASL consciously 
ensures that all the legal requirements of other countries are also 
ful�lled while conducting business outside Pakistan. 

ASL has paid a total of Rs.2.4 Billion (comprising in terms of 
income taxes, sales taxes and custom duties) to Government 
Exchequer during the �nancial year under review and continues 
to be one of the highest taxpayers of Pakistan. 

In order to remain transparent and attract potential investors, ASL 
regularly engages with analysts on details of projects already 
disclosed to the regulators, with due regard to regulatory 
restrictions imposed on inside information and or trading, to 
avoid any negative impact on the Company’s reputation or share 
price.

ASL’s commitment to its most valued resource, a dedicated and 
competent workforce, is at the core of its human resource 
strategy. ASL provides a nurturing and employee friendly 
environment while investing considerably in local and foreign 
employee trainings. Besides monetary compensations, ASL has 
also invested in health and �tness activities for its employees.

In addition to local communities near plant sites, ASL engages 
with general public at large through its CSR Activities. This 
engagement helps to identify needed interventions in the �eld 
of education, health and general economic uplift of the society.

EFFECT AND VALUE TO 
AMRELI STEELS (ASL)

The providers of capital allow 
ASL the means to achieve its 
vision.

Our success and performance 
depends upon the loyalty of our 
customers, their preference and 
our supply chain management.

Dealings with banks and lenders 
is key to ASL’s performance in 
terms of the following:

• Access to funds
• Better interest rates and 
 loan terms
• Minimal fees
• Higher level of customer  
 service
• Effective planning for the  
 future

By informing the media of the 
developments and activities of 
ASL , e�ective awareness is 
created regarding the Company 
and the products and services 
o�ered, indirectly having a 
positive impact.

Laws and regulations, 
determination of prices and 
other factors controlled by the 
Government a�ect ASL and its 
performance.

Providing all the required 
information to analysts on the 
historical performance of the 
Company, material 
announcement made during the 
priod and help them understand 
the industry and its dynamics 
more clearly to create a positive 
investor environment.

ASL’s employees represent its 
biggest asset. They implement 
every strategic and operational 
decision and represent the 
Company in the industry and 
community.

The people of the Country 
provide the grounds for ASL to 
build its future on.



September 2016

• Board of Directors’ Meeting was held on 09 September 2016. The Board approved the annual audited �nancial 
statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2016 and Directors’ Report thereon and recommend to the 
shareholders 20% (i.e. Rs. 2 per share) �nal cash dividend for the year ended 30 June 2016. 

October 2016

• 32nd Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on 25 October 2016 at Auditorium Hall of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, Block-8, Chartered Accountants Avenue, Clifton, Karachi and approved annual 
audited accounts for the year ended 30 June 2016 and 20% (i.e. Rs. 2 per share) �nal cash dividend for the year 
ended 30 June 2016. 

• Board of Directors’ Meeting was held on 26 October 2016. The Board approved the condensed interim �nancial 
statements for the �rst quarter ended 30 September 2016 along with the Directors’ Report thereon.

• The Board in its meeting held on 26 October 2016 appointed Mr. Teizoon Kisat as an Independent Director of the 
Company to �ll the casual vacancy arose as a result of resignation tendered by Mr. Mirza Qamar Beg.

November 2016

• Dispatched Final Dividend Warrants to the shareholders.

• Organized Family Gala Event at Dreamworld Resort for the employees and their families. 

February 2017

• Board of Directors’ Meeting was held on 02 February 2017. The Board approved the condensed interim �nancial 
statements for the half year ended 31 December 2016 along with the Directors’ Report thereon.

April 2017

• Cricket Tournament was organized for all the employees of the Company at the Cricket Stadium located in the 
vicinity of Dreamworld Resort, Karachi. Teams participated from all three locations of the Company i.e. Head 
O�ce-Karachi, Steel Melt Shop-Dhabeji  and Rolling Mill-SITE. Karachi. 

• Board of Directors’ Meeting was held on 20 April 2017. The Board approved the condensed interim �nancial 
statements for the third quarter ended 31 March 2017 along with the Directors’ Report thereon.

• The Board in its meeting held on 20 April 2017 approved in principle the second phase of expansion of the 
Company, subject to the approval of technical feasibility and successful �nancial close of the proposed transaction. 
The Board approved the followings:

• Increase in Steel Melting capacity at Dhabeji for making billets from 400,000 to 600,000 tons per annum, in 
the �rst phase, with expected time line for completion in FY 17-18

• Increase in Rolling Mill capacity at Dhabeji for making rebars from 300,000 to 425,000 tons per annum, with 
expected time line for completion in FY 17-18

• Increase in Rolling Mill capacity at S.I.T.E. Karachi for making rebars from 180,000 to 325,000 tons per annum 
with expected time line for completion in FY 18-19

Major Events during the Financial Year 2016-2017 Corporate Calendar

Tentative dates for the Financial Year 2017-18

1

2

3

4

5

Board Meeting 
First Quarter ending 30 September 2017
Last week of October 2017

Board Meeting 
Third Quarter ending 31 March 2018
Last week of April 2018

Annual General Meeting 
Year ending 30 June 2018 
Last week of October 2018

Board Meeting 
Half Year ending 31 December 2017
First week of February 2018

Board Meeting 
Year ending 30 June 2018 
First week of September 2018
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Corporate Governance, 
Risk Management and Compliance

Amreli Steels Limited (the Company) recognizes that Governance, Risk Management, and Compliance (GRC) are three 
pillars that work together for the purpose of assuring that the organization meets its objectives. 

GRC is a discipline that aims to synchronize information and activity across governance, risk management and compliance 
in order to operate more e�ciently, enable e�ective information sharing, more e�ectively report activities and avoid 
wasteful overlaps. 

Governance

Governance (i.e. Corporate Governance) is the combination of processes established and executed by the Board of 
Directors (the Board) that are re�ected in the Company’s structure and how it is managed and led toward achieving goals 
of the Company as a whole. 

The corporate governance structure of the Company is based on statutory and regulatory compliance requirements that 
are applicable to companies listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and Company’s Articles of Association 
complemented by several internal procedures. These procedures include a risk assessment and control system, as well as 
a system of assurances on compliance with applicable laws, regulations and the Company’s Code of Conduct. 

Major External Regulations  

• Companies Act, 2017 (Formerly: Companies Ordinance, 1984) and Rules made thereunder

• Code of Corporate Governance 

• Securities Act, 2015

• Listing Regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited

• Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited

• CDC Regulations

• All applicable Labour Laws

• All applicable Taxation Laws and Rules made thereunder

• Competition Act, 2010 and Rules made thereunder

• Other SECP Regulations, Circulars, Noti�cations and Guidelines issued from time to time

• Other local and International laws applicable directly or indirectly

Major Internal Regulations  

• The Articles of Association of the Company

• Code of Conduct

• Whistle Blowing Policy

• Other Signi�cant policies formulated by the Company from time to time

The Board is responsible for governing the organization by establishing Board policies, setting the goals, objectives 
and strategies the Company is required to adopt, and formulating policies and guidelines for achieving the said 
goals and objectives. The Board is accountable to the shareholders for the discharge of its �duciary function. 

The management is responsible for implementation of the aforesaid goals and strategies in accordance with the 
policies and guidelines laid down by the Board. In order to facilitate the smooth running of the day-to-day a�airs of 
the Company, the Board entrusts the Chief Executive O�cer (CEO) with necessary powers and responsibilities. The 
CEO is, in turn, assisted by various committees comprising of the Chief Operating O�cers, Chief Financial O�cer 
and the Heads of Businesses and Functions. The Board is also assisted by a number of sub-committees comprising 
mainly of independent/non-executive directors.

Risk Management 

Risk management is predicting and managing risks that could hinder the Company to achieve its objectives. The 
Board has the overall responsibility of overseeing the risk management processes, which include both risk 
management and internal control procedures. The Company’s processes, which are documented and regularly 
reviewed, are designed to safeguard assets and address risks that the business might face or that may impact 
business continuity. These are, in turn, reported to the Board and senior management for timely action where 
required, to ensure uninterrupted operations. 

The Company maintains a clear organizational structure with a well-de�ned chain of authority. Senior 
management is responsible for implementing procedures, monitoring risk and assessing the e�ectiveness of 
various controls. The Company’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of �nancial 
markets, regulatory levies and taxes, external factors a�ecting the marketability and pro�t margin of its products, 
internal factors that may compromise the Company’s ability to meet its targets, and seeks to minimize potential 
adverse e�ects on the Company’s �nancial performance. 

Compliance

Compliance at Amreli Steels means adherence with the applicable laws and regulations and the Company's 
policies and procedures. The Company considers strong and e�cient governance as a key to the Company's 
success. 

Due to the increasing number of regulations and need for operational transparency, the Company is increasingly 
adopting the use of consolidated and harmonized sets of compliance controls. This approach is used to ensure that 
all necessary governance requirements can be met without unnecessary duplication of e�orts from resources to 
ensure e�ectiveness and e�ciency. 
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Risk Management 

CEO

• Has ultimate responsibility for 
risk management, ensuring that 
it is in place and e�ectively 
functioning

Has ultimate responsibility for 
risk management, ensuring that 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

• Has an oversight role 

• Ensures that risk management processes are in place, 
adequate, e�ective 

• Approves a risk appetite in accordance with the risk 
management methodology adopted by Amreli Steelsmanagement methodology adopted by Amreli Steels

Audit Committee

• Supports the Board in 
monitoring risk exposure 
against risk appetite

• Reviews the e�ectiveness 
of risk management and 
internal control systems

management methodology adopted by Amreli Steelsmanagement methodology adopted by Amreli Steels

monitoring risk exposure 

Internal Audit

• Supports the Audit 
Committee in reviewing 
the e�ectiveness of risk 
management and internal 
control systems

• 

COO

• Identi�es, assesses and 
monitors Company-wide risks 
and mitigation actions along 
with his team from di�erent 
functions within the 
organization

Oversight, identi�cation, assessment and management 
of risks at corporate level

Identi�cation,
assessment and management

of risks at process levels and across functions

TOP-DOWN APPROACH

BOTTOM-UP APPROACH

RISK MANAGEMENT

Site levels

 Identi�cation, assessment and mitigation of risks
 Promoting risk awareness and safety culture

Regional Business Unit Management Teams

 Adopts process risk appetite
 Support the COO in reviewing and monitoring e�ectiveness of risk management
 Identi�cation, assessment and management of risks at the process level
 Monitoring of risk management process and e�ectiveness of internal control

Mitigation

The Company continuesly tracks changes in economic 
environment pertaining to steel industry, and alignes 
its strategy proactively to address risks arising out of it. 
The current economic conditions of Pakistan have 
improved in previous years that has resulted in increase 
in industrialization and urbanization and have had a 
positive e�ect on construction sector. It is anticipated 
that CPEC would result in improved economy and 
boost the construction industry.

It is an external risk outside our control However being 
one of the largest steel rebar manufacturer, our senior 
management regularly seeks dialogue with policy 
makers in di�erent forums in the interest of domestic 
industry.

The Company expect and encourage healthy 
competition with an aim to enhance market share in 
coming years by increasing our market outreach. 
Increase in energy e�ciency by 25% through 
installation of new technology in Dhabeji rolling mill 
will result in availability of our quality steel rebars on 
competitive prices that would give high competitive 
advantage to our products.

At Dhabeji plant ,the company is supplied with power 
by K-electric from national grid at 132KV/11KV with 
the transformer rating of 50/63 MVA which is more 
than su�cient to cater to the requirement of 
company’s existing operations and expansion plans. 
Further, the Company has laid one extra phase cable 
of 132KV to avoid single point of failure. The Company 
has a dedicated bay at K-Electric’s Dhabeji grid station, 
from which its dedicated power feeders transmits 
power at 132KV voltage to the grid station at site.

The SITE, Karachi plant is supplied with power from 
two dedicated feeders of K-Electric supplying power at 
11KV Level. Thus, one in line and other on standby. 
Each of these feeders originates at K-Electric 
substation and terminates at the plant with no other 
customer drawing power from these lines.

Sr. No.

1.

2.

3.

4.

Risks

Economic factors, 
industry conditions, 
industry cyclicality 

Changes in 
government laws 
and policies

Product competition

Business interruption

Description

The cyclic nature of steel 
industry may adversely 
a�ect our business. The 
construction is dependent 
on overall economic 
conditions, any adverse 
e�ects on economy may 
directly impact steel 
Industry.

Regulatory changes may 
a�ect local steel industry 
due to ad-hoc tari� 
adjustments on imports or 
dumping in Pakistan.

Growing numbers of local 
players in the market and 
cheap quality of steel bar 
available in the market at 
uneconomical prices may 
seriously a�ect our market 
share.

Prolonged power outages 
will result in delayed 
production and which may 
result in loss of competitive 
advantage and reputation. 

Strategic Risks

The Company values automation and modernization 
of operations as it has state-of-the-art equipment for 
melting and slit rolling which is contracted from an 
international conglomerate Primetals Technologies 
which is joint venture between Siemens, VAI, and 
Mitsubishi that provides steel manufacturing solutions 
across the value chain. We expect such technological 
aspect will help the Company in obtaining 
unparalleled cost & quality benchmarks that will 
translate into a better bottom line. 

5. Technology failing to 
provide cost & 
quality 
competitiveness 

Sacri�cial loss in 
pro�tability due to 
outdated technology or 
failure in technological 
system.

Operational Risks
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The Company highly values health and safety of every 
employee and ensure safety procedures are followed 
to avoid any unwanted circumstances via educating 
the employees about work place safety through 
continuous trainings and awareness programs.  We are 
also in the process of implementing OHSAS 18001.

Strong controls are in place for the security and 
maintenance of con�dentiality and integrity of data. 
Procedures are in place to restrict unauthorized 
access. Disaster recovery is also in place and data 
recovery exercise is performed on regular basis in 
order to reduce the exposures of any risks arising from 
data loss.

The Company has strong commitments from its 
vendors in terms of quality and competitive prices of 
raw materials. In case of over dependence, we also 
have alternate vendors on our approved vendors list. 
To avoid disturbance in production process, we 
optimize the use of market intelligence and update 
vendor performance report regularly. 

7.

8.

9.

Health & Safety

Information Security

Supply chain 
management risk

Poor health & safety 
environment may become 
root cause of fatal work 
place accidents which will 
result in lowering 
employees’ motivation and 
ultimately may cost the 
reputation of the Company.   

Information security 
incidents can unfavorably 
impact upon our business 
operations.

Prolong production 
stoppages due to 
shortages of inputs may 
result in disruptions in 
overall business 
operations. Also variation 
in prices of raw material 
may adversely a�ect our 
pro�tability.

Strategic Risks

Maintenance of healthy relationship with customers is 
key goal of the Company. Credits are only granted to 
customers with good �nancial health after careful 
assessment as per Company’s credit policy. We have 
follow-up procedures in place. The payments, sales 
and operational performance of customers are 
properly documented and is incorporated in 
customer’s appraisal.

The management has been successful in acquiring 
competitive rates. Also, the improved credit ratings are 
key driver for acquiring competitive interest rates.

Amreli Steels received a long term credit rating of “A” 
and short-term credit rating of “A-1” from PACRA which 
represents the Company’s �nancial stability and a 
strong capacity for timely repayment of �nancial 
commitments.

Forex risk is minimized through proper planning and 
through the arrangement of hedging on occasions. 

10.

11.

12.

13.

Counter-Party risk

Interest rate risk

Liquidity risk

Foreign Exchange 
risk

Risk of default in payments 
by credit customers.

Changes in interest rates 
can cause changes in the 
borrowing cost of the 
company.

Risk of default on our 
�nancial commitments to 
other parties.

Devaluation of PKR against 
USD may result in costly 
inputs which in turn can 
cause adverse impact on 
our pro�tability.

Financial Risks

The Company regularly monitors changes in 
regulatory environment and adapts changes in timely 
manner. Employees are regulary sent on workshops 
and seminars for post budget or any material change 
in government policies. Services have been acquired 
for material updates.

14. Legislation risk New laws, regulations or 
other requirements may 
result in new liability in the 
case of non-compliance. 

Compliance Risks

At Amreli Steels Limited, great emphasis is placed on 
rigid quality control policies. In support of our quality 
policy, The Company has established a formal 
management system conforming to ISO 9001: 2008. 
We are an ISO 9001:2008 certi�ed company. All our 
products are also approved and certi�ed by Pakistan 
Standard Quality Control Authority (PSQCA). The 
company maintains a modern testing laboratory 
where each heat produced is tested against 
International Standards (ASTM A-615 & BS 4449). Our 
testing facilities include an electro-hydraulic universal 
testing machine with a testing capacity of 100 tons 
and a mechanical 60 ton universal testing machine. 
The sta� of the testing facility is professionally trained 
by foreign experts to use the machines and deliver 
accurate results.

15.  Product risk Risk of loss in revenues 
resulting from goods 
return or bad publicity in 
press on quality and 
performance of the 
product.

Reputational Risks

RISK RISK FACTOR Likelihood Impact

R1 Economic 3 4

R2 Government laws and policies  2 4

R3 Product Competition 3 3

R4 Business interruption 1 3

R5 Technology 2 2

R6 Human capital 1 2

R7 Health & Safety 1 3

R8 Information Security 1 2

RISK RISK FACTOR Likelihood Impact

R9 Supply chain management risk 2 3

R10 Counter-Party risk 2 2

R11 Interest rate risk 1 1

R12 Liquidity risk 1 2

R13 Foreign Exchange risk 3 1

R14 Legislation risk 1 2

R15 Product risk 1 3

6. Failure to maintain 
high potential 
human capital

Loss of high potential 
talent in terms of 
attraction, engagement 
and retention of 
intellectual capital may 
have a negative impact on 
business results. 

Amreli Steels Limited appreciates and relies upon the 
contributions from its key personals.  Through HR 
department it ensures a vigorous succession planning 
to identify, engage and retain intellectual capital by 
o�ering challenge-reward based conducive work 
environment. 
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Internal control is an integral part of our activities. It consists of all measures taken by the Company for the purpose of: 

1. Protecting its resources against waste, fraud, and ine�ciency; 

2. Ensuring accuracy and reliability in accounting and operational data; 

3. Securing compliance with the organizational policies; and

4. Evaluating the level of performance in all organizational units of the Company. 

We are in the process of adopting COSO framework to attain the objectives which are;

1. Operational Objectives: these pertain to e�ectiveness and e�ciency of our operations, including operational and 
�nancial performance goals, and safeguarding assets against loss. 

2. Reporting Objectives: These pertain to internal and external �nancial and non-�nancial reporting and may 
encompass reliability, timeliness, transparency, or other terms as set forth by regulators, recognized standard 
setters or our policies.

3. Compliance Objectives: these pertain to adherence to laws and regulations to which we are subject to.

The Board has overall responsibility for the Company’s system of internal control and for reviewing its e�ectiveness. The 
Board considers that strong internal controls are integral to the sound management of the organization, and it is 
committed to maintain strict �nancial, operational and risk management controls over all its activities with formally 
de�ned lines of responsibility, delegated authorities and clear operating processes. The systems that the Board has 
established are designed to safeguard both the shareholders' investment and the assets of the Company. Entity level 
controls are in place for the achievement of desired objectives. To ensure the e�ectiveness and reliability of internal 
control, we have both in-house internal audit as well as outsourced internal audit function.

The systems, standard operating procedures and controls that are implemented by the executive management are 
reviewed by the internal audit team whose �ndings and recommendations are placed before the Audit Committee. The 
Audit Committee has annual independent sessions with the statutory auditor and internal auditors to discuss the 
adequacy and e�ectiveness of internal �nancial controls.

Internal Control Framework

The commitment of 
senior management 
towards strong internal 
control system has set 
the tone and control 
consciousness. 
Management is keen to 
promote integrity, ethical 
values and the 
commitment to 
competence. We have 
approved organization 
structure (organogram) 
which is designed to 
properly assign the 
appropriate lines for 
reporting of each 
functional area. Key 
Performance Indicators 
(KPIs) are established to 
monitor the performance 
of departments against 
their stated objectives.

Control 
Environment

The policies and 
procedures are 
developed in order 
to ensure that 
management 
directives are 
carried out. All the 
necessary actions 
are taken to 
address risks in 
order to achieve 
the entity's 
objectives. It 
includes a range of 
activities such as 
approvals, 
authorizations, 
veri�cations, 
reconciliations, 
budgeting, security 
of assets, 
segregation of 
duties and reviews 
of operating 
performance.

Control 
Activities

The internal 
control system is 
actively 
monitored. 
Ongoing 
monitoring 
occurs in the 
ordinary course 
of operations, 
and includes 
regular 
management 
and supervisory 
activities, and 
other actions 
personnel take in 
performing their 
duties that assess 
the quality of 
internal control 
system 
performance.

Monitoring

All the personnel 
responsible of their 
divisions have been 
given the 
responsibilities and 
clear understanding 
of their roles in 
internal control 
system as well as 
how individual 
activities relate to 
the others. We have 
de�ned formal 
mechanism of 
communication 
and sharing of 
information 
amongst the 
departments and 
stakeholders.

Information & 
Communication

Amreli Steels 
Limited has 
ongoing process 
of identifying and 
analyzing risks. 
Mechanisms are 
developed to 
respond to the 
changing 
condition. The 
identi�ed risks 
are evaluated 
and prioritized in 
order to take 
appropriate 
action. 

Risk

Review report to the members on statement of compliance with the code of corporate 
governance

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate 
Governance (the Code) prepared by the Board of Directors of Amreli Steels Limited (the Company) for the year ended 30 
June 2017 to comply with the requirements of Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited Chapter 5, Clause 5.19.24 (b) 
of the Code, where the Company is listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to 
review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively veri�ed, whether the Statement of Compliance re�ects 
the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Code and report if it does not and to highlight any 
non-compliance with the requirements of the Code. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel 
and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Code.

As part of our audit of �nancial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal 
control systems su�cient to plan the audit and develop an e�ective audit approach. We are not required to consider 
whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the 
e�ectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Code requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval its related party transactions distinguishing 
between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm‘s length transactions and transactions 
which are not executed at arm’s length price and recording proper justi�cation for using such alternate pricing 
mechanism. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the 
related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried 
out any procedures to determine whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does 
not appropriately re�ect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the best practices contained in the Code 
as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June 2017.

Chartered Accountants

Date: 26 August 2017
Place: Karachi

Building a better
working world

EY Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountants
Progreeive Plaza, Beaumont Road
P.O. Box 15541, Karachi 75530
Pakistan

Tel: +9221 3565 0007-11
Fax: +9221 3568 1965
ey.khi@pk.ey.com
ey.com/pk



This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance (CCG) contained in Regulation No. 
5.19.24 of listing regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited for the purpose of establishing a framework of good 
governance, whereby a listed company is managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate governance.

 The company has applied the principles contained in the CCG in the following manner: 

1. The Company encourages representation of independent, non-executive Directors and Directors representing 
minority interests on its Board of Directors. At present, the Board includes: 

The independent directors meet the criteria of independence under clause 5.19.1 (b) of the CCG.

2. The directors have con�rmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies, 
including this Company. 

3. All the resident Directors of the Company are registered as taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in payment 
of any loan to a banking company, a Development Financial Institution, or a Non-Banking Financial Institution, or 
being a Broker of a stock exchange, has been declared as a defaulter by that stock exchange. 

4. A casual vacancy occurring on the board on 9 September 2016 was �lled up by the directors within 47 days. 

5. The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to 
disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

6. The Board has developed a Vision/Mission statement, overall corporate strategy and signi�cant policies of the 
Company. A complete record of particulars of signi�cant policies along with the dates on which they were 
approved or amended has been maintained. 

7. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions, including 
appointment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the Chief Executive 
O�cer (CEO), other executive and Non-executive directors, have been taken by the Board. 

8. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the 
Board for this purpose and the Board met at least once in every quarter. Written notices of the Board meetings, 
along with agenda and working papers, were circulated at least seven days before the meetings. The minutes of 
the meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated. 

9. The Company arranges orientations courses for its directors as and when needed to appraise them of their duties 
and responsibilities. The incoming directors are also provided with appropriate brie�ng and orientation material to 
enable them �rst-hand knowledge on the working of the Company. Five directors of the Company have attended 
the directors’ training program conducted by the Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance and the remaining 
two directors will acquire the required directors’ training within the time speci�ed in the CCG. 

10. The Board has approved the appointment of Chief Financial O�cer (CFO), Company Secretary and Head of Internal 
Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment. 

11. The Directors’ report for the year under review has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the CCG 
and fully describes the salient matters required to be disclosed. 

12. The �nancial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by CEO and CFO before approval of the Board. 

13. The directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company other than that disclosed 
in the pattern of shareholding. 

14. The company has complied with all the corporate and �nancial reporting requirements of the CCG. 

15. The Board has formed an Audit Committee. It comprises of three Members, all of whom are non-executive 
directors. The Chairman of the Committee is an independent director. 

16. The meetings of the Audit Committee were held at least once every quarter prior to approval of interim and �nal 
results of the Company and as required by the CCG. The terms of reference of the Committee have been formed 
and advised to the Committee for compliance. 

17. The Board has formed a Human Resource and Remuneration Committee. It comprises of four Members, of whom 
three are non-executive directors and one is an executive director. The Chairman of the Committee is an 
independent director. 

18. The Board has outsourced the internal audit function to M/s. BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants who are 
considered suitably quali�ed and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures 
of the Company. 

19. The statutory auditors of the Company have con�rmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the 
quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), that they or any of the 
partners of the �rm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the �rm and all 
its partners are in compliance with the International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on Code of Ethics 
as adopted by the ICAP. 

20. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services 
except in accordance with the Listing Regulations and the auditors have con�rmed that they have observed IFAC 
guidelines in this regard. 

21. The ‘closed period’, prior to the announcement of interim/�nal results, and business decisions, which may 
materially a�ect the market price of Company’s securities, was determined and intimated to directors, employees 
and Stock Exchange. 

22. Material/price sensitive information has been disseminated amongst all market participants at once through Stock 
Exchange.  

23. The Company has complied with the requirements relating to maintenance of register of persons having access to 
inside information by designated senior management o�cer in a timely manner and maintained proper record 
including basis for inclusion or exclusion of names of persons from the said list. 

24. We con�rm that all other material principles enshrined in the CCG have been complied with.

 For & on behalf of Board of Directors

 

                     

______________________________                        _______________________________

     Shayan Akberali      Badar Kazmi
Chief Executive O�cer           Director

Date:  26 August 2017

Place:  Karachi  

Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate 
Governance
Year Ended 30 June 2017

  Category    Name of Directors

  Independent Directors  Mr. Zafar Ahmed Taji
      Mr. Badar Kazmi
      Mr. Teizoon Kisat

  Executive Directors   Mr. Shayan Akberali

      Mr. Abbas Akberali
  Non-Executive Directors  Ms. Kinza Shayan
      Ms. Mariam Akberali
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Chairman’s Message

Dear shareholders,

It is my privilege to present my annual review for the Financial 
Year 2017, which represents a strong performance by your 
Company owing to untiring e�orts of our team members to 
meet expectations of our stakeholders.

The outgoing �nancial year saw a further surge in demand for 
steel rebars with demand drivers remaining strong across the 
construction industry. Due to the continuous launch of mega 
projects, a robust demand horizon seems long and is likely to 
support a growth of 10 to 12% per year.

After achieving capacity utilizations of 82% and 88% for billets 
and bars respectively and the highest ever sales in terms of 
quantity sold in the outgoing �nancial year, your Company is 
ready to ramp up output once the expansion project comes 
online in February 2018. Not only has our team commissioned 
the melting furnace to increase billet capacity to 400,000 tons, 
we are proud to announce that your company will be 
commissioning 425,000 tons of rebar capacity in February 2018 
rather than 300,000 tons as originally planned. This will help us 
achieve our objective of capturing the maximum share in a 
burgeoning market. 

Although international steel prices are rising, raw material 
prices will most likely stay range-bound due to fundamentals 
still indicating global overcapacity and only a modest recovery 
in global steel demand. It is important to note that an anti- 
dumping duty has been levied on steel billets while the same is 
in consideration for rebars as well. As such, approximately 2 
million tons of capacity across various steel products will be 
added to the steel industry during the next few years to meet 
the country’s growth requirements. This additional capacity will 
work as import substitution and save the country’s precious 
foreign exchange.

As Chairman of the Board, my focus is on continuously 
improving governance to help sustain growth. Some of the 
focus areas are strengthening HR practices to attract and retain 
the best talent, moving towards incorporating a practice of 
enterprise risk management, strengthening the supply chain 
function, increasing the scope of SAP while fortifying cyber 
security, and building a distribution network second to none. 
We look forward to commissioning our new rebar facility in the 
next few months, which carries a full income tax exemption for 
next �ve years, to serve the needs of the country and remain 
Pakistan’s largest selling brand of steel bars.

Sincerely,

Abbas Akberali
Chairman
26 August 2017



Message from the CEO
It is with great excitement that I take on the role of the Chief Executive O�cer. With a lot of 
experience in manufacturing and having come up the ladder right from the shop �oor, I am 
relentless in ensuring that your company deploys the best technology available, and that our 
cost of conversion always remains the most competitive.

Our greatest asset is our human capital. Technology and equipment can be bought but 
loyalty, passion and motivation cannot be purchased. It is a slow process of careful nurturing, 
inculcating trust and bringing the best out of an individual. 

‘Success is empty if you arrive at the �nish line alone. The best reward is to get there 
surrounded by winners’ – Howard Schultz.

Having said this, I spend a lot of my time in developing the Human Resource engine of your 
company and I am leaving no stone unturned to ensure that we have one of the best HR 
practices and talent development structures in place over the next few years. 

Our expansion plans have been slightly delayed due to the complexity of the new project, but 
we hope to cold commission of the rolling line in November 2017 with COD now targeted in 
February 2018. The new line will be one of the most e�cient production units in Pakistan 
which will bring huge cost savings with high volumes and e�ciencies of scale to the company.

We need to build the new while also relentlessly driving our existing business every day. This 
is the exciting journey we are on together taking each day as a learning opportunity. Our 
success is going to be very dependent on how we adapt.

To combat the challenging environment and volatile market conditions, we have taken steps 
across the company to reduce costs, improve e�ciencies, and increase performance levels. In 
fact, your company has had a strong focus on execution that is combined with fact-based 
decision-making and clear authority and accountability.

Your company capitalizes on its outstanding heritage and capabilities. With a strong customer 
emphasis, we are concentrating on expanding our reach in the retail market. We are driving 
manufacturing excellence, optimizing procurement strategies, enhancing our supply chain 
and improving our capital planning. At the same time, preserving our brand's vitality and 
identity to ensuring consumer loyalty over time is of paramount importance. I have no doubt 
that Amreli Steels’ multipronged business model and �awless execution will translate to 
unparalleled value creation for shareholders. 

I would like to recognize the e�orts of our executive management team for their prudent and 
insightful leadership during the past year and their ability to be �exible and react quickly 
when it became necessary to protect the business against various adversities. I would also like 
to expresses my gratitude for the e�orts of all our workers for their dedication and 
stakeholders for their trust in us. 

Finally, I would like to thank you for the unstinted support and unwearied con�dence in the 
company and look forward to taking the company to greater and newer heights in the future.

Yours sincerely,

Shayan Akberali
Chief Executive O�cer 

Dear Shareholders,

Shayan Akberali
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An annual evaluation of the Board of Directors’ overall performance is conducted in compliance with the requirement of 
the Code of Corporate Governance and the Companies Act, 2017. The purpose of this evaluation is to ensure that the 
Board of Directors’ (the Board) performance is measured in the context of overall corporate objectives and governance 
structure of the Company. For the �nancial year ended 30 June 2017, the Board’s overall performance and e�ectiveness 
has been assessed as ‘Satisfactory’. 

The following sections summarize how the overall performance of the Board is assessed as satisfactory in achieving 
Company’s objectives:

1. Corporate governance structure and Compliance with regulations

 The Company has a well-developed corporate governance system which is the combination of processes 
established and executed by the Board that are re�ected in the Company’s structure with the aim of achieving 
objectives of the Company as a whole to ensure compliance with all the statutory and regulatory requirements 
applicable upon the Company. 

 The General Meeting(s) of the Company is the highest decision-making body in the Company. The shareholders are 
responsible for appointing the Board Members at the General Meeting of the Company. The shareholders also 
appoint the external auditors in General Meeting(s) who report to the shareholders on the annual and half yearly 
�nancial performance of the Company in their annual auditors’ report and half-yearly review report respectively.

2. Board of Directors 

 The appointment, roles and responsibilities of the Board of the Company are outlined in Articles of Association of 
the Company. Throughout the year, the membership balance criteria set down in the Code of Corporate 
Governance in relation to executive, non-executive and independent members of the Board was maintained by the 
Company together with an appropriate level of skills, experience and capabilities across the membership. 

 The Board of the Company complies with all relevant rules and regulation. The Board comprises of well-known 
business professionals who add real value to the Board through their expertise, experience and strong value 
systems. The Board has laid down policies and procedures to ensure a professional corporate environment that 
promotes timely disclosure, accountability, high ethical standards, and compliance with applicable laws, 
regulations and corporate governance. 

 During the year under review, the Board has e�ectively discharged its responsibilities towards the Company and 
participated in all strategic a�airs diligently. All quarterly, half yearly and annual �nancial results were thoroughly 
reviewed and the Board extended its guidance to the management on regular basis. The Board also played a key 
role in monitoring of management performance and focus on major risk areas.

3. Committees to the Board 

 The Board’s Audit Committee and Human Resource & Remuneration Committee have also discharged their 
responsibilities as per relevant laws, norms and best practices throughout the year. The Board carefully monitors 
their performance on periodic basis. 

4. Vision, mission and values

 The Board members are familiar with the current vision, mission and values and support them. 

5. Engagement in strategic planning

 The Board has a clear understanding of its stakeholders and a strategic vision of how the organisation should be 
evolving over the next three to �ve years. The Board identi�es goals and targets for the management in all major 
performance areas and key indicators for tracking progress. 

6. Formulation of policies

 The Board has established policies that cover all essential areas of the Board’s responsibilities.

7. Monitoring of organisation's business activities

 The Board is aware of the Company’s current business activities. The Board is updated with respect to achievement 
of Company’s objectives, goals, strategies and �nancial performance through regular presentations by the 
management, internal and external auditors and other independent consultants. 

8. Monitor �nancial resources management 

 The Board is knowledgeable about key aspects relating to managing the �nancial resources of the Company and 
provides appropriate direction and oversight on a timely basis. The Board ensures that the budget re�ects the 
priorities established in the annual plan and the strategic plan. The Board complies with regulations governing the 
external audit/ review of annual and/ or interim accounts of the Company and pays due consideration to the 
recommendations made by the external auditors and internal auditors from time to time.

 Abbas Akberali

 Chairman
26 August 2017  

Chairman’s Report on Board’s Overall Performance 
(Under Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2017)



Directors’ Report to the Members

The Directors of your Company have the pleasure in presenting  you the annual report alongwith annual audited �nancial 
results of your Company for the year ended 30 June 2017. 

Overview of Global and Local Economic Scenario
 

Global Economic Overview 

According to a recent World Economic Outlook published by International Monetary Fund (IMF), the global economic 
activity is picking up with a long-awaited cyclical recovery in investment, manufacturing, and trade. World economic 
growth escalated from 3.1 percent in 2016 to 3.5 percent in 2017 and is expected to reach 3.6 percent in 2018 largely 
because of stronger activity, expectations of more robust global demand, reduced de�ationary pressures and optimistic 
�nancial markets. On the other hand, binding structural impediments, geo political risks and populist movements 
supporting a retreat from free trade will continue to hold back the strong recovery and the associated risks will remain 
challenging over the forthcoming period. 

China has already overtaken the US to become the world’s largest economy in Purchasing Power Parity (PPP) terms, while 
India currently stands in third place and is projected to overtake the US by 2050 in PPP terms. By 2050, France will no 
longer be among the world’s ten largest economies on this basis, with the UK falling to 10th place, while Indonesia could 
rise to 4th place by 2050. Thus, China still emerges as the largest economy in the world before 2030 and India will be the 
second largest in the world by 2050; so there is still a considerable shift in economic power towards Asia. By 2050, 
emerging economies such as Indonesia, Brazil and Mexico are likely to be larger than the UK and France, while Pakistan 
and Egypt could overtake Italy and Canada (on a PPP basis). In terms of growth, Vietnam, India and Bangladesh could be 
the fastest growing economies over the period to 2050, averaging growth of around 5% a year as per the PWC report. 

Global Steel

After a long and gloomy recession, 2017 has witnessed the �rst signs of recovery for a global steel industry that was 
battling with over capacity and weak demand. Global demand for �nished steel product is expected to expand 1.3 
percent in 2017 to 1.535 billion tons and a further 0.9 percent in 2018 to 1.549 billion tons. 

Demand has witnessed a modest pickup in the developed world, with the US increasing spending on infrastructure, 
Eurozone on the path to economic stability and Japan bene�ting from a weak Yen. Coupled with strong construction and 
infrastructure demand from emerging countries, 2017 has witnessed a hike in world steel prices. However, global steel 
industry growth is expected to stay range bound as China’s recent stimulus is expected to be short lived, oil prices likely to 
remain stagnant and a possible hike in interest rates by the US FED could cause capital out�ows from emerging countries. 

On the supply side, China’s cut in steel capacity remains modest and oversupply in the Chinese market will likely continue 
in the near future. However, due to remedial trade measures taken by many countries against dumped and subsidized 
Chinese steel imports, capacity utilization is once again picking up in steel producing nations. 

As a result, while there will be pockets of high growth, the growth of the overall steel industry will be restrained by various 
factors as mentioned above.

Pakistan’s Economic Overview

The economy of Pakistan has witnessed a smooth upward trend in growth rate during recent years. Real GDP growth was 
above 4 percent in 2013-14 and has smoothly increased during the last 4 years to reach 5.28 percent in 2016-17, which is 
the highest in the last 10 years. It is widely acknowledged that Pakistan has immense economic potential. According to a 
report published by PWC in 2017, Pakistan is projected to become the world’s 20th largest economy by 2030 and 16th 
largest by 2050. Several other reputed international publications such as Bloomberg, Economist etc. have also 
acknowledged the impressive economic gains of Pakistan in the last four years. After a decade of long slump, Pakistan’s 
economy surged past the $300 billion mark in the outgoing �scal year i.e. 2016-17. The economy grew at a rate of almost 
5.3 percent, the highest in the decade. 

The manufacturing sector in particular is the backbone of Pakistan’s economy and constitutes the second largest sector of 
economy contributing 13.5 percent to Gross Domestic Product (GDP) and generating the biggest number of industrial 
employment with technology transfer. The overall manufacturing sector continued to maintain its growth momentum with 
more vigor during the outgoing �scal year FY 2017. During FY 2017, it recorded an impressive growth of 5.3 percent against 
3.7 percent of last year which helped overall industrial sector to improve by 5.0 percent against 5.8 percent last year. 

Pakistan Steel Sector

Pakistan’s steel industry has been a key partner in laying the foundation for the country’s economic take o� and stands out 
in terms of growth amongst steel making nations worldwide. In 2016, Pakistan’s steel output grew the most among 40 
countries according to the World Steel Association. The industry speci�c data shows that the Iron & Steel sector recorded 
a growth of 16.58 percent during July-March FY 2017, with increasing capacity utilization and investment in new capacity. 

Growing construction activities across the corporate, commercial, residential and infrastructure sectors led the demand 
growth for steel in Pakistan. CPEC is a driving factor in the country’s economy and infrastructure projects, generally having 
a long gestation period, and will continue to drive demand for basic construction materials such as steel and cement. 
Moreover, urbanization and continued investment in the real estate sector has led to creation of mega housing and 
commercial complexes across the country. Finally, strong earnings of the corporate sector in general are driving horizontal 
and vertical expansion projects, which ultimately bene�t the construction sector. Such demand drivers remain the 
backbone of the economic impetus moving forward. 

Consequently, the improved energy supply allowed the steel industry to increase capacity utilization to meet the 
burgeoning demand. More importantly however, was the timely remedial trade measures taken by the GoP against 
dumped and subsidized steel imports that allowed local players to increase capacity utilization and announce new 
investments in a competitive and level playing �eld. 

The performance of cement remained encouraging and recorded a growth of 7.19 percent during July-March FY 2017. 
The cement industry, riding on robust domestic demand in the construction sector, is expected to increase capacity to 70 
million tons in the next 5 years. While Pakistan’s crude steel making capacity currently stands at 4 million tons, the industry 
is expected to add another 2 million tons over the next few years, resulting in a 50% increase in capacity. 

Your Company is best placed to take maximum advantage of this upsurge in demand for construction rebars with a major 
expansion project that is expected to come online by February 2018 and a brand that is already regarded as Pakistan’s 
largest selling brand of steel bars. 

Performance of Amreli Steels Limited

Operational performance

In the �nancial year 2016-2017, your Company recorded revenue of Rs. 13.28 billion as compared to Rs. 12.40 billion in the 
last �nancial year. Your Company was able to achieve its highest sales ever in terms of quantity, selling a total of 181,000 
tons of rebars in the market and in line with the strategy of increasing market share considering the major capacity 
expansion that is set to come online in February 2018. The increase in revenue was due to a 10.60% increase in quantity 
coupled with a 4.64% drop in price. The drop in sales price was the net e�ect of passing on the bene�t and cost of raw 
material prices to the consumer in di�erent corresponding period during the year. 

Both the plants producing quality billets at Dhabeji and quality rebars at SITE are running smoothly and operated at a 
capacity of  82% and 88% respectively and are expected to increase in the �nancial year 2017-2018.   

Your Company registered an after tax pro�t of Rs.1.074 billion, a decline in after tax pro�t of 16 % compared to the last 
�nancial year. Apart from a 4.64% drop in price, the decline in pro�t was attributable primarily to the sale of imported 
rebars at only 4.5% GP and unexpected changes in the taxation structure during the budget. Your Company was able to 
achieve a more sustainable GP of 18.6% as compared to 22.5% last �nancial year.

During the budget, Super Tax was once again levied which had an impact of Rs. 46.5 million on your Company’s earnings. 
Moreover, the bene�t of 20% tax credit on listing was split over 2 years rather than a single year so your Company was only 
allowed to avail 10% tax credit in FY 2017, which impacted net pro�tability by Rs. 48 million. Therefore, total unexpected 
impact on taxation was Rs. 94.5 million which translates to Rs. 0.32 impact on your Company’s EPS. 
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Financial performance 

A comparison of the key �nancial indicators of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2017 with corresponding year is 
as under: 

Status of Capacity Enhancment at Dhabeji

The management is glad to inform you that the enhancement and expansion of new rolling mill at Dhabeji and Steel Melt 
Shop expansion is nearly complete as per the revised timelines, which have already been communicated to Pakistan Stock 
Exchange Limited. 

The revised target month for hot commissioning and Commercial Operation Declaration are January 2018 and last week of 
February 2018 respectively. 

Future Outlook

To cater for the country’s growing steel requirements, Amreli Steels is entering into an exciting and challenging new phase 
as the new re-rolling mill at Dhabeji is expected to be online by the end of February 2018 along with the expansion in billet 
capacity. Your Company’s rebar capacity will be enhanced by 425,000 tons by end February 2018 and will be the �rst major 
expansion to come online in Pakistan’s steel industry in recent years. The new facility will enable further economies of scale 
and cost leadership that will help your Company penetrate steel markets across the country and increase market share in an 
industry where consolidation is inevitable. Moreover, the Board of Directors of your Company has principally approved the 
second phase of expansion plan of the Company in line with long term vision of the Company to be the “�rst million-ton 
quality rebar manufacturer of the country”. 

Not only is your Company expanding its manufacturing facilities, but the management is working to expand distribution 
channels, strengthen human resources, build a more e�cient supply chain, enhance the scope of SAP for more insightful 
access to data, and create a marketing campaign that builds awareness and preference. Such capacity building will build 
competitive advantages for your Company that will make for sustainable growth in the long run.

Corporate Governance and Financial Reporting Framework

The Board of Directors of the Company is dedicated to maintain high standards of good corporate governance. The 
Directors con�rm compliance with Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan and the Code of Corporate Governance. 

Following are the Statements on Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework:

(a)  The �nancial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present its state of a�airs fairly, the results 
of its operations, cash �ows and changes in equity.

(b)  Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the Company.

(c)  Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of �nancial statements and 
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgments.

(d)  International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of 
�nancial statements.

(e)  The system of internal control is sound in design and has been e�ectively implemented and monitored. The 
process of monitoring the internal controls will continue as an ongoing process with the objective to further 
strengthen the controls and bring improvements in the system.  

 (f )  There are no doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as going concern.

(g)  There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance, as detailed in the Listing 
Regulations.  

National Tari� Commission Imposed De�nitive Anti-Dumping Duty

The National Tari� Commission of Pakistan (NTCP) has recently determined that Continuous Casting Steel Billets (“CC Billets”) 
have been imported into Pakistan at dumped prices and the domestic industry manufacturing CC Billets has su�ered 
material injury on signi�cant increase in volume of dumped imports. Therefore, the NTCP has decided to impose de�nitive 
anti-dumping duty of 24.04% on CC Billets imported from China for a period of �ve years e�ective from 22 June 2017. 

Further, an application for imposition of Anti-Dumping Duty on rebars originating from China is under consideration by the 
NTCP and a decision for the same is expected in the near future. 

The imposition of the duty will result in a competitive advantage for the local industry which is engaged in supply of billets 
and/or melts its own billets in-house for manufacturing and sale of rebars. 

Diluted and Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Diluted and basic EPS of the Company stands at Rs.3.62 in the �nancial year 2016-2017, down from Rs.4.81 in the last 
�nancial year. 

Statement of Value Addition By The Company

Particulars 30 June 2017 30 June 2016

                         ………………Rupees in thousands………………

Sale Revenue 13,283,811 12,400,191

Gross Pro�t 2,468,187 2,791,955

Operating Pro�t 1,696,897 2,084,729

Pro�t Before Tax 1,445,313 1,749,195

Pro�t After Tax 1,074,053 1,278,749

Revenue from Sales

Revenue from other Income

Less: Bought in material and services

Value added by the Company

Salaries and bene�ts

Income tax, sales tax, excise duty, custom 
duty and others 

Mark-up

Depreciation

Dividend

Retained pro�ts

Particulars  

Source of Funds

Applied to

Employees

Government

Providers of Capital

Replacement of assets

Shareholders

Company

FY 2016

12,400,191,349

15,398,750

(8,064,296,950)

4,351,293,149

395,820,353

1,994,369,138

335,534,389

346,820,241

594,022,854

684,726,174

4,351,293,149

FY 2017

13,283,811,229

7,357,725

(8,720,208,965)

4,570,959,989

524,626,760

2,399,386,389

251,583,475

321,310,661

594,022,854

480,029,850

4,570,959,989
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Meetings and Attendance of the Board of Directors

During the year, �ve (5) Board of Directors’ meetings, four (4) Audit Committee meetings and three (3) Human Resource & 
Remuneration (HR&R) Committee meetings were held. 

Attendance by each director was as follows:

Name of Director

Mr.   Abbas Akberali
Mr.  Badar Kazmi
Mr.  Shayan Akberali
Mr.  Zafar Ahmed Taji
Mr. Teizoon Kisat *
Mr.  Mirza Qamar Beg *
Ms.  Kinza Shayan
Ms. Mariam Akberali

Board of Directors
(Attendance)

4/5
3/5
5/5
5/5
2/3
0/1
5/5
2/5

Audit Committee 
(Attendance)

N/A
2/4
N/A
N/A
2/2
0/1
4/4
N/A

HR & R Committee
(Attendance)

N/A
2/3
3/3
3/3
N/A
N/A
N/A
0/3

Annual Report 2017 5857 Annual Report 2017

Leave of absence was granted to the members of the Board who were unable to attend the meetings of Board of Directors 
and/or Committees to the Board. 

*Mr. Teizoon Kisat was appointed as a member of the Board of Directors as well as a member of the Audit Committee by the 
Board of Directors in the Board of Directors’ Meeting held on 26 October 2016 to �ll the casual vacancy arose as a result of 
resignation by Mr. Mirza Qamar Beg which was approved by the Board of Directors in the Board Meeting held on 09 
September 2016. 

Directors’ Training Program

The orientation courses for directors as and when needed to apprise them of their duties and responsibilities are arranged 
by the Board. The incoming director was provided with appropriate brie�ng and orientation material to enable him 
�rst-hand knowledge on the operations of the Company.

Five directors of the Company have attended the directors’ training program conducted by the Pakistan Institute of 
Corporate Governance and the remaining two directors will acquire the required directors’ training within the time 
speci�ed in the CCG. 

Employees’ Retirement Bene�ts

The Company has an un-approved and unfunded de�ned gratuity scheme for all permanent employees who have 
completed the minimum qualifying years of service for entitlement of gratuity. The provision for gratuity is made in 
accordance with the independent actuarial valuation. The latest actuarial valuation was carried out as of 30 June 2017 using 
Projected Unit Credit Method. 

The Corporate Governance Practices

The Board of Directors of the Company is committed to the principles of good Corporate Governance. The stakeholders 
expect that the Company is managed and supervised responsibly and proper internal controls and risk management policy 
and procedures are in place for e�cient and e�ective operations of the Company, safeguarding of assets, compliance with 
laws and regulations and proper �nancial reporting in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Dividend And Appropriations

Based on these results, the Board recommends a �nal cash dividend of Rs. 2 per share (i.e. 20%) for the year ended 30 June 
2017.

Contribution to National Exchequer

The Company contributed Rs. 2.303 billion (FY 2016: Rs. 1.733 billion) towards the National Exchequer on account of various 
government levies, taxes and import duties in the year under review. Payment of these taxes is 2.14 times more than the net 
pro�t after tax of the Company and up by 33% as against last year which shows the Company's positive attitude towards 
economic development as a good responsible corporate citizen.

Auditors

The present auditors, Messrs. EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants are retiring at the conclusion of the forthcoming 
annual general meeting and o�er themselves for re-appointment. The Board has endorsed the re-appointment of Messrs. 
EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants as auditors of the Company for the year ending 30 June 2018.

Pattern of Shareholding

The Pattern of shareholdings as at 30 June 2017 is enclosed with this Directors’ Report. 

The Directors, executives and their spousese and minor children have made no transactions of the Company's shares during 
the year. 

Executives mean Chief Executive O�cer, Chief Operating O�cer, Chief Financial O�cer, Company Secretary and Head of 
Internal Audit. 

Code of Conduct

The Code of Conduct of the Company de�nes what we stand for and believe in, documenting the uncompromisingly high 
ethical standards our Company has upheld since its foundation. Strong business ethics forms the basis for all of our 
relationships with employees, customers, competitors, suppliers and colleagues. It is a fundamental policy of the Company 
to conduct its business with honesty, integrity and in accordance with the highest ethical and legal standards. 

The Code is reviewed annually and any changes therein are approved by the Board. The Code is communicated at all levels 
in the organization fairly and with no exception and is available on the Company's website. The responsibility for day to day 
implementation and monitoring of the Code is delegated to the senior management.

Operating & Financial Data

Operating and �nancial data and key ratios of the Company for the last six years are annexed.

Communication With Shareholders

Communication with the shareholders is given a high priority. Annual, half yearly and quarterly reports are distributed to 
them within the time speci�ed in the Companies Act, 2017 (Formerly: Companies Ordinance, 1984). The Company also has 
a website, www.amrelisteels.com, which contains up to date information on Company's activities, �nancial reports, notices 
and announcements. 

Acknowledgement

The Board expresses its gratitude to all the shareholders for their con�dence and support. We would like to thank all 
stakeholders, including �nancial institutions, who have been associated with us, for their support and cooperation and we 
assure all stakeholders of our commitment to look after their respective interests. We would like to thank the management 
and employees for their sincere contributions and their tireless e�orts in driving the Company on the path of growth.

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

                    Shayan Akberali                          Badar Kazmi
              Chief Executive O�cer           Director

Date:   26 August 2017
Place:  Karachi
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12,400,191

2,791,955

2,084,729

1,749,195

1,278,749

13,283,811

2,468,187

1,696,897

1,445,313

1,074,053

………………………………

12,400,191,349

15,398,750

(8,064,296,950)

4,351,293,149

13,283,811,229

7,357,725

(8,720,208,965)

4,570,959,989

395,820,353

1,994,369,138

335,534,389

346,820,241

594,022,854

684,726,174

4,351,293,149

524,626,760

2,399,386,389

251,583,475

321,310,661

594,022,854

480,029,850

4,570,959,989
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4. Con�icts of Interest: 

 The Company expects that all personnel will 
perform their duties conscientiously, honestly, and 
in accordance with the best interests of the 
Company. The Company personnel must not use 
their positions or the knowledge gained as a result 
of their positions for private or personal advantage. 

 Regardless of the circumstances, if directors/ 
employees sense that a course of action they have 
pursued, or are presently pursuing, or are 
contemplating pursuing may involve them in a 
con�ict of interest with their employer, they should 
immediately communicate all the facts to their 
supervisor or to the Board as the case may be.

5. Company Policies

 The Company maintains speci�c policies 
applicable to its personnel. All Company personnel 
must become and remain familiar with all 
applicable Company policies and abide by them as 
they may change from time to time, which will also 
be communicated by HR department accordingly.

6. Work Environment

 The policy of the company is to provide a working 
environment free of discrimination and 
harassment in which individuals are accorded 
equality of employment opportunity based upon 
merit and ability. 

 Discriminatory practices based on race, sex, color, 
national or ethnic origin, religion, marital status, 
family status, age or disability will not be tolerated.

 It is not a discriminatory practice to make a 
distinction between persons based on bona �de 
occupational requirements. Since bona �de 
occupational requirements are narrowly de�ned, 
such distinctions should not be undertaken 
without �rst obtaining express authorization from 
the relevant management level.

7. Communications and Involvement

 We have a long tradition of encouraging direct, 
two-way involvement of and communication with 
employees. This is in order to obtain the fullest 
participation of everyone's energy and views and 
we believe is best promoted within the local 
workplace through locally-based information and 
consultation procedures. 

8. Conduct and Behavior Standards

 All Company personnel are expected to contribute 
to the success of the Company by performing their 
responsibilities as required and conduct 
themselves in a professional manner consistent 
with the Company’s business philosophy, values 
and standards of business conduct. Employees’ 

 honesty and integrity are essential to ethical 
business practices. 

9. Con�dentiality

 Con�dential business information must not be 
shared with others outside the company or used 
for the personal gain of oneself or others. Company 
personnel, their family and close acquaintances 
should not buy or sell company shares if they have 
material information that has not been made 
public and could a�ect the share price. 

 We expect the company personnel to keep all 
information con�dential. This might include plans 
to buy or sell business, product formulation, 
manufacturing processes, advertising, marketing 
plans, concepts, research and development, 
suppliers, customers, �nancial information, 
personnel and employment matters, and other 
information which is not generally known to the 
public.

10. Inside Information

 The company personnel shall not use for their own 
�nancial gain or disclose for the use of others, 
inside information obtained as a result of their 
position within the company.   

 The company personnel may �nd themselves in 
violation of the applicable securities laws if they 
misuse information not generally known to the 
public and either trade or induce others to trade in 
the stock of the company or in the stock of another 
company. 

 Speci�c con�dential information would include 
�nancial information, information concerning 
acquisitions or dispositions of properties and 
proposed acquisition or mergers with other 
companies. 

 In case of this breach of con�dentiality, the 
Company may be subjected to regulatory penalties 
and therefore, to prevent and address such 
instances, it may consider disciplinary and legal 
recourse. 

11. Political Activities

 The Company neither supports political parties nor 
contributes to the funds of groups whose activities 
are calculated to promote party interests. No 
contributions to a political candidate or public 
o�cial with the funds or assets or in the name of 
the Company are allowed, including direct or 
indirect contributions or payments made through 
third parties such as suppliers or customers. The 
company personnel shall ensure their 
non-indulgence or any appearance for any political 
activities. 

INTRODUCTION
The Code of Conduct of the Company de�nes what we 
stand for and believe in, documenting the uncompromisingly
high ethical standards our Company has upheld since its 
foundation. 

Strong business ethics should form the basis for all of our 
relationships with employees, customers, competitors, 
suppliers and colleagues. It is a fundamental policy of the 
Company to conduct its business with honesty, integrity 
and in accordance with the highest ethical and legal 
standards. 

Here we clearly state our business principles and show 
their impact on everyone involved with the company; 
from the Board, management and employees, to the 
consumers, suppliers and business partners. These 
principles highlight our responsibility to: 

• Maintain the highest degree of Corporate 
Governance practices;

• Conduct our business activities with the highest 
principles of honesty, integrity, truthfulness and 
honor; 

• Conduct all business activities strictly on an arm’s 
length business basis; 

• Promote ethical business practices; 

• Respect the environment and communities in 
which we operate;

• Assure equal employment opportunities; 

• Value diversity in the workplace;

• Provide healthy and safe working environments; 

• Respect human rights and trade ethically;

• Act in utmost good faith and exercise due care, 
diligence and integrity in performing the o�ce 
duties; 

• Comply both in letter and in spirit with all 
applicable laws and regulations;

• Ensure that all business transactions are recorded 
in true, fair and timely fashion in accordance with 
the accounting and �nancial reporting standards, 
as applicable to the Company; 

• Refrain from involvement in any other similar 
business which consumes their time, e�orts and 
energy without disclosure and approval of 
Company’s management; 

• Ensure that company personnel protect the 
Company’s assets and properties including 
physical assets, information and intellectual rights 
and not use the same for their personal gain; 

• Maintain con�dentiality of information entrusted 
by the Company or acquired during performance 
of their duties and shall not use it for personal gain 
or advantage; 

• Avoid providing any information either formally or 
informally, to the press or any other publicity media 
or any other person whosoever, unless speci�cally 
authorized; 

• Avoid utilization of  bribery or corruption in 
conducting the Company’s business; 

• Avoid receiving any gift, payments or favor in 
whatsoever form from Company's business 
associates, which can be perceived as being given 
to gain favor or dealing with the Company and 
shall ensure that the Company's interests are never 
compromised; 

• Ensure that Company personnel abide by all job 
descriptions, contracts, agreements, terms of 
reference, standard operating procedures, and 
directives duly approved and enforced by the 
Company

1. Applicability

 The Code applies to the following (collectively 
termed as “Company Personnel” for the purposes 
of this Code):

• Members of the Board of Directors

• Senior Management Personnel

• All employees of the Company

2. Compliance with laws, rules and regulations

 The Company and its personnel are bound by the 
law. Compliance with all applicable laws and 
regulations must never be compromised. 
Additionally Company personnel shall adhere to 
internal rules and regulations as they apply in a 
given situation. Those internal rules are speci�c to 
the Company and may go beyond what is required 
by the law.

3. Consequences of Non-Compliance of Code

 Any breach of the Code, Terms of Appointment, 
Company’s polices, Rules and Regulations or any 
acts of misconduct and fraud or embezzlement will 
be viewed seriously and may invite disciplinary 
action, including the termination of employment 
and criminal prosecution, if required. For the said 
purpose, all Company polices and rules will also be 
deemed to be an integral part of this Code.

Code of Conduct



12. Health and Safety

 We recognize the importance of health and safety 
within our business. We seek to provide a healthy, 
safe and clean working environment in line with 
local laws, regulations and industrial practice. We 
measure, appraise and report performance, as part 
of our commitment to the health and safety of our 
employees, contractors and everyone who works 
on or visits our sites.

 We should take such steps that are reasonably 
practicable, to ensure that they meet our health 
and safety objectives. These are -

• To provide and maintain safe and healthy 
working places and systems of work in 
order to protect all company personnel and 
others, including visitors and the public, in 
so far as they come into contact with 
foreseeable work hazards.

• To provide and maintain a safe and healthy 
working environment for all Company 
personnel, taking into account individuals' 
needs and abilities.

• To develop safety awareness amongst all 
Company personnel to enable them to take 
reasonable care for their own health and 
safety and of other people who may be 
a�ected by their acts or omissions.

13. Consumers

 We are committed to providing consumers with 
high-quality, wholesome products which are 
marketed truthfully, labeled clearly, and, as a 
minimum, meet domestic and global quality and 
safety regulations.

14. Suppliers

 The Company is con�dent that its suppliers desire 
to operate in an environment that is free from 
in�uence due to unethical business practices. 
Therefore, suppliers are expected to conduct 
business in a manner that would not, in any way, 
compromise the ethical principles adopted by the 
Company. To ensure this, the Company may convey 
its ethics requirements to its suppliers directly and 
also hold trainings and orientations for this 
purpose.

15. Competition and Trade Practice Standards

 We are committed to free and open competition. 
We compete in market vigorously, but in an honest 
manner. Our e�orts in the marketplace shall be 
conducted in a fair and ethical manner in strict 
compliance with applicable competition and trade 
practice laws and regulations. 

 Under no circumstances shall any company 
personnel be a party to any collusion or concerted 
e�ort of any type involving any competitor vendor, 
supplier, customer or other party, which is in 
restraint of trade or violation of laws and 
regulations designed to foster competition. 
Because laws relating to competition are complex, 
company personnel should refer matters about 
what they are in doubt to their superior or should 
seek the advice of the Company’s counsel or the 
Board, if so dictated by the signi�cance of the 
uncertainty.

16. Company Personnel

 It is the obligation of every employee to be a 
responsible employee; that is, to be honest, 
trustworthy, conscientious, and dedicated to the 
highest standards of ethical business practices. The 
company personnel have a legal, moral and ethical 
responsibility to report to the Company, or the 
appropriate authorities, any known or suspected 
violations of law, regulations, or corporate policy.

 The company personnel representing the 
Company to third parties shall not allow 
themselves to be placed in a position in which an 
actual or apparent con�ict of interest exists. Such 
con�ict of interest may arise, or appear to arise, by 
reason of the employees ' acceptance of gratuities, 
favors or other valuable bene�ts which could 
improperly in�uence or reasonably be interpreted 
as improperly in�uencing sound business 
decisions. 

17. Integrity and Professionalism

 The Company personnel should remember that 
they are a re�ection on the Company and are 
constantly being judged or otherwise appraised by 
everyone they come in contact with. All Company 
Personnel should conduct themselves with the 
highest degree of integrity and professionalism in 
the workplace or any other location while on 
Company business.

18. Personal Conduct 

 The Company personnel shall be careful while 
dealing with personal or business associates and 
not disclose, divulge or provide any information 
regarding the company to anyone except where 
the same is used as a part of his/her o�cial 
obligations and as required for o�cial purpose and 
shall abide by the closed period announced by the 
Company from time to time and also sign a Non- 
Disclosure Agreement if the need arises. 

 All company personnel should avoid any kind of 
bribery, extortion and all other forms of corruption. 

 The Company personnel should always be 
cognizant of the need to adhere strictly to all safety 
policies and regulations. 

 Any legally prohibited or controlled substances if 
found in the possession of any company personnel 
will be con�scated and where appropriate, turned 
over to the authorities. 

19. Accounting Records, Controls & Statements 

 All books, records, accounts and statements should 
conform to generally accepted and applicable 
accounting principles and to all applicable laws 
and regulations and should be maintained 
accurately. 

 Company personnel are expected to sign only 
documents or records which they believe to be 
accurate and truthful. 

 Employees are responsible for the proper use, 
protection and maintaining of Company assets 
including intellectual property (e.g. patents, 
trademarks and designs). Company assets may 
only be used in relation to the Company’s business. 

20. Community Activities

 We recognize our responsibilities as a member of 
the community in which we operate and commit 
resources to support community and social 
investment through national or locally targeted 
programs in partnership with others. We will also 
encourage and support employee e�orts to be 
involved in and provide leadership in the 
educational and social fabric of the communities in 
which they live.

21. Protection of the Environment 

 The Company personnel shall treat the protection 
of the environment as an integral factor in all 
decision making.  The Company is committed to 
the protection of the environment. To comply with   
this commitment, the Company’s policy is to meet 
or exceed all applicable governmental 
requirements. Employees must report to their 
superior all circumstances in which toxic 
substances are spilled or released into the 
environment. 

 Violations of environmental laws, even if 
unintentional, can carry severe penalties, and could 
result in the prosecution of the Company or the 
employees involved or both. Failure to comply with 
the Company’s instructions for the protection of 
the environment may result in disciplinary actions.

22. Miscellaneous

 All Company personnel are required to comply 
with this code of conduct and are personally 
responsible for doing so. The Company personnel 
must comply with any rules set out in this code of 
conduct. Breach of any principle within the code 
may result in disciplinary action and a serious 
breach – such as if any employee is found to be in 
wanton abuse of the code and their action cause 
reputational risk or damage or �nancial loss to the 
business – may amount to gross misconduct which 
may result in summary dismissal. Further, the 
Company reserves the right to seek redress and 
damages from such individuals. 

Endorsement

As required by the Listing Regulations, every person to 
whom this Code applies shall endorse the Code of the 
Company. The Company's reputation and its actions as a 
legal entity depend on the conduct of the company 
personnel. Accordingly, each employee must commit to 
act according to the highest ethical standards and to 
know and abide by applicable laws. The Code will be 
enforced at all levels in the Organization fairly and with no 
exception.
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Amreli Steels Limited (“Company”) is committed to the highest standards of transparency, honesty, openness and 
accountability. In order to ensure compliance with the best practices of the corporate governance, the Company has 
incorporated a Whistle-blowing Policy (“Policy”) to detect, identify and report any activity which is not in line with the 
company policies, any misuse of Company’s properties or any breach of law which may a�ect the reputation of the 
Company. 

The Policy applies to all employees, management and the Board, and extends to every individual associated with the 
Company including contractors, suppliers, business partners and the shareholders who are encouraged to report serious 
concerns that could have a signi�cant impact on the Organization, such as – 

 • Unlawful civil or criminal o�ence;

 • Failure to comply with statutory obligations/requirements;

 • Financial or non-�nancial mismanagement, fraud and corruption, including bribery;

 • Violation of various corporate policies-governing business conduct;

 • Violation of Health, Safety & Environmental standards applicable to the business;

 • Harassment, discrimination or other unfair employment practices; 

 • Attempt to conceal or suppress information relating to the above.

Open and candid communication is an important part of our culture. All concerns are to be made in writing to ensure a 
clear understanding of the issues being raised. Whistle-blowers may report their concerns through the following 
methods:-

 • E-mail – whistleblowing@amrelisteels.com, which shall only be accessible to the Whistleblowing Unit

 • Mail – Captioned ‘Whistle-blowing Unit’ – Registered O�ce, A-18, S.I.T.E. Karachi’. 

The Whistle-blowing Unit shall comprise of the CEO and other senior o�cials of the Company nominated by the Board of 
Directors.

Every e�ort will be made to maintain the con�dentiality of complainants and to protect them from any form of retaliation, 
reprisal or victimization for genuinely held concerns that are raised in good faith. At the same time, it should be noted that 
unfounded allegations made recklessly, maliciously or knowing that they were false can expose the complainant to 
disciplinary action.

It is expected that all complaints will be lodged with proper identi�cation. Anonymous complaints will also be accepted, 
however, the decision to take them up lies with the whistle-blowing unit depending on their nature and urgency. 

The Company undertakes that all complaints will be investigated con�dentially by independent persons and feedback 
will be provided to the complainant. Deliberately making a false concern is also an allegation under this Policy and may 
lead to a disciplinary action against complainant. 

The Board reserves its right to amend or modify this Policy in whole or in part, at any time without assigning any reason 
whatsoever. 

Whistle-blowing Policy

Assets Employed 

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible Assets
Long term investments
Long term deposit 
Current assets
Total Assets

Financed By 

Shareholders' Equity
Surplus on Revaluation of Fixed Assets
Long-term liabilities
 Long term �nance
 Current portion of long term �nance

Non-current and deferred liabilites

Current liabilities
Current portion of long term �nance

Total Funds Invested

Operations

Turnover 
Gross Pro�t 
Operating Pro�t 
EBITDA 
Pro�t before tax
Pro�t after tax 
Total Comprehensive Income 
Capital Expenditures (addition during the year) 
EPS

Cash Flow Summary

Net Cash Generated from / (used in)  Operating Activities 
Net Cash Generated from / (used in) Investing Activities 
Net Cash Generated from / (used in) Financing Activities 
Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of the Year

 Financial Position 

2017  

 12,253 
 20 
 15 

 129 
 5,791 

 18,209 

 9,391 
 1,755 

 712 
 310 

 1,022 

 1,222 

 5,129 
 (310)

 4,819 

 18,209 

 13,284 
 2,468 
 1,697 
 2,025 
 1,445 
 1,074 
 1,050 
 4,133 

 3.62 

2017
 3,649 

 (4,133)
 172 

 (312)
 70 

2016  

 8,442 
 27 
 15 

  131 
 8,150 

 16,765 

 8,861 
 1,830 

 525 
 484 

 1,008 

 1,212 

 4,339 
 (484)

 3,856 

 16,765 

 12,400 
 2,792 
 2,085 
 2,437 
 1,749 
 1,279 
 1,288 
 1,292 

 4.81 

2016
 (987)

 (1,293)
 2,582 

 301 
 381 

2015  

 7,504 
 24 
 15 

 130 
 4,589 

 12,262 

 3,952 
 1,919 

 1,150 
 952 

 2,102 

 1,005 

 4,236 
 (952)

 3,284 

 12,262 

 14,414 
 2,493 
 1,940 
 2,233 
 1,272 
 1,011 
 1,003 

 192 
 4.54 

2015
 1,089 
 (206)
 (867)

 16 
 80 

2014  

 7,566 
 -   

 15 
 133 

 3,411 
 11,126 

 2,879 
 1,960 

 2,049 
 550 

 2,599 

 932 

 3,308 
 (550)

 2,757 

 11,126 

 11,962 
 1,373 
 1,008 
 1,304 

 377 
 249 
 260 
 123 
 1.12 

2014
 1,727 

 (96)
 (1,645)

 (14)
 63 

(Re-Stated)      
2013  

 7,779 
 1 
 -  

 218 
 3,803 

 11,800 

 2,544 
 2,065 

 1,584 
 493 

 2,077 

 1,050 

 4,557 
 (493)

 4,063 

 11,800 

 10,622 
 1,161 

 826 
 1,133 

 174 
 121 
 105 
 167 
 0.54 

2013
 (76)

 (189)
 306 

 41 
 77 

2012  

 7,926 
 1 
 1 

 210 
 2,734 

 10,873 

 2,363 
 2,141 

 2,020 
 334 

 2,354 

 1,134 

 3,215 
 (334)

 2,881 

 10,873 

 7,209 
 981 
 719 
 949 
 130 

 90 
 90 

 771 
 0.40  

2012
 (297)
 (736)

 1,053 
 19 
 36 

Six Years at a Glance
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  Balance Sheet

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Share Capital and Reserves 

Issued, Subscribed & Paid up Share Capital 
Un-appropriate pro�t 

Surplus on revaluation of PPE 

Non Current Liabilities 
Long term borrowings 
Finance lease 
Deferred Liabilities 
Deferred Taxation 
Other �nancial liability 

Current Liabilities 
Trade & other payables 
Mark-up accrued 
Short term borrowings 
Current Portion of long term borrowings 
Current Portion of  �nance lease 
Taxation - Net

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

ASSETS 

Non-Current Assets 

Property, plant, equipment & other assets 
Intangibles 
Long term deposits 

Current Assets
Stores & Spares 
Stock in trade 
Trade debts 
Loan, Advances, deposits and prepayments 
Other receivables 
Short-term investment 
Tax refund due from government 
Cash and bank balances 

TOTAL ASSETS 

Horizontal Analysis

Vertical & Horizontal Analysis

2017
Vs   

2016

0.00%
9.00%
5.98%

-4.08%
4.26%

35.76%
0.00%

62.02%
-3.03%
0.00%

11.39%

3.48%
16.89%
33.06%

-35.85%
0.00%

100.00%
18.21%

8.61%

45.15%
-23.71%

-1.54%
44.15%

3.22%
-22.81%
-29.72%
-62.09%
-58.75%

-100.00%
-100.00%

-14.26%
-28.95%

-8.61%

2016 
Vs    

2015

33.33%
241.54%
124.19%

-4.65%
82.08%

-54.40%
0.00%
7.47%

22.53%
-100.00%

-19.44%

9.25%
-41.70%
23.27%

-49.21%
0.00%
0.00%
2.43%

36.72%

12.49%
9.85%
1.21%

12.27%

18.74%
93.86%
78.79%
28.19%
28.35%

0.00%
-14.76%

1.76%
77.62%

36.72%

2015 
Vs    

2014

0.00%
164.75%

37.28%

-2.08%
21.34%

-43.86%
-100.00%

44.68%
12.86%

178.58%
-27.69%

13.14%
-16.56%
27.62%
73.07%

-100.00%
0.00%

28.07%

10.21%

-0.82%
5955.97%

-2.35%
-0.54%

13.57%
45.32%
24.53%

-11.70%
186.94%

0.00%
-26.35%
25.61%
34.51%

10.21%

2014 
Vs    

2013

0.00%
106.04%

13.18%

-5.12%
4.98%

29.33%
-67.97%
14.26%

1.45%
-81.38%
13.13%

13.68%
6.12%

-43.98%
11.50%

-52.51%
0.00%

-27.41%

-5.71%

-2.73%
-44.70%
-38.88%

-3.53%

12.44%
-23.77%
62.69%
14.22%

-70.84%
-100.00%

-2.13%
-18.07%
-10.30%

-5.71%

2013 
Vs    

2012

0.00%
133.81%

7.66%

-3.54%
2.34%

-21.58%
-36.87%
60.95%
-0.92%

100.00%
-16.47%

-4.72%
9.01%

63.31%
47.77%
13.78%

0.00%
41.72%

8.53%

-1.86%
-30.96%

3.55%
-1.74%

17.15%
24.37%
50.72%
18.72%

175.23%
0.00%

96.20%
113.63%

39.08%

8.53%

2012 
Vs    

2011

0.00%
259.79%

4.31%

119.57%
39.00%

4.02%
615.31%

41.90%
442.57%

0.00%
46.61%

24.11%
43.44%
92.89%

127.05%
683.64%

0.00%
73.66%

50.12%

46.70%
6.04%

90.45%
47.56%

72.63%
85.36%

5.70%
-20.75%
568.96%

0.00%
-28.26%
106.77%

58.28%

50.12%

Vertical & Horizontal Analysis

  Balance Sheet

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Share Capital and Reserves 

Issued, Subscribed & Paid up Share Capital 
Un-appropriate pro�t 

Surplus on revaluation of PPE 

Non Current Liabilities 
Long term borrowings 
Finance lease 
Deferred Liabilities 
Deferred Taxation 
Other �nancial liability 

Current Liabilities 
Trade & other payables 
Mark-up accrued 
Short term borrowings 
Current Portion of long term borrowings 
Current Portion of  �nance lease 
Taxation - Net

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

ASSETS 

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant, equipment & other assets 
Intangibles 
Long term investment 
Long term deposits 

Current Assets 
Stores & Spares 
Stock in trade 
Trade debts 
Loan, Advances, deposits and prepayments 
Other receivables 
Short-term investment 
Tax refund due from government 
Cash and bank balances 

TOTAL ASSETS 

Vertical Analysis

2017

Audited

16.31%
35.26%
51.57%

9.64%
61.21%

3.91%
0.00%
0.64%
6.07%
0.00%

10.62%

6.14%
0.31%

19.92%
1.70%
0.00%
0.09%

28.17%

100.00%

67.29%
0.11%
0.08%
0.71%

68.20%

3.40%
18.70%

7.99%
0.36%
0.97%
0.00%
0.00%
0.38%

31.80%

100.00%

2016

Audited

17.72%
35.13%
52.85%

10.91%
63.76%

3.13%
0.00%
0.43%
6.80%
0.00%

10.36%

6.45%
0.29%

16.26%
2.88%
0.00%
0.00%

25.88%

100.00%

50.35%
0.16%
0.09%
0.78%

51.39%

3.58%
26.30%
12.35%

1.04%
2.55%
1.79%
0.51%
0.48%

48.61%

100.00%

2015

Audited

18.17%
14.07%
32.23%

15.65%
47.88%

9.38%
0.00%
0.55%
7.58%
0.06%

17.58%

8.07%
0.67%

18.04%
7.76%
0.00%
0.00%

34.54%

100.00%

61.20%
0.20%
0.12%
1.06%

62.58%

4.12%
18.55%

9.44%
1.11%
2.72%
0.00%
0.83%
0.65%

37.42%

100.00%

2014

Audited

20.02%
5.85%

25.88%

17.61%
43.49%

18.41%
0.52%
0.42%
7.41%
0.03%

26.79%

7.86%
0.89%

15.58%
4.94%
0.46%
0.00%

29.73%

100.00%

68.00%
0.00%
0.14%
1.19%

69.34%

4.00%
14.07%

8.36%
1.39%
1.04%
0.00%
1.23%
0.57%

30.66%

100.00%

2013
(Re-Stated)

Audited

18.88%
2.68%

21.56%

17.50%
39.06%

13.42%
1.55%
0.34%
6.88%
0.13%

22.33%

6.52%
0.79%

26.22%
4.18%
0.91%
0.00%

38.62%

100.00%

65.92%
0.01%
0.00%
1.84%

67.77%

3.35%
17.40%

4.84%
1.14%
3.38%
0.26%
1.19%
0.66%

32.23%

100.00%

 2012 

 Audited 

20.49%
1.24%

21.73%

19.69%
41.42%

18.58%
2.66%
0.23%
7.54%
0.00%

29.01%

7.43%
0.79%

17.42%
3.07%
0.86%
0.00%

29.57%

100.00%

72.90%
0.01%
0.01%
1.93%

74.85%

3.11%
15.19%

3.49%
1.05%
1.33%
0.00%
0.66%
0.33%

25.15%

100.00%



Vertical & Horizontal Analysis Vertical & Horizontal Analysis

  Pro�t and Loss

Turnover - net

Cost of sales

Gross Pro�t

Trading income

Distribution cost

Administrative cost

Other operating income

Other charges

Operating Pro�t

Finance cost

Pro�t/(loss) before taxation 

Taxation

Pro�t/(loss) after taxation 

Other Comprehensive income

Total Comprehensive Income

Vertical Analysis

2017

100.00%

-81.42%

18.58%

0.00%

-2.54%

-2.45%

0.06%

-0.88%

12.77%

-1.89%

10.88%

-2.79%

8.09%

-0.18%

7.90%

2016

100.00%

-77.48%

22.52%

0.00%

-2.75%

-1.74%

0.12%

-1.33%

16.81%

-2.71%

14.11%

-3.79%

10.31%

0.07%

10.39%

2015

100.00%

-82.70%

17.30%

0.00%

-1.95%

-1.44%

0.24%

-0.69%

13.46%

-4.63%

8.82%

-1.81%

7.02%

-0.06%

6.96%

2014

100.00%

-88.53%

11.47%

0.00%

-1.62%

-1.34%

0.17%

-0.25%

8.43%

-5.28%

3.15%

-1.07%

2.08%

0.09%

2.17%

2013

100.00%

-89.07%

10.93%

0.01%

-1.60%

-1.45%

0.02%

-0.15%

7.77%

-6.14%

1.63%

-0.49%

1.14%

-0.15%

0.99%

2012

100.00%

-86.39%

13.61%

0.01%

-1.52%

-2.14%

0.19%

-0.18%

9.98%

-8.17%

1.81%

-0.56%

1.25%

0.00%

1.25%

  Pro�t and Loss

Turnover - net

Cost of sales

Gross Pro�t

Trading income

Distribution cost

Administrative cost

Other operating income

Other charges

Operating Pro�t

Finance cost

Pro�t/(loss) before taxation 

Taxation

Pro�t/(loss) after taxation 

Other Comprehensive income

Total Comprehensive Income

Horizontal Analysis

2017 Vs
2016

7.13%

12.57%

-11.60%

0.00%

-1.19%

50.19%

-52.22%

-29.37%

-18.60%

-25.02%

-17.37%

-21.08%

-16.01%

-371.22%

-18.50%

2016 Vs
2015

-13.97%

-19.40%

11.97%

0.00%

21.47%

3.91%

-55.75%

65.73%

7.48%

-49.75%

37.53%

80.49%

26.46%

-207.07%

28.42%

2015 Vs
 2014

20.49%

12.56%

81.65%

0.00%

44.62%

30.03%

72.28%

230.40%

92.35%

5.75%

237.41%

104.37%

305.44%

-182.16%

286.18%

2014 Vs
 2013

12.62%

11.94%

18.19%

-100.00%

14.55%

4.05%

845.95%

93.42%

22.10%

-3.20%

117.17%

143.30%

105.87%

-164.34%

146.83%

2013 Vs
 2012

47.34%

51.90%

18.39%

25.68%

55.17%

-0.34%

-84.70%

20.78%

14.79%

10.73%

33.18%

30.16%

34.53%

0.00%

16.82%

2012 Vs
 2011

32.72%

25.59%

107.58%

-39.04%

103.26%

36.82%

-25.23%

58.64%

126.08%

129.71%

111.02%

-32.56%

4305.70%

0.00%

4305.70%
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Net Cash Generated from / (used in)  Operating Activities 

Net Cash Generated from / (used in) Investing Activities 

Net Cash Generated from / (used in) Financing Activities 

Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Vertical Analysis

2017

Audited

-1171%

1327%

-55%

100% 

2016

Audited

-328%

-429%

857%

100%

2015

Audited

6702%

-1266%

-5336%

100%

2014

Audited

-12342%

688%

11754%

100%

2013
(Re-Stated)

Audited

-185%

-459%

743%

100%

Net Cash Generated from / (used in)  Operating Activities 

Net Cash Generated from / (used in) Investing Activities 

Net Cash Generated from / (used in) Financing Activities 

Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Horizontal Analysis

2017 Vs
 2016

-470%

220%

-93%

-203%

2016 Vs
 2015

-191%

528%

-398%

1755%

2015 Vs
 2014

-37%

114%

-47%

-216%

2014 Vs
 2013

-2371%

-49%

-637%

-134%

2013 Vs
 2012

-74%

-74%

-71%

120%

 2012 

 Audited 

-1588%

-3933%

5621%

100%

 2012 Vs
 2011

-272%

-48%

-9%

-119%

Cash Flow

Cash Flow



Operational Highlights

 Pro�tability Ratios 

 Gross Pro�t ratio 
 Net pro�t to sales ratio 
 Return on Equity 
 Return on Capital employed 
 Operating Leverage 
 EBITDA margin to sales 

 Liquidity Ratios 

 Current Ratio 
 Quick / Acid test Ratio 
 Cash to current liability 
 Cash �ow from Operations to Sales 

 Activity / Turnover Ratios 

 Inventory turnover  
 No. of days in Inventory 
 Debtor turnover 
 No. of days in Receivables 
 Creditor turnover  
 No. of days in Payables 
 Operating Cycle 
 Total Asset Turnover 
 Fixed Asset Turnover  

 Investment / Market Ratios 

 Earning per Share 
 Break value per share with surplus on revaluation 
 Break value per share without surplus on revaluation 

 Capital Structure Ratios 

 Debt / Equity Ratio  
 Weighted Average Cost of Debt 
 Financial Leverage Ratio 
 Debt Service Ratio 
 Interest Cover 

 Financial Ratios 

2017

18.58%
7.90%

10.00%
11.00%

-261.00%
15.00%

1.13 : 1
0.47 : 1
0.01 : 1
0.27 : 1

 2.8 
 132 
 7.5 
 48

 93.1 
 4 

 176 
 0.7 
 1.1 

 3.62 
 37.53 
 31.62 

0.08 : 1
5%

0.11 : 1
2.75 : 1

6.7

2016

22.52%
10.39%
12.00%
18.00%

-54.00%
20.00%

1.88 : 1
0.86 : 1
0.09 : 1

-0.08 : 1

 2.9 
 127 
 7.7 
 47 

 92.3 
 4 

 170 
 0.7 
 1.5 

 4.81 
 35.99 
 29.83 

0.06 : 1
7%

0.11 : 1
1.89 : 1

6.2

2015

17.30%
6.96%

17.00%
20.00%

451.00%
15.00%

1.08 : 1
0.55 : 1
0.02 : 1
0.08 : 1

 6.2 
 59 

 13.8 
 26 

 149.4 
 2 

 83 
 1.2 
 1.9 

 4.54 
 26.36 
 17.74 

0.29 : 1
13%

0.53 : 1
1.76 : 1

2.9

2014

11.47%
2.17%
5.00%
6.00%

17.50%
11.00%

1.03 : 1
0.56 : 1
0.02 : 1
0.14 : 1

 5.9 
 62 

 15.9 
 23 

 128.0 
 3 

 82 
 1.1 
 1.6 

 1.12 
 21.72 
 12.92 

0.71 : 1
11%

0.90 : 1
1.06 : 1

1.6

2013

10.93%
0.99%
3.00%
2.00%

31.00%
10.70%

0.83 : 1
0.38 : 1
0.02 : 1

-0.01 : 1

 5.1 
 71 

 22.3 
 16 

 81.4 
 4 

 83 
 0.9 
 1.4 

 0.54 
 20.69 
 11.42 

0.62 : 1
11%

0.82 : 1
1.05 : 1

1.2

2012

13.61%
1.25%
2.00%
2.00%

385.00%
13.20%

0.85 : 1
0.34 : 1
0.01 : 1

-0.04 : 1

 4.9 
 74 

 19.5 
 19 

 61.0 
 6 

 87 
 0.7 
 0.9 

 0.40 
 20.22 
 10.61 

0.85 : 1
12%

1.00 : 1
1.27 : 1

1.2

UoM

 Percentage 
 Percentage 
 Percentage 
 Percentage 
 Percentage 
 Percentage 

 Times 
 Times 
 Times 
 Times 

Times
Days
Times
Days
Times
Days
Days
Times
Times

 Rupees 
 Rupees 
 Rupees 

 Times 
 Percentage 
 Times 
 Times 
 Times 

Sales

Operating & Gross Pro�t 

2017                        2016                            2015                          2014                            2013                        2012

1,697

2,468
2,792

2,493

1,373
1,161

981

2,085 1,940

1,008

GP OP

826

719
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 13,284 

7,209 

10,622
11,965 

14,414 
12,400

16,000

14,000

12,000

10,000

8,000

6,000

4,000

2,000

-  

Rs
 in

 M
ill

io
ns

2017                2016                  2015                   2014                  2013                 2012
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Application of Revenue FY 16-17

Cost of Sales

Admin & Distribution Cost

Finance Cost

Other Charges Less Other Income

Taxation

Net Income81%

5%
2%

1%
3%

8%

Raw Material

Fuel, Power & Water

Store, Spares & Others

Depreciation

Salaries and Wages

Change in W.I.P

53.7%

8.4%

3.2%

3.2%

3.5%

28.0%

Distribution of Manufacturing Cost FY 16-17

Pro�t Before Tax & Pro�t After Tax

Non-Current Assets and Non-Current Liabilities

14,000

12,000

10,000

8,000

6,000

4,000

2,000

-  

Rs
 in

 M
ill

io
ns

2017                2016                 2015                2014                 2013                  2012

 3,154 

 8,138

 2,634 

 7,997

 2,980 

 7,715

 2,155 

 7,674

 1,736 

 8,615

 1,934 

Non C. Assets Non C. Liabilities

 12,418

121

2017                        2016                            2015                          2014                            2013                        2012

130174

90249

1,279 
1,074

377

1,272

1,749

1,445

1,011

PBT PAT
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Capacity Utilization Rebars

Capacity Utilization Billets

82.8%

87.9%

52.0%

77.0%

82.4%

94.1%100.0%
90.0%
80.0%
70.0%
60.0%
50.0%
40.0%
30.0%
20.0%
10.0%

0.0%

Rebars

2017             2016             2015             2014             2013              2012

81.9%

41.9%

75.6%

78.6%

86.9%

84.4%

100.0%
90.0%
80.0%
70.0%
60.0%
50.0%
40.0%
30.0%
20.0%
10.0%

0.0%

Billets

2017             2016             2015             2014             2013              2012

Long-Term Debt Vs Equity

Current Ratio and Quick Ratio 

0.850.83

1.031.08

0.34
0.38

0.560.55

2.00
1.80
1.60
1.40
1.20
1.00
0.80
0.60
0.40
0.20
0.00

Ti
m

es

1.88

0.86

1.13

0.47

2017                2016                 2015                2014                 2013                  2012

Current Ratio Quick Ratio

2,3632,544
2,879

3,952

8,861

2,077
2,599

2,102

1,008

 9,391 

 1,022 

10,000

8,000

6,000

4,000

2,000

-  

Rs
 in

 M
ill

io
ns

2,354

2017                2016                 2015                2014                 2013                  2012

Equity LT Debt



2017

To Company
10.5%

Replacement of
Asset
7.0%

To Government
52.5%

To Employees
11.5%

To Providers of
Capital

5.5%

To Shareholders
13.0%

2016

To Company
15.7%

Replacement of
Asset
8.0%

To Government
45.8%

To Employees
9.1%

To Providers of
Capital

7.7%

To Shareholders
13.7%

Quarterly Performance AnalysisStatement of Value Addition and 
Distribution of wealth

1st Quarter

3,218,486,105

(2,753,753,430)

464,732,675

14%

(81,918,390)

(69,955,973)

(18,474,570)

5,007,655

299,391,397

9%

(74,007,654)

225,383,743

257,943

225,641,686

7%

2nd Quarter

3,339,924,020

(2,764,372,754)

575,551,266

17%

(87,739,488)

(76,753,383)

(28,194,706)

1,254,755

384,118,444

12%

(54,524,759)

329,593,685

(73,128,795)

256,464,890

8%

3rd Quarter

3,576,703,760

(2,878,314,639)

698,389,121

20%

(88,593,128)

(83,788,018)

(33,828,014)

644,115

492,824,076

14%

(57,804,113)

435,019,963

(97,880,176)

337,139,787

9%

4th Quarter

3,148,697,344

(2,419,183,233)

729,514,111

23%

(79,015,545)

(94,333,438)

(36,053,636)

451,202

520,562,694

17%

(65,246,950)

455,315,744

(200,509,403)

254,806,341

8%

Annual

13,283,811,229

(10,815,624,056)

2,468,187,173

19%

(337,266,551)

(324,830,812)

(116,550,926)

7,357,725

1,696,896,609

13%

(251,583,475)

1,445,313,134

(371,260,430)

1,074,052,704

8%

QUARTER 1

PRODUCTION (MT)
35,534

SALES (MT)
35,888

QUARTER 2

PRODUCTION (MT)
40,579

SALES (MT)
41,464

QUARTER 3

PRODUCTION (MT)
43,949

SALES (MT)
47,421

QUARTER 4

PRODUCTION (MT)
 38,144

 SALES (MT)
38,602

GP MARGIN
14%

NP MARGIN
7%

GP MARGIN
17%

NP MARGIN
8%

GP MARGIN
20%

NP MARGIN
9%

GP MARGIN
23%

NP MARGIN
8%

50%

50%

Production
Sale

Production
Sale

Production
Sale 

Production 
Sale

51%

49%

52%

48%

50%

50%

Rupees

Sales

Cost of sales

Gross pro�t

Gross Pro�t %

Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Other income

Operating pro�t

Operating pro�t %

Finance costs

Pro�t before taxation

Taxation (Expense)/ Reversal

Net pro�t for the period

Net Pro�t %

Rebars Production and Sales
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Quarterly Performance Analysis
Graphical Representation
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Following are the main DuPont highlights:

1. The net pro�t margin has continued its rising trend from the FY 2012 to FY 2016 which was primarily due to  
 increase in sales volume, however in the FY 2017 it has fallen by 2% which is due to decrease in sale price and  
 increase in administrative expenditures.

2. The asset turnover has maintained a rising trend from the FY 2012 to FY 2015, though it has reduced in the FY 2016  
 and FY 2017 mainly because of investments in capital work in process for expansion in billet and rebars  
 capacities.

3.  The leverage ratio of the company has maintained a steady rate from FY 2012 to FY 2015, however it has reduced  
 to 1.57 in FY 2016 due to issuance of shares through initial public o�ering (IPO). In FY 2017 it has slightly increased  
 due to increase in operations.

 Overall, the DuPont analysis demonstrates a positive trend of Return on Equity (ROE). The ROE showed a  
 tremendous increase from FY 2012 to FY 2015; however in FY 2016 and FY 2017, it has dropped due to increase  
 in number of shares through IPO for expansion.

Years

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

Pro�t Margin
(Net Pro�t/Turnover)

A

8%

10%

7%

2%

1%

1%

Asset Turnover
(Turnover/Total Assets)

B

73%

74%

118%

108%

90%

66%

Leverage Ratio
(Total Assets/Total Equity)

C

1.63

1.57

2.09

2.30

2.56

2.41

ROE
AxBxC

10%

12%

17%

5%

3%

2%

DuPont Analysis

Asset
Turnover

Turnover Total Assets Net Pro�t Turnover Total Assets Total Equity

Pro�t
Margin

Leverage
Ratio

Return on
Equity

DuPont Analysis

X X

/ / /
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During the �nancial year 2016-17, 273 million shares of Amreli Steels were traded at Pakistan Stock Exchange. The share 
price of Amreli Steels has maintained a rising trend along with the PSX index throughout the year, gaining 162% rise at the 
year end. The average share price based on low and high prices per week as at June 30, 2017 was 127.57 rupees per share.  

Share Price Sensitivity Analysis

The key factors that generally a�ect the share price directly are discussed below: 

Political Stability 

Stable political environment promotes capital spending 
and outlay on infrastructure projects creates demand for 
rebars, hence with increase/decrease in sales volume and 
pro�tability, the share price of the company changes.

Energy Prices

Since steel industry is an energy intensive industry, any 
decision by government to alter electricity and natural gas 
prices a�ects the pro�tability of the company and hence 
the share prices. 

Exchange Rates Volatility

Fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates lead to the 
�uctuation in foreign currency payments made for 
purchases of scrap metal and stores, spares and tools.

Laws, regulations and government policies

Any changes in policies by the government and regulatory 
authorities, both speci�c to the steel industry and overall 
business activities may a�ect the market share prices; 
either positively or negatively, depending on the type of 
change made.

Interest Rate Volatility

The changes in interest rate a�ect the �nancial cost of the 
company and hence a�ect the earning per share and price 
per share.

Raw Material

Since the raw material is imported, any change in global 
prices of steel scrap may a�ect pro�tability of the 
Company and hence the share price.
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Analysis of Financial Statements

Non Current & Current Assets

During the last 6 years, non-current assets of the Company have increased at a CAGR of 8.82%, which is primarily due to 
the ongoing expansion. In the FY 2016, the Company did an IPO to fund the new rolling mill project and expansion of steel 
melting capacity at Dhabeji. The expansion carried out so far is re�ected as an increase in CWIP in this �nancial year.

A substantial decrease in current asset in FY 2017 is due to the tightening of credits and better recovery of trade debts, 
decrease in sales tax refund and receipt of other past due receivables.   

Equities and Liabilities

The equity represents share capital, share premium and surplus on revaluation. The equity has increased at a CAGR of 
19.87%. The increase in equity in FY 2016 as compared to FY 2015 is due to the issuance of shares through an IPO. Further, 
the increase also re�ects the increase in retained pro�ts (net of dividend) over the last six years.

The non-current liabilities have decreased at a CAGR of 9.29%. The decrease is largely due to repayment of long term loan 
and repayment of Sukuk.

The current liabilities have increased due to corresponding increase in current asset; however, overall current ratio 
remained above 1:1. 
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Analysis of Financial Statements

Sales & Cost of Sales 

Sales have increased at a CAGR of 13.01% from FY 2012 to FY 2017. This increase was the function of increase in sale price 
and quantity. However, sales dropped by 14% in the FY 16 as compared to FY 2015, contributed by 57% fall in sales 
quantity and 43% drop in the sales price. The said decline was due to the dumping of rebars in the market by China.

In FY 2017, sales revenue increased by 7% as compared to FY 2016. The increase was attributable primarily to the increase 
in sales quantity by 11%.

The cost of sales also increased in FY 2017 which is the re�ection of increase in sales quantity. 

Finance Cost & Operating Pro�t

Finance cost has shown an impressive fall which is predominantly due to e�cient utilization of proceeds from IPO and 
sustained pro�tability in last three years. Moreover, drop in interest rates and spreads due to the timely repayment of loans 
also contributed towards the fall in the �nance cost. 

The operating pro�t has shown a steady increasing trend from FY 2012 to FY 2016. However, in FY 2017 the operating 
pro�t reduced by 18.60% as compared to FY 2016 which was mainly due to the increase in administrative expenses and a 
decrease in other income. 
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS 
We have audited the annexed balance sheet of Amreli Steels Limited (the Company) as at 30 June 2017 and the related 
pro�t and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash �ow statement and statement of changes in equity 
together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and we state that we have obtained all the 
information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the Company’s management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and prepare 
and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the requirements of 
the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said statements are free of any 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in 
the above said statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and signi�cant estimates made by 
management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the above said statements. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due veri�cation, we report that:

a) in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Ordinance, 
1984;

b) in our opinion:

i) the balance sheet and pro�t and loss account together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in 
conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of account and are 
further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied, except for the changes as stated in note  
4.1 to the accompanying �nancial statements, with which we concur; 

ii) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

iii) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in 
accordance with the objects of the Company.

c) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the balance sheet, 
pro�t and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash �ow statement and statement of changes in 
equity together with the notes forming part thereof, conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in 
Pakistan, and give the information required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and 
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s a�airs as at 30 June 2017 and of the pro�t, its 
comprehensive income, cash �ows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and

d) in our opinion, Zakat deductible at  source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted 
by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under Section 7 of that Ordinance. 

Chartered Accountants

Audit Engagement Partner: Khurram Jameel
Date:   26 August 2017
Place:  Karachi

Building a better
working world

EY Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountants
Progreeive Plaza, Beaumont Road
P.O. Box 15541, Karachi 75530
Pakistan

Tel: +9221 3565 0007-11
Fax: +9221 3568 1965
ey.khi@pk.ey.com
ey.com/pk
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Pro�t and Loss Account
For the year ended 30 June 2017

Balance Sheet 
As at 30 June 2017

8,441,597,274
26,742,912
15,289,370

131,404,376
8,615,033,932

599,892,883
4,410,123,514
2,070,501,848

125,635,829
48,886,841

427,987,469
300,000,000

86,246,015
81,124,343

8,150,398,742
16,765,432,674

2,970,114,270
5,890,507,263
8,860,621,533

1,829,580,914

524,524,754
1,139,415,427

72,176,237
1,736,116,418

1,080,934,801
48,221,865

2,726,371,085
483,586,058

-       
4,339,113,809

16,765,432,674

12,253,098,525
20,401,304
15,289,370

129,378,613
12,418,167,812

619,231,295
3,404,198,598
1,455,202,310

22,220,787
43,947,767

176,537,237
-       
-       

69,558,113
5,790,896,107

18,209,063,919

2,970,114,270
6,420,623,118
9,390,737,388

1,755,014,996

712,069,453
1,104,896,135

116,942,866
1,933,908,454

1,118,557,642
56,365,500

3,627,591,787
310,234,772

16,653,380
5,129,403,081

18,209,063,919

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
 Property, plant and equipment
 Intangible assets
 Long-term investments
 Long-term deposits
 
CURRENT ASSETS
 Stores and spares
 Stock-in-trade
 Trade debts 
 Loans and advances
 Trade deposits and short-term prepayments
 Other receivables 
 Short-term investments
 Taxation – net
 Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
 Share capital
 Reserves

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
 Long-term �nancing
 Deferred taxation
 Deferred liability

CURRENT LIABILITIES
 Trade and other payables
 Interest / markup accrued 
 Short-term borrowings  
 Current portion of long-term �nancing
 Taxation – net

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

----------(Rupees)----------
20162017

Sales

Cost of sales

Gross pro�t
 
Distribution costs
 
Administrative expenses
 
Other expenses

Other income
 
Operating pro�t 
 
Finance costs
 
Pro�t before taxation
 
Taxation
 
Net pro�t for the year

Earnings per share – basic and diluted (Rs. per share)

12,400,191,349

(9,608,236,222)

2,791,955,127

(341,325,913)

(216,283,236)

(165,014,968)

15,398,750

2,084,729,760

(335,534,389)

1,749,195,371

(470,446,343)

1,278,749,028

4.81  

13,283,811,229

(10,815,624,056)

2,468,187,173

(337,266,551)

(324,830,812)

(116,550,926)

7,357,725

1,696,896,609

(251,583,475)

1,445,313,134

(371,260,430)

1,074,052,704

3.62  

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these �nancial statements.

----------(Rupees)----------
20162017

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these �nancial statements.

6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14

15

16

17

18
19
20

21
22
23
18

24

Note Note

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

Annual Report 2017 92

____________________
Chief Executive O�cer

____________________
Director

____________________
Chief Financial O�cer

____________________
Chief Executive O�cer

____________________
Director

____________________
Chief Financial O�cer



1,278,749,028

5,118,447

3,908,718

1,287,776,193

1,074,052,704

-       

(24,479,913)

1,049,572,791

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2017

Cash Flow Statement 
For the year ended 30 June 2017

Net pro�t for the year

Other comprehensive income 

 Items that may be reclassi�ed subsequently to pro�t  
 and loss account

 Gain on cash �ow hedge – net of tax

 Items that may not be reclassi�ed subsequently to  
 pro�t and loss account

 Actuarial (loss) / gain on gratuity fund – net of tax
 
Total comprehensive income for the year

1,749,195,371

346,820,241
5,338,396

-       
7,914,839

-       
-       

17,755,345
1,264,747

335,534,389
714,627,957

2,463,823,328

(94,667,340)
(2,135,271,820)

(920,373,280)
(38,176,030)

(204,018)
(94,526,106)

(3,283,218,594)

88,700,238
(730,695,028)
(247,754,874)

(7,074,895)
(1,567,556)

(987,092,353)

(1,292,096,693)
(7,735,954)

6,618,465
(1,293,214,182)

3,531,270,492
-       

517,422,207
(1,094,165,896)

(5,666,585)
(367,151,692)
2,581,708,526

301,401,991
79,722,352

381,124,343

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

 Pro�t before taxation 
 Adjustments for: 
 Depreciation
 Amortization
 Capital work-in-progress written o�
 Provision for doubtful debts 
 Provision for doubtful deposits
 Provision for doubtful advances
 Provision for gratuity
 (Gain) / loss on disposal of operating assets
 Finance costs

 Operating pro�t before working capital changes

 Decrease / (increase) in current assets: 
 Stores and spares 
 Stock-in-trade 
 Trade debts 
 Loans and advances 
 Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 
 Other receivables 
 
 (Decrease) / increase in current liabilities: 
 Trade and other payables 
 Cash generated from / (used in) operations
 Income taxes paid 
 Gratuity paid 
 Long-term deposits – net  
 Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
 Fixed capital expenditure
 Acquisition of  intangible assets
 Proceeds from disposal of operating �xed assets
 Net cash used in investing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
 Proceeds from issue of capital  
 Dividend paid
 Short-term borrowings – net 
 Long-term �nancing – net 
 Other �nancial liabilities 
 Finance costs paid 
 Net cash in�ow from �nancing activities
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

1,445,313,134

321,310,661
6,534,073

102,304
37,239,451
12,750,000

1,376,102
15,174,197

(40,860)
251,583,475
646,029,403

2,091,342,537

(19,338,412)
1,005,924,916

578,060,087
102,038,940

(7,810,926)
251,450,232

1,910,324,837

(56,495,109)
3,945,172,265
(292,388,935)

(5,378,873)
2,025,763

3,649,430,220

(4,133,489,354)
(192,465)

615,998
(4,133,065,821)

-       
(592,249,425)

993,565,223
14,193,413

-       
(243,439,840)

172,069,371
(311,566,230)

381,124,343
69,558,113

Note

34

----------(Rupees)----------
20162017

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these �nancial statements.

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these �nancial statements

----------(Rupees)----------
20162017

____________________
Chief Executive O�cer

____________________
Director

____________________
Chief Financial O�cer

____________________
Chief Executive O�cer

____________________
Director

____________________
Chief Financial O�cer
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2017

Balance as at 30 June 2015

Net pro�t for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Issuance of shares
Share issue cost

Transferred to unappropriated 
 pro�t in respect of 
 - incremental depreciation during 
     the year – net of tax
- disposal of �xed assets during 
     the year – net of tax

Balance as at 30 June 2016

Net pro�t for the year
Other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive income

Final dividend @ Rs. 2 per 
Ordinary share of Rs. 10 each for 
the year ended 30 June 2016

Transferred to unappropriated 
 pro�t in respect of 
 - incremental depreciation during 
     the year – net of tax

Balance as at 30 June 2017

Capital Reserve

Share premium
Cash �ow

hedge

Reserves

Actuarial gain /
(loss) on gratuity

fund

Revenue ReservesIssued,
subscribed 
and paid-up

capital
Unappropriated

pro�t Total reserves
Total equity

3,952,283,861

1,278,749,028
9,027,165

1,287,776,193

3,786,895,708
(255,625,216)
3,531,270,492

85,687,186

3,603,801
89,290,987

8,860,621,533

1,074,052,704
(24,479,913)

1,049,572,791

(594,022,854)

74,565,918

9,390,737,388

1,724,698,161

1,278,749,028
9,027,165

1,287,776,193

3,044,367,138
(255,625,216)
2,788,741,922

85,687,186

3,603,801
89,290,987

5,890,507,263

1,074,052,704
(24,479,913)

1,049,572,791

(594,022,854)

74,565,918

6,420,623,118

1,740,066,927

1,278,749,028
-       

1,278,749,028

-       
-       
-       

85,687,186

3,603,801
89,290,987

3,108,106,942

1,074,052,704
-

1,074,052,704

(594,022,854)

74,565,918

3,662,702,710

(10,250,319)

-       
3,908,718

3,908,718

-       
-       
-       

-       

-       
-       

(6,341,601)

-
(24,479,913)

(24,479,913)

-       

-       

(30,821,514)

(5,118,447)

-       
5,118,447

5,118,447

-       
-       
-       

-       

-       
-       

-       

-       
-       

-       

-       

-       

-       

-       

-       
-       

           
-       

3,044,367,138
(255,625,216)
2,788,741,922

-       

-       
-       

2,788,741,922

-       
-       

-       

-       

-       

2,788,741,922

2,227,585,700

-       
-       

                     
-       

742,528,570
             -

742,528,570

-       

-       
-       

2,970,114,270

-       
-       

-       

-       

-       

2,970,114,270

------------------------------------------------------------------ (Rupees) ------------------------------------------------------------------

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these �nancial statements.

1. THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

 Amreli Steels Limited (the Company) was incorporated in 1984 as a private limited company and 
converted into a public unquoted company in 2009. The Company enlisted on Pakistan Stock 
Exchange in 2015. The Company is engaged in manufacture and sale of steel bars and billets. The 
registered o�ce of the Company is situated at Plot No. A-18, S.I.T.E., Karachi.

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

 2.1 These �nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB)  and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as are noti�ed under the repealed 
Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued under the repealed 
Companies Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements di�er, the provisions or directives of the 
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall prevail.

3. BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

 3.1 These �nancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for 
certain classes of property, plant and equipment that have been measured at revalued 
amounts. 

 3.2 These �nancial statements are prepared in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s functional and 
presentation currency.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 4.1 Standards adopted during the year

  The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these �nancial statements are 
consistent with those of the previous �nancial year except that the Company has adopted the 
following standards which became e�ective for the current year:

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other  
Entities and IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements – Investment Entities:  Applying 
the Consolidation Exception (Amendment)

IFRS 11  Joint Arrangements - Accounting for Acquisition of Interest in Joint Operation 
(Amendment)

IAS 1  Presentation of Financial Statements - Disclosure Initiative (Amendment)  

IAS 16  Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38  intangible assets - Clari�cation of  
Acceptable Method of Depreciation and Amortization (Amendment) 

IAS 16   Property, Plant and Equipment IAS 41 Agriculture - Agriculture: Bearer Plants 
(Amendment)

IAS 27  Separate Financial Statements – Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements 
(Amendment)

____________________
Chief Executive O�cer

____________________
Director

____________________
Chief Financial O�cer
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Improvements to Accounting Standards Issued by the IASB in September 2014

IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - Changes in 
methods of disposal 

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Servicing contracts 

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Applicability of the o�setting disclosures to 
condensed interim �nancial statements

IAS 19 Employee Bene�ts - Discount rate: regional market issue 

IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting - Disclosure of information elsewhere in the interim 
�nancial report

  The adoption of the above accounting standards and interpretations did not have any e�ect 
on the �nancial statements.

 4.2 Changes in accounting framework not yet e�ective

  The following standards, and interpretations would be e�ective from the dates mentioned 
below against the respective standard or interpretation: 

       

 

IFRS 2 Share-based Payments – Classi�cation and Measurement 
of Share-based Payments Transactions (Amendments) 01 January 2018

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investment in 
Associates and Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of 
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture 
(Amendment)  Not yet �nalized

IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows - Disclosure Initiative - (Amendment) 01 January 2017

IAS 12 Income Taxes – Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets 
for Unrealized losses (Amendments) 01 January 2017

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts: Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 
with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts – (Amendments)  01 January 2018

IAS 40 Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property 
(Amendments)  01 January 2018

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration 01 January 2018

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 01 January 2019

  The above standards and amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the 
Company's �nancial statements in the period of initial application. 

  In addition to the above standards, improvements to various accounting standards have also 
been issued by the IASB in December 2016. Such improvements are generally e�ective for 
accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2018. The Company expects that such 
improvements to the standards will not have any impact on the Company's �nancial 
statements in the period of initial application. 

  During the year, the Companies Act 2017 has been promulgated, however, Securities and 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide its Circular No. 17 of 2017 dated 20 July 2017 
communicated its decision that the companies whose �nancial year closes on or before 30 
June 2017 shall prepare their �nancial statements in accordance with the provisions of the 
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. While the Company is currently assessing the full impact 

  of the promulgation of the Companies Act 2017 on the �nancial statements, it is expected that 
it will result in change in accounting treatments and enhanced disclosures in the �nancial 
statements which will be incorporated in the subsequent �nancial statements of the 
Company.

  Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be noti�ed by the 
SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan:

  

IFRS 9  Financial Instruments: Classi�cation and Measurement 01 January 2018

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 01 January 2016

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 01 January 2018

IFRS 16 Leases  01 January 2019

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts  01 January 2021

 4.3 Property, plant and equipment

  Operating assets

  These are stated at cost / revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
except for lease hold land which is stated at cost / revalued amount.

  Depreciation is charged applying the reducing balance method, except for depreciation on 
plant and machinery which is charged on straight line basis / units of production method. In 
respect of additions and disposals of assets, depreciation is charged from the month in which 
an asset is available for use and continues depreciating it until it is derecognized i.e. up to the 
month preceding the disposal, even if during that year that asset is idle.

  Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to pro�t and loss account as and when incurred. 
Major renewals and improvements which increase the asset’s remaining useful economic life 
or performance beyond the current estimated levels are capitalized and the assets so replaced, 
if any, are retired.

  The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed and adjusted if 
appropriate, at each �nancial year end.

  Gains or losses on disposal of assets are recognised in the pro�t and loss account.

  Capital work in process

  These are stated at cost less impairment, and represent expenditures incurred and advances 
made in respect of speci�c assets during the construction / erection year. These are transferred 
to speci�c assets as and when assets are available for use.
 

  Impairment

  The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each balance sheet date 
for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying values 
may not be recoverable. If such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the 
estimated recoverable amounts, the assets are written down to their recoverable amounts.

 4.4 Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

  The surplus arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment net of deferred tax is 
credited to “surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment” shown below equity in 
the balance sheet.

E�ective date
(annual periods

beginning
on or after)

IASB E�ective date 
(annual periods 

beginning 
on or after)
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  Depreciation on assets which are revalued is determined with reference to the value assigned 
to such assets on revaluation and depreciation charge for the year is taken to the pro�t and 
loss account.

  An amount equal to incremental depreciation for the year net of deferred tax is transferred 
from “surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment account” to unappropriated 
pro�t through “statement of changes in equity” to record realization of surplus to the extent of 
the incremental depreciation charge for the year.

 4.5 Intangibles

  These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment. 

  Amortisation is charged on straight line method. Amortisation on additions is charged in the 
month in which an asset comes into operation while no amortisation is charged for the month 
in which the asset is disposed of.

 4.6 Stores and spares

  These are valued at lower of moving average cost and Net Realizable Value (NRV).
 

 4.7 Stock-in-trade

  These are valued at the lower of NRV and cost determined as follows:

  

  Raw materials  - First-In-First-Out (FIFO)

  Work-in-process  - Cost of direct materials plus other    
   attributable overheads

  Finished goods -    Manufactured - Cost of direct materials plus other    
   attributable overheads

   -    Trading - First-In-First-Out (FIFO)

  Stock-in-transit  - Invoice value plus other charges paid thereon  
   up to the balance sheet date

 4.8 Trade debts and other receivables

  Trade debts are recognised at invoice amount less provision for any uncollectible amounts. 
Other receivables are carried at cost less provision for impairment. Provision for impairment is 
based on the management’s assessment of customers’ / parties’ outstanding balances and 
creditworthiness. Trade debts and other receivables are classi�ed as bad debts / receivables 
and are written-o� when there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

 4.9 Investments

  Held-to-maturity

  These represent �nancial assets with �xed or determinable payments and �xed maturities 
where the Company has positive intent and ability to hold till maturity. These are recognised 
initially at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs. After initial measurement, 
these investments are measured at amortized cost using e�ective interest rate method.

 4.10 Cash and cash equivalents

  These are stated at cost.

 4.11 Borrowings

  Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and 
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the e�ective interest method.

  Borrowings are classi�ed as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional / 
contractual right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the balance 
sheet date. 

 4.12 Trade and other payables

  Liabilities for trade and amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the 
consideration to be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the 
Company.

 4.13 Financial instruments

  All �nancial assets and liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes party 
to the contractual provisions of the instrument and are derecognised in case of assets, when 
the contractual rights under the instrument are realized, expired or surrendered and in case of 
a liability, when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on 
recognition and de-recognition of the �nancial assets and liabilities is included in the pro�t 
and loss account for the year in which it arises.

 4.14 O�setting of �nancial instruments

  Financial assets and �nancial liabilities are o�set and the net amount is reported in the balance 
sheet when the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-o� the transaction and intends 
to settle either on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

 4.15 Provisions

  Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as 
a result of past events and it is probable that an out�ow of resources embodying economic 
bene�ts will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can 
be made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to re�ect current 
best estimate.

 4.16 Borrowing costs

  Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset 
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are 
capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed 
in the year in which they occur. 

 4.17 Foreign currency transactions and translations

  Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the foreign exchange rate 
ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies at the balance sheet date are retranslated into Pak Rupees at the foreign exchange 
rate ruling at that date. Exchange di�erences are recognised in the pro�t and loss account.

 4.18 Sta� retirement bene�ts

  The Company operates an un-approved and unfunded de�ned gratuity scheme for all 
permanent employees who have completed the minimum qualifying year of service for 
entitlement of gratuity. The contributions to the scheme are made in accordance with the 
independent actuarial valuation. The latest actuarial valuation was carried out as of 30 June 
2017 using Projected Unit Credit method. 
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 4.19 Ijarah contracts

  Leases under Shariah compliant Ijarah contracts, where signi�cant portion of the risk and reward 
of ownership is retained by the lessor, are classi�ed as Ijarah. Rentals under these arrangements 
are charged to pro�t and loss account on straight line basis over the lease term.

 4.20 Taxation

  Current

  Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income in accordance with Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001.

  Deferred

  Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method for all temporary di�erences at the 
balance sheet date between tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for 
�nancial reporting purposes. 

  Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary di�erences, unused tax 
losses and tax credits, if any, to the extent that it is probable that taxable pro�ts will be available 
against which such temporary di�erences and tax losses can be utilized. 

  Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply 
to the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

 4.21 Revenue recognition

  Sales are recognised upon passage of title to the customers which generally coincides with 
physical delivery.

  Pro�t on bank deposits / term deposit receipts is recognised on time proportion basis. 

  Other revenues are accounted for on accrual basis.

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

 The preparation of �nancial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the 
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the 
process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually 
evaluated and are based on historic experience and other factors, including expectations of future 
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised and in any future years a�ected. In the 
process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following 
estimates and judgments which are signi�cant to the �nancial statements:

 Residual values and useful life of property, plant and equipment

 The Company reviews the appropriateness of the rate of depreciation, depreciation method, useful life 
and residual value used in the calculation of depreciation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of the 
recoverable amount of assets is made for possible impairment on an annual basis. In making these 
estimates, the Company uses the technical resources available with the Company. Any change in 
estimates in future might a�ect the carrying amount of respective item of property, plant and 
equipment, with corresponding e�ect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

 Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

 The Company reviews the appropriateness of the revaluation of certain assets periodically for the 
purpose of ensuring that the carrying amount of the same does not di�er materially from its fair value.

 In making this assessment, the Company uses the technical resources available with the Company. Any 
change in assessment in future might a�ect the carrying amount of respective item of property, plant 
and equipment, with corresponding e�ect on revaluation surplus of property, plant and equipment.

 Capitalisation of borrowing costs

 The Company reviews the appropriateness of the borrowing costs capitalized to items of property, 
plant and equipment at each year end. Any change in the judgment in future might a�ect the pro�t and 
loss account of that year.

 Provision for impairment of trade debts and other receivables

 The Company assesses recoverability of its trade debts and other receivables at each year end for the 
purpose of evaluating doubtful trade debts and other receivables keeping in view the aging analysis. 
Any change in the estimate in future might a�ect the pro�t and loss account of that year.

 Sta� retirement bene�ts

 The cost of de�ned bene�t plan is determined using actuarial valuation, which involves making 
assumptions about discount rate, expected rate of return on assets and future salary increases. 

 Fair value of �nancial instruments

 When the fair value of �nancial assets and �nancial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be 
derived from active markets, their fair value is determined using valuation techniques including the 
discounted cash �ow model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where 
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. The 
judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in 
assumptions about these factors could a�ect the reported fair value of �nancial instruments.

 Deferred taxation

 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses and credits to the extent that it is probable 
that taxable pro�t will be available against which the losses can be utilized or credits can be availed. 
Signi�cant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can 
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable pro�ts together with future 
tax planning strategies and capital expenditure planning. Any change in estimates in future years might 
a�ect the remaining amounts of respective items of deferred taxation with a corresponding e�ect on 
the taxation charge.

7,334,605,686
1,106,991,588
8,441,597,274

7,154,739,872
5,098,358,653

12,253,098,525

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 
 Operating �xed assets 
 Capital work-in-progress

----------(Rupees)----------
20162017

6.1
6.2

Note
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 6.1.1 The Company carries its leasehold land, buildings on leasehold land, and plant and machinery 
on revalued amount. The latest revaluation was conducted on 30 June 2015. Had there been no 
revaluation, the book value of leasehold land, buildings on leasehold land and plant and 
machinery would have been Rs. 410.782 (2016: Rs. 402.430) million, Rs. 582.843 (2016: Rs. 
665.564) million and Rs. 3,542.952 (2016: Rs. 3,540.394) million respectively and surplus on 
revaluation of f ixed assets would have been lower by Rs. 2,553.340 (2016: Rs. 2,659.863) million.
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108,628,706
223,205,222

4,781,636
10,204,677

346,820,241

114,412,543
191,320,339

5,462,391
10,115,388

321,310,661

----------(Rupees)----------
20162017

 6.1.2 Depreciation charge for the year has been
   allocated as under:    

  Cost of sales – production of bars
Cost of sales – production of billets
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses

 6.2 Capital work-in-progress

  Opening balance
Additions during the year
Transfer to operating �xed assets
Written o� during the year
Closing balance

 6.1.3    The following operating �xed assets were disposed o� during the year:

 Plant and machinery
   Roll
   Items having book 

  value up to Rs.50,000

 Vehicles
   Suzuki Cultus 

   Suzuki Cultus
 

   Suzuki Cultus 

   Suzuki Mehran 

 Computers
   Sony Viao Laptop
   Items having book 

  value up to Rs.50,000
  
  

 2017
 2016

Mr. Abdul Majeed –
Karachi

Mrs.  Anadil - 
Employee
Mr. Sajjad Asghar -
Employee
Mr. Sohail Akhter - 
Employee
Mr. Abdul Majeed - 
Employee

Mr. Fazal Ahmed - 
Employee
Mr. Javed Asghar - 
Employee

Write-o�

Negotiation

Company 
policy

Company 
policy

Company 
policy

Company 
policy

Company 
policy

Company 
policy

370,397

3,201,819
3,572,216

868,000

682,000

92,350

63,000

1,705,350

182,700

95,000

277,700

5,555,266
9,479,246

(56,009)

121,316
65,307

-       

-       

-       

-       

-       

(40,194)

15,747

(24,447)

40,860
(1,264,747)

-       

132,165
132,165

185,825

114,421

71,417

59,850

431,513

36,540

15,780

52,320

615,998
6,618,465

56,009

10,849
66,858

185,825

114,421

71,417

59,850

431,513

76,734

33

76,767

575,138
7,883,212

314,388

3,190,970
3,505,358

682,175

567,579

20,933

3,150

1,273,837

105,966

94,967

200,933

4,980,128
1,596,034

Cost Accumulated
depreciation

Book
value

Sale
proceeds

Gain /
(loss)

Mode of
disposal

Particulars of
purchaserParticulars

----------------------------------(Rupees)----------------------------------

6,483,544
1,100,508,044

-       
-       

1,106,991,588

1,106,991,588
3,993,851,632

(2,382,263)
(102,304)

5,098,358,653

755,853,021
3,102,608,384

-       
-       

3,858,461,405

351,138,567
872,288,248

(2,382,263)
(102,304)

1,220,942,248

-       
18,955,000

-       
-       

18,955,000

2016Total
Plant and

machineryCivil works
Freehold

land
(Note 6.2.1)

------------------------------------------(Rupees)------------------------------------------

26.1
26.1.1

27
28

Note
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 6.2.1 During the year borrowing costs have been capitalized amounting to Rs. 5.723 million (2016: Nil) 
by using capitalization rate of 6.99% (2016: Nil). Civil works include Rs. 296.923 in respect of 
advance against purchase of o�ce premises.

 8.1 These carry pro�t rates ranging from 4.63% to 6.04% (2016: 6.20% to 7.10%) per annum having 
maturity upto 5 years and include Rs. 14.289 million held as lien for guarantee issued on behalf 
of the Company.

 12.1 Represent interest free loans to employees in accordance with the Company policy. These are 
recoverable in twelve equal monthly installments.

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

 Computer software

 Net carrying value

  Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions during the year
Amortisation for the year
Balance at the end of the year

 Gross carrying value

  Cost
Accumulated amortization
Balance at the end of the year

 Useful life

8. LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS – held to maturity  

  Term Deposit Receipts 

24,345,354
7,735,954

(5,338,396)
26,742,912

32,493,941
(5,751,029)
26,742,912

5 

15,289,370

26,742,912
192,465

(6,534,073)
20,401,304

32,686,406
(12,285,102)

20,401,304

5 

15,289,370

----------(Rupees)----------
20162017

Years

Note

28

8.1

9. LONG-TERM DEPOSITS

  Margin against guarantees
Utilities
Ijarah / Diminishing Musharika
Others

10. STOCK-IN-TRADE

  Raw materials
- In hand
- In transit

  Work-in-process

  Finished goods
- Manufactured
- Trading

31,313,336
74,124,666
23,847,374

2,119,000
131,404,376

995,409,479
387,211,408

1,382,620,887

1,128,669,547

797,160,524
1,101,672,556
1,898,833,080
4,410,123,514

31,313,336
75,495,636
21,050,656

1,518,985
129,378,613

1,544,811,592
699,471,255

2,244,282,847

793,767,325

322,210,865
43,937,561

366,148,426
3,404,198,598

----------(Rupees)----------
20162017

26.1.1

26.1

26.1
26.2

Note

11. TRADE DEBTS – unsecured

  Considered good
Considered doubtful

Provision for doubtful debts

 11.1 Movement of provision for doubtful debts

  Opening balance
Provision for the year
Closing balance

 11.2 The ageing of trade debts is as follows:

2,070,501,848
38,037,910

2,108,539,758
(38,037,910)

2,070,501,848

30,123,071
     7,914,839

38,037,910

1,455,202,310
75,277,361

1,530,479,671
(75,277,361)

1,455,202,310

38,037,910
37,239,451
75,277,361

----------(Rupees)----------
20162017

12. LOANS AND ADVANCES – unsecured, considered good

 Loans – considered good

  Executives
Employees

 Advances

 Considered good

  Suppliers
Employees

 Considered doubtful

 Less: provision for doubtful advances

1,186,668
12,717,909
13,904,577

105,820,003
5,911,249

111,731,252

-       

-       
-       

111,731,252

125,635,829

917,045
3,391,880
4,308,925

12,268,642
5,643,220

17,911,862

1,376,102

(1,376,102)
-       

17,911,862

22,220,787

----------(Rupees)----------
20162017

Over 180
Days

91-180
Days

31-90
Days

Neither past 
due nor 
impairedTotal

Past due but not impaired

2017

2016

240,567,257

60,404,718

174,777,753

156,543,205

458,136,118

695,962,825

581,721,182

1,157,591,100

1,455,202,310

2,070,501,848

--------------------------------------------- (Rupees) ---------------------------------------------

Note

11.1

28

Note

12.1

28
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 18.1 Represent Diminishing Musharaka facilities obtained from Islamic banks. These facilities are 
repayable in equal monthly / quarterly installments latest by 2020. These carry markup rate of 6 
month KIBOR + 1.75% to 6 months KIBOR + 2% per annum (2016: 6 month KIBOR + 1.75% to 6 
month KIBOR + 2% per annum). These facilities are secured by title over Diminishing Musharaka 
asset and �rst pari passu hypothecation charge on present and future �xed assets of the Company.

 18.2 Represent term �nance facilities obtained from commercial banks. These facilities are repayable 
in quarterly / semi-annual installments latest by 2022. These carry markup rate ranging from 3 
month KIBOR + 0.75% to 6 months KIBOR + 1.75% per annum (2016: 6 month KIBOR + 1.75% to 
6 month KIBOR + 2.65% per annum) payable quarterly and semi-annually. These facilities are 
secured by way of �rst equitable mortgage over land and building, �rst pari passu charge on all 
present and future �xed assets of the Company with 25% margin over the facility amount.

13. TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS

  Deposits

  Considered good
   Security deposits
   Surety deposit
   Margins against letters of credit

  Considered doubtful
Less: provision for doubtful deposits

Prepayments

14. OTHER RECEIVALES

  Sales tax refundable
Others

15. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

  Bank balances

     Current accounts
   Saving accounts

  Cash in hand

28,437,208
12,750,000

6,551,225
47,738,433

-       
-       
-       

47,738,433

1,148,408
48,886,841

426,893,472
1,093,997

427,987,469

50,266,400
11,090,047
61,356,447

19,767,896
81,124,343

41,136,968
-       

950,789
42,087,757

12,750,000
(12,750,000)

-       
42,087,757

1,860,010
43,947,767

175,022,668
1,514,569

176,537,237

60,789,401
1,392,398

62,181,799

7,376,314
69,558,113

4,200,000,000

800,000,000
5,000,000,000

420,000,000

80,000,000
500,000,000

420,000,000

80,000,000
500,000,000

4,200,000,000

800,000,000
5,000,000,000

----------(Rupees)----------
20162017

----------(Rupees)----------
20162017

 15.1 These carry pro�t rates ranging from 3% to 6.5% (2016: 3% to 6%) per annum.

17. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT 
AND EQUIPMENT – net of deferred tax

  Opening balance
Adjustment on disposal of property, 
   plant and equipment 
Transfer to unappropriated pro�t in respect 
   of incremental depreciation charged 
   during the year

  Related deferred tax liability

     Opening balance
   Disposal
   Incremental depreciation charged during the year

 17.1 Breakup of revaluation surplus net of 
   deferred tax is as follows: 

  Leasehold land
Buildings on leasehold land
Plant and machinery

2,789,269,810

(5,222,900)

(124,184,328)
2,659,862,582

(870,397,909)
1,619,099

38,497,142
(830,281,668)
1,829,580,914

325,670,383
211,583,174

1,292,327,357
1,829,580,914

2,659,862,582

-       

(106,522,740)
2,553,339,842

(830,281,668)
-       

31,956,822
(798,324,846)
1,755,014,996

325,670,382
187,277,973

1,242,066,641
1,755,014,996

804,280,952

830,281,668
(34,166,386)

(460,980,807)
1,139,415,427

757,212,542

798,324,846
(61,903,897)

(388,737,356)
1,104,896,135

----------(Rupees)----------
20162017

----------(Rupees)----------
20162017

16. SHARE CAPITAL

 16.1 Authorized capital

 16.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- 
each Cumulative preference 
shares of Rs. 10/-each 

2,638,839,300

331,274,970
2,970,114,270

263,883,930

33,127,497
297,011,427

263,883,930

33,127,497
297,011,427

2,638,839,300

331,274,970
2,970,114,270

Ordinary shares of 
Rs. 10/- each

Issued for cash

Issued for consideration 
other than cash

Number of shares
    2017                   2016    

18. LONG-TERM FINANCING – secured

209,316,412
-       

315,208,342

524,524,754

104,052,725
167,200,000
212,333,333

483,586,058

105,125,009
-       

606,944,444

712,069,453

209,804,225
-       

812,500,000

1,022,304,225

104,679,216
-       

205,555,556

310,234,772

Note

18.1

18.2

Long-TermCurrentTotal

2016

 Diminishing Musharika
 Sukuk
 Term �nance facilities

 Total

313,369,137
167,200,000
527,541,676

1,008,110,813

--------------------- (Rupees) ---------------------
Long-TermCurrentTotal

2017

--------------------- (Rupees) ---------------------

19. DEFERRED TAXATION

 Represents tax e�ects of temporary di�erences relating to:

  Accelerated tax depreciation / amortization
Surplus on revaluation of property, 
   plant and equipment
Provisions
Unused tax credits

Note

15.1

Note

17.1

Note

19.1
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 19.1 Represents deferred tax recognised on minimum tax and alternate corporate tax, paid / payable 
under sections 113 and 113C, respectively of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The management, 
based on the opinion of its tax advisor, considers the same to be claimable.

 21.1 Represent Murabaha facilities amounting to Rs. 2,500 (2016: Rs. 1,900) million obtained from 
Islamic banks for purchase of raw material. These carry pro�t at the rates ranging from 3 month 
KIBOR + 0.25% to 6 month KIBOR + 0.50% per annum (2016: 6 months KIBOR + 1.0% to 6 months 
KIBOR + 1.5% per annum). These are secured by joint hypothecation over present and future 
current assets of the Company.

20. DEFERRED LIABILITY 

 Sta� gratuity

 20.1 Amount recognised in balance sheet

  Opening balance
Charge for the year
Recognised in other comprehensive income
Bene�ts paid
Closing balance

 20.2 Expense recognised in pro�t and loss

  Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest cost

72,176,237

67,160,595
17,755,345
(5,664,808)
(7,074,895)
72,176,237

10,693,809
858,279

6,203,257
17,755,345

116,942,866

72,176,237
15,174,197
34,971,305
(5,378,873)

116,942,866

10,136,404
-

5,037,793
15,174,197

----------(Rupees)----------
20162017

132,023,646
444,902,750
217,546,437
120,310,463

1,124,728
94,109,268
64,786,921

6,130,588
-       

1,080,934,801

100,338,380
537,247,271
135,551,819
158,654,920

1,935,864
77,819,094
98,036,577

7,200,288
1,773,429

1,118,557,642

----------(Rupees)----------
20162017

 20.3 Historical information for de�ned benef it plans

  Present value of de�ned
   bene�t obligations

  Experience adjustment on 
    plan liabilities

40,629,917

9,286,508

46,421,041

(3,138,703)

67,160,595

7,514,867

72,176,237

(5,664,808)

116,942,866

34,971,305

20132014201520162017
---------------------------------------(Rupees)---------------------------------------

 20.4 Principal actuarial assumptions

  Expected rate of increase in salary level
Valuation discount rate
Average expected remaining working life of employees

2016

6.25%
7.25%
8 years

2017

7.25%
7.75%
8 years

3,225,370
7,580,342
2,133,572
4,816,061

17,755,345

3,748,025
3,381,022
2,242,112
5,803,038

15,174,197

----------(Rupees)----------
20162017

 20.5 Charge for the year has been allocated as follows: 

  Cost of sales – production of bars
Cost of sales – production of billets
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Note

26.1.2
26.1.1.1

27.1
28.1

 20.6 Sensitivity analysis

- 100 bps

107,500,729

+ 100 bps

127,847,936

- 100 bps

127,664,902

+ 100 bps

107,823,524

Salary increaseDiscount rate

  Present value of de�ned 
   bene�t obligations

2017

--------------------------(Rupees)--------------------------

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

  Creditors
Murabaha
Accrued liabilities
Advances from customers
Ijarah rentals payable
Workers’ Pro�ts Participation Fund
Workers’ welfare fund
Withholding tax payable
Unclaimed dividend

68,174,227
3,014,515

71,188,742
94,109,268

165,298,010
(71,188,742)

94,109,268

13,006,302
35,215,563
48,221,865

830,067,940
925,281,546
771,021,599

-       
200,000,000

 -       
2,726,371,085

94,109,268
5,834,878

99,944,146
77,819,094

177,763,240
(99,944,146)

77,819,094

15,948,293
40,417,207
56,365,500

-       
1,697,521,447
1,105,828,204

524,242,136
200,000,000
100,000,000

3,627,591,787

----------(Rupees)----------
20162017

 21.2 Workers’ Pro�ts Participation Fund

  Opening balance
Mark-up on funds utilized in the Company’s business

Allocation for the year

Paid during the year
Closing balance

 22. INTEREST / MARK-UP ACCRUED

  Long-term �nancing
Short-term borrowings

23. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS – secured

  Cash �nance
Finance against trust receipts
Running �nance
Short term loan
Demand �nance
Short term advance

Note

31

29

23.1
23.2
23.3
23.4
23.5
23.6

 23.1 Represent working capital facilities availed  from various banks carrying markup / pro�t ranging 
from 1 month KIBOR + 0.25% to 6 month KIBOR + 0.75% per annum (2016: 1 month KIBOR + 
0.75% to 6 month KIBOR + 1.25% per annum). 

 23.2 Represent working capital facilities availed  from various banks carrying markup ranging from 3 
month KIBOR + 0.25% to 3 month KIBOR + 0.50% (2016: 1 month KIBOR + 0.75% to 3 month 
KIBOR + 1.50% per annum).

 23.3 This carries markup at the rate of 6 month KIBOR + 0.15% per annum payable by September 2017.

Note

20.1

20.2

Note

21.1

21.2
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 23.4 This carries pro�t at the rate of 1 month KIBOR + 0.15% per annum (2016: 1 month KIBOR + 1.25% 
per annum) payable by July 2017.

 23.5 This carries markup at the rate of 1 month KIBOR + 0.15% per annum payable by July 2017. 

 23.6 These facilities are secured by way of joint hypothecation charge over present and future current 
assets of the Company with 25% margin.  

 23.7 As of the balance sheet date, the Company has unutilized facilities for short term borrowings 
amounting to Rs. 6,106.692 million (2016: Rs. 4,306.503 million).

24. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS       

 Contingencies

 24.1 During the year ended 30 June 2015, the Government of Pakistan promulgated Gas 
Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) Act, 2015 and levied GIDC on gas bills at the rate of 
Rs.100 / MMBTU on all industrial consumers. The GIDC Act, 2015 was made applicable with 
immediate e�ect superseding the GIDC Act, 2011 and GIDC Ordinance, 2014. However, the 
Company �led a suit before the Honourable High Court of Sindh (the Court), challenging the 
vires of GIDC Act, 2015 and seeking refund of the entire amount paid under GIDC Act, 2011. The 
Court passed an order restraining the Sui Southern Gas Company Limited from demanding and 
collecting GIDC as levied by the GIDC Act, 2015. The �nancial exposure of the Company upto 
30 June 2017 is Rs. 133.593 million. During the current year, the case was decided by the Court in 
favour of the Company. Accordingly, no provision has been made in these �nancial statements.

 24.2 During the year ended 30 June 2016, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR), Large 
Taxpayers’ Unit (LTU), Karachi passed an Order against the Company, concluding that the 
Company has violated the provisions of Rule 58H of Chapter XI of the Sales Tax Special Procedure 
Rules, 2007 and raised an alleged demand of Rs.2,013.620 million for the tax periods July 2013 to 
December 2014. The Company approached the Chief Automation and Sales Tax, Federal Board 
of Revenue (FBR), Islamabad, who directed the Chief Commissioner Inland Revenue, LTU Karachi 
that no recovery action shall be taken against the Company till the subject matter is decided by 
the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) or until any other directive is issued by the FBR. The 
Company is currently contesting the said Order at the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue. The 
management, based on a legal advice, is con�dent that the eventual outcome will be in favour 
of the Company. Accordingly, no provision has been made in these �nancial statements. 

 24.3 During the year ended 30 June 2016, the DCIR, LTU issued another notice for alleged 
non-charging of further tax on the supplies made to unregistered persons and raised an alleged 
demand of Rs.166.934 million for the tax periods July 2013 to June 2015. However, the Company 
�led a law suit in the Court which issued an interim order restraining any coercive action to be 
taken against the Company. The suit is currently pending adjudication. The management, based 
on a legal advice, is con�dent that the eventual outcome will be in favour of the Company. 
Accordingly, no provision has been made in these �nancial statements.

 24.4 During the year ended 30 June 2016, the FBR issued Sales Tax General Order (STGO) No.18 of 2016, 
whereby the existing procedure for payment and claiming input adjustment of sales tax was 
amended. Before the said STGO, sales tax was being paid by the Company on the basis of Rule 
58(H) of the Sales Tax Special Procedures Rules, 2007 of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 read with STGO 
No.01/2013. The Company has �led a suit before the Court challenging STGO No.18 of 2016 
restraining the tax department to calculate the sales tax liability on the basis of the STGO and 
requesting continuation of the existing procedure of payment and adjustment of input sales tax. 
The Court granted stay against the said STGO with the direction that impugned STGO shall remain 
suspended and the Company shall be entitled for claiming input adjustment of the sales tax on 
the basis of existing STGO. The �nancial exposure of the Company upto 30 June 2017 is Rs.378.367 
million. The management, based on a legal advice, is con�dent that the outcome will be in favour 
of the Company. Accordingly, no provision has been made in these �nancial statements.

 24.6 Commitments for rentals payable under Ijarah contracts in respect of vehicles and plant and 
machinery with Islamic banks are as follows:

 Commitments

 24.5 Outstanding letters of credit

  Outstanding letters of guarantee

  Capital commitments

  Not later than one year

  Later than one year but not later than �ve years

25. SALES – net

  Local 

     Manufactured stock
   Trading stock

  Less: sales tax
   Trading stock
  

  Less: trade discounts
   Manufactured stock
  

  Export sales

26. COST OF SALES

  Manufactured stock 
Trading stock

2,289,052,179

51,640,456

-       

1,351,266,612

51,640,456

434,452,000

----------(Rupees)----------
20162017

36,459,186

66,772,067

11,484,044,433
1,048,238,784

12,532,283,217

152,050,248

9,302,030
12,370,930,939

29,260,410
12,400,191,349

8,833,327,109
774,909,113

9,608,236,222

35,634,476

44,035,169

12,288,762,617
1,135,027,102

13,423,789,719

164,918,337

1,828,312
13,257,043,070

26,768,159
13,283,811,229

9,887,059,096
928,564,960

10,815,624,056

----------(Rupees)----------
20162017

Note

26.1
26.2
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 26.1.1.1 Include Rs. 3.381million (2016: Rs. 7.580 million) in respect of sta� retirement bene�ts. 

 26.1.2 Include Rs.3.748 million (2016: Rs. 3.225 million) in respect of sta� retirement bene�ts.

 26.1 Cost of sales – manufactured goods

  Opening stock – work in progress
Cost of billets manufactured internally 
Purchases
Closing stock – work in progress

  Manufacturing overheads

  Stores and spares consumed
Salaries, wages and other bene�ts
Fuel, power and water
Depreciation
Ijarah rentals
Repairs and maintenance
Cartage
Insurance
Rent, rates and taxes
Others

 Cost of goods manufactured

 Cost of bars used for own use
 

  Finished goods

  Opening stock
Closing stock

 26.1.1 Cost of billets manufactured internally

  Raw material consumed
Opening stock
Purchases

Closing stock

Manufacturing overheads

  Stores and spares consumed
Salaries, wages and other bene�ts
Depreciation
Fuel and power
Ijarah rentals 
Cartage
Repairs and maintenance
Rent, rates and taxes
Insurance
Conveyance and travelling
Entertainment expenses
Vehicle running expense
Others

231,780,314
8,407,340,576

381,709,754
(1,128,669,547)

7,892,161,097

112,701,698
88,096,875

538,733,962
108,628,706

23,955,943
51,732,782

6,647,976
3,612,040

25,335
3,690,033

937,825,350

8,829,986,447

(10,191,666)
8,819,794,781

810,692,852
(797,160,524)

13,532,328
8,833,327,109

1,125,101,250
4,987,973,175
6,113,074,425
(995,409,479)
5,117,664,946

  

472,826,897
154,907,814
223,205,222

2,363,456,790
9,792,132

31,496,693
4,735,088

724,999
4,902,574

12,134,685
5,266,372
3,714,974
2,511,390

3,289,675,630
8,407,340,576

1,128,669,547
8,248,046,647

-
(793,767,325)
8,582,948,869

100,852,860
129,969,520
558,813,035
114,412,543

21,561,579
32,899,492

7,913,534
2,075,083
3,580,961
5,213,809

977,292,416

9,560,241,285

(148,131,848)
9,412,109,437

797,160,524
(322,210,865)

474,949,659
9,887,059,096

995,409,479
5,677,623,264
6,673,032,743

(1,544,811,592)
5,128,221,151

531,911,942
180,199,852
191,320,339

2,121,609,756
16,164,561
41,910,993

7,502,559
324,085

3,856,016
13,797,692

4,876,314
4,314,596
2,036,791

3,119,825,496
8,248,046,647

----------(Rupees)----------
20162017

-       
1,890,198,053

(1,101,672,556)
788,525,497
(13,616,384)
774,909,113

45,758,979
222,490,271

32,792,051
4,781,636
4,253,880

15,496,178
5,746,304

10,006,614
341,325,913

1,101,672,556
13,684,475

(43,937,561)
1,071,419,470
(142,854,510)

928,564,960

58,467,209
153,480,176

66,775,073
5,462,391
5,287,533

28,954,693
4,518,942

14,320,534
337,266,551

----------(Rupees)----------
20162017

107,056,685 
10,204,677 

5,338,396 
5,613,347 

27,697,136 
7,914,839 

-       
-       

5,073,199 
3,651,780 

10,424,833 
2,221,094 

12,275,714 
1,060,861 
3,597,077 

732,325 
3,503,500 
2,067,500 
2,680,533 
2,342,949 
2,826,791 

216,283,236 

155,990,179
10,115,388

6,534,073
7,112,107

19,600,796
37,239,451
12,750,000

1,376,102
7,278,377
6,494,812

13,311,883
1,379,147

12,709,959
1,857,397
4,260,024
6,724,806
3,788,845
2,175,000
8,698,752
3,183,378
2,250,336

324,830,812

----------(Rupees)----------
20162017

 26.2 Cost of sales – trading

  Opening stock
Purchases
Closing stock

Cost of bars used for own use

27. DISTRIBUTION COSTS

  Salaries, allowances and other bene�ts
Carriage and transport
Advertisement and sales promotion
Depreciation
Utilities
Bundling and special order charges
Rent, rates and taxes
Testing charges and others

28. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

  Salaries, allowances and other bene�ts
Depreciation
Amortisation
Travelling and conveyance
Legal and professional charges
Provision for doubtful debts
Provision for doubtful deposits
Provision for doubtful advances
Vehicles running expenses
Entertainment
Security guard expenses
Insurance
Computer consumables
Rent, rates and taxes
Communication charges
Printing and stationery
Utilities
Auditors’ remuneration
Repairs and maintenance
Ijarah rentals
Others

 27.1 Include Rs. 2.242 million (2016: Rs. 2.134 million) in respect of sta� retirement bene�ts.

 28.1 Include Rs. 5.803 million (2016: Rs. 4.816 million) 
   in respect of sta� retirement bene�ts.

 28.2 Auditors’ remuneration

  Audit fee 
Review of half yearly �nancial statements and other services
Out of pocket expenses

1,350,000
480,000
237,500

2,067,500

1,425,000
550,000
200,000

2,175,000

Note

10
26.1.1

10

26.1.2

6.1.2

10
10

10

10

26.1.1.1
6.1.2

Note

10

27.1

6.1.2

Note

28.1
6.1.2

7

11.1
13
12

28.2
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 32.1 The return of income for the tax year 2016 has been �led by the Company. The said return, as per 
the provisions of Section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 has been deemed to be an 
assessment order passed by the Commissioner of Inland Revenue.

94,109,268
38,880,715

1,264,747
30,760,238

165,014,968

77,819,094
33,249,656

-      
5,482,176

116,550,926

----------(Rupees)----------
20162017

29. OTHER EXPENSES 

  Workers’ Pro�ts Participation Fund
Workers’ Welfare Fund
Loss on disposal of property, 
   plant and equipment
Donations

399,620
13,892,363
14,291,983

 -       
1,106,767
1,106,767

15,398,750

140,221,553
140,282,392

36,476,111
316,980,056

3,014,515
6,281,009
3,851,535
5,407,274

335,534,389

262,396,494
291,694

262,688,188
207,758,155
470,446,343

530,692
5,204,908
5,735,600

40,860
1,581,265
1,622,125
7,357,725

65,589,131
132,552,027

42,160,567
240,301,725

5,834,878
-       

5,446,872
-       

251,583,475

395,288,330
-       

395,288,330
(24,027,900)
371,260,430

----------(Rupees)----------
20162017

30. OTHER INCOME

 Income from �nancial assets

  Pro�t on saving accounts
Pro�t on TDRs

 Income from non-�nancial assets
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Scrap sales

31. FINANCE COSTS

 Markup / interest

  Long-term �nancing
Short-term borrowings
Murabaha
  

 Markup on Worker’s Pro�t Participation Fund
Loss on cash �ow hedge
Bank charges
Exchange loss

32. TAXATION

  Current 
-  for the year
-  for prior years

Deferred

 29.1 Recipients of donations do not include any donee in which any director or their spouse had 
any interest. (2016: Include donation of Rs 22.5 million to Hunar Foundation Karachi - a related Party).

1,749,195,371

559,742,519
54,358,805

614,101,324

(29,603,825)
(7,770,241)

(89,419,584)
291,694

(17,153,025)
470,446,343

1,445,313,134

448,047,072
46,536,205

494,583,277

(35,168,954)
(6,390,364)

(59,878,541)
-       

(21,884,988)
371,260,430

----------(Rupees)----------
20162017

 32.2 Reconciliation between tax expense 
   and accounting prof it

  Accounting pro�t before taxation

  Tax at applicable tax rate of 31%
Super tax

  Tax e�ects of:
expenses admissible for tax purpose
income assessed under �nal tax regime
tax credits
prior year tax
tax rate adjustment

33. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

  Net pro�t for the year

  Weighted average number of ordinary shares
   of Rs. 10/- each

  Basic and diluted earnings per share

34. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

  Short-term investments
Cash and bank balances

1,278,749,028

266,072,737

4.81

300,000,000
81,124,343

381,124,343

1,074,052,704

297,011,427

3.62

-
69,558,113
69,558,113

Number of shares

----------(Rupees)----------

35. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

76,202,759
33,509,586
29,421,403

7,917,914
3,854,776

25,934,544
176,840,982

66           

68,711,759
30,138,636

    27,508,453
      7,168,814

3,854,776
24,493,407

161,875,844

64          

2,865,000
1,289,250

683,250
286,500

           -       
722,340

5,846,340

1           

4,626,000
2,081,700
1,229,700

462,600
          -       

718,797
9,118,797

1           

Total
Chief

Executive ExecutivesDirector

2017

--------------------------(Rupees)--------------------------

  Managerial remuneration
Housing allowance
Utilities & conveyance
Medical 
Bonus
Others

  Number

Note

21.2

29.1

Note

21.2

32.1

Note

15
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 35.1 In addition, the Chief Executive and Director are provided with free use of Company 
maintained cars and club memberships with certain reimbursements pertaining to business 
purposes.

 35.2 The aggregate amount paid to the �ve Non-Executive Directors as a fee for attending the 
meetings is Rs. 1.45 (2016: Rs. 2.75) million.

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

 The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of �nancial risks i.e. market risk, credit risk and liquidity 
risk. The Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of �nancial 
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse e�ects on the Company’s �nancial performance. 
The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are 
summarized below:

 36.1 Market risk

 36.1.1 Interest rate risk

  Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash �ows of the �nancial 
instruments will �uctuate because of changes in the market interest rates. The 
Company interest rate risk arises from long-term �nancing, short-term borrowings, 
Murabaha carrying �oating rates. Change in benchmark interest rate by 1% may have a 
positive or negative impact of approximately Rs.53.901 (2016: Rs. 38.539) million in 
pro�t and loss account before taxation. The analysis is made based on the assumption 
that all other variables remain constant.

 36.1.2 Foreign currency risk

  Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a �nancial asset or a �nancial liability 
will �uctuate due to a change in foreign exchange rates. It arises mainly where 
receivables and payables exist as a result of transactions with foreign undertakings. As 
of the balance sheet date, the Company is not exposed to any such risk.

 36.1.3 Commodity risk

  The Company purchases scrap on an ongoing basis, as its operating activities require a 
continuous supply of raw material for the production. The Company has not hedged 
itself from the variation in commodity prices through any forward contract and 
purchase commitments but the management negotiates the price with the suppliers 
as part of its risk management policy.

36.2  Credit risk

  Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibility that one party to a �nancial instrument 
will fail to discharge its obligation and cause the other party to incur a �nancial loss. 

  Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar 
business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet 
contractual obligations to be similarly a�ected by changes in economic, political or other 
conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company’s 
performance to developments a�ecting a particular industry.

  The Company seeks to minimize the credit risk exposure through having exposures only to 
customers considered credit worthy and obtaining securities where applicable. The maximum 
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is:

 36.2.1 Credit quality of �nancial assets

  The credit quality of �nancial assets that are neither past nor impaired can be assessed 
by reference to external credit ratings or to historical information about counterparty 
default rates as shown below:

 36.3 Liquidity risk

  Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter di�culty in raising funds to meet 
commitments associated with the �nancial instruments. To guard against the risk, the 
Company has diversi�ed funding sources and the assets are managed with liquidity in mind. 
The maturity pro�le is monitored to ensure that adequate liquidity is maintained.

  Table below summarizes the maturity pro�le of the Company’s �nancial liabilities based on 
contractual undiscounted payments:

315,289,370
2,070,501,848

125,635,829
6,551,225

427,987,469
61,356,447

3,007,322,188

15,289,370
1,455,202,310

22,220,787
950,789

176,537,237
62,181,799

1,732,382,292

----------(Rupees)----------
20162017

1,157,591,100

31,826,535
6,597,163

11,209,532
9,884,532
1,838,685

61,356,447

1,000,000
314,289,370

-       
-       

315,289,370

575,721,182

30,478,166
16,146,528

9,308,534
5,880,244

368,327
62,181,799

-       
-       

1,000,000
14,289,370
15,289,370

----------(Rupees)----------
20162017

  Investments
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Trade deposits
Other receivables
Bank balances

  Trade debts

  Customers with no defaults in the past one year
 

  Bank balances
 Ratings
 A1+
 A-1+
 A1
 A-1
 A-2

  Investments
 Ratings
 A-1+
 A1
 AAA
 A+

  Managerial remuneration
Housing allowance
Utilities & conveyance
Medical 
Bonus
Others

  Number

48,712,268
21,835,293
14,936,230

5,614,030
3,037,579

15,565,378
109,700,778

43          

41,221,268
18,464,343
14,187,130

4,864,930
3,037,579

14,401,528
96,176,778

41         

2,865,000
1,289,250

286,500
286,500

           -       
396,750

5,124,000

1          

4,626,000
2,081,700

462,600
462,600

-       
767,100

8,400,000

1          

Total
Chief

Executive ExecutivesDirector

2016

--------------------------(Rupees)--------------------------
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 36.4 Capital risk management 

  The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maintain healthy capital 
ratios, strong credit rating and optimal capital structures in order to ensure ample availability 
of �nance for its existing and potential investment projects, to maximize shareholders value 
and reduce the cost of capital.  

  The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it, in light of changes in 
economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may 
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

 36.5 Fair value of �nancial instruments

  Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between 
knowledgeable willing parties in an arms-length transaction other than in a forced or 
liquidation sale. The carrying values of all �nancial assets and liabilities re�ected in the 
�nancial statements approximate their fair values. 

37. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES      

 Related parties of the Company comprise associates, directors and key management personnel. 
Transactions and balances with related parties are disclosed in respective notes to the �nancial 
statements.

38. PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

 38.1 Billets

  Plant capacity – estimated

  Actual production

 38.2 Bars

  Plant capacity – estimated

  Actual production

 38.3 The reason for lower capacity utilization is due to production of di�erent sizes according to 
sales mix.

39. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

 Total number of employees at year end are 407 (2016: 351) and average number of employees during 
the year were 398 (2016: 347).

40. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

 These �nancial statements were authorized for issue on 26 August 2017 by the Board of Directors of 
the Company.

41. NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

 41.1 Subsequent to the year ended 30 June 2017, the Board of Directors in its meeting held on 
26 August 2017 has proposed �nal cash dividend @ Rs. 2/- per share amounting to Rs. 594.023 
million (2016: Rs. 2/- per share amounting to Rs. 594.023 million) for approval of the members 
at the Annual General Meeting.

 41.2 The Finance Act, 2017 introduced a tax on every public company at the rate of 7.5% on pro�t 
before tax if the Company fails to distribute at least 40% of its pro�t after tax as cash or stock 
dividend within the prescribed time after the end of the relevant tax year.

  Based on the above fact, the Board of Directors of the Company has proposed cash dividend 
amounting to Rs. 594.023 million for the �nancial and tax year 2017 which exceeds the 
prescribed minimum dividend requirement as referred above. Accordingly, the Company 
believes that it would not be liable to pay tax on its undistributed reserves as of June 30, 2017.

42. GENERAL

 Figures have been rounded o� to the nearest Rupee, unless otherwise stated.

200,000

168,852

180,000

148,988

200,000

163,778

180,000

158,206

----------(Metric Ton)----------
20162017

1,008,110,813
1,080,934,801

48,221,865
2,726,371,085
4,863,638,564

(381,124,343)
4,482,514,222

2,970,114,270
5,890,507,263

1,829,580,914
10,690,202,447

15,172,716,669

30%  

34%  

1,022,304,225
1,118,557,642

56,365,500
3,627,591,787
5,824,819,154

(69,558,113)
5,755,261,041

2,970,114,270
6,420,623,118

1,755,014,996
11,145,752,384

16,901,013,425

34%  

38%  

----------(Rupees)----------
20162017

  Long-term �nancing
Trade and other payables
Accrued mark-up
Short-term borrowings

1,022,304,225
935,501,683

56,365,500
3,627,591,787
5,641,763,195

712,069,453
-        
-        
-        

712,069,453

271,564,968
-        

7,433,160
279,178,549
558,176,677

38,669,804
935,501,683

48,932,340
3,348,413,238
4,371,517,065

-        
-        
-        
-        
-        

Total1 to 5
Years

3 to 12 
Months

Less than
3 months

On
Demand2017
---------------------------------------(Rupees)---------------------------------------

  Long-term �nancing
Trade and other payables
Accrued mark-up
Short-term borrowings

1,008,110,813
915,940,326

48,221,865
2,726,371,085
4,698,644,089

524,524,754
              -       
              -       

 -       
524,524,754

361,472,879
-       

7,293,487
616,987,066
985,753,432

122,113,180
908,667,556

40,928,378
2,109,384,019
3,181,093,133

-        
7,272,770 

-        
-        

7,272,770

Total1 to 5
Years

3 to 12 
Months

Less than
3 months

On
Demand2016
---------------------------------------(Rupees)---------------------------------------

  Gearing ratio

  Long-term �nancing
Trade and other payables
Accrued mark-up  
Short-term borrowings  
Total debt

  Cash and cash equivalents  
Net debt

  Share capital  
Reserves  
Surplus on revaluation of property, 
   plant and equipment 
Total equity

  Equity and net debt

  Gearing ratio
Including surplus on revaluation of property, 
   plant and equipment

  Excluding surplus on revaluation of property, 
   plant and equipment

____________________
Chief Executive O�cer

____________________
Director

____________________
Chief Financial O�cer
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Consent Form 
For Electronic Transmission of Annual Audited Financial Statements and 
Notice of Annual General Meeting 

Date: __________________

The Share Registrar
THK Associates (Pvt) Limited
1st Floor, 40-C, Block-6
P.E.C.H.S. Karachi

Dear Sir, 

Pursuant to SRO No.787 (I)/2014 dated September 8, 2014 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 
allowing companies to circulate its Annual Audited Financial Statements (annual balance sheet and pro�t and loss 
account, auditor’s report and directors’ report) along with the notice of Annual General Meetings to its members through 
email instead of registered post/courier. Accordingly, the undersigned, being member of AMRELI STEELS LIMITED, desires 
and hereby gives this consent to receive Annual Audited Financial Statements and Notice of Annual General Meeting for 
the �nancial year ending June 30, 2017 and onward through my e-mail address provided below:

 Name of Member/ Shareholder 

 Folio/ CDC Account Number 

 Valid Email Address 

 Contact Number 

 CNIC Number 

 Registered Postal Address of the Member 

_____________________________

Signature of the Member

Dear Shareholder(s),
We are pleased to inform you that the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan [SECP], through its SRO 787(1)/2014 
dated 08 September 2014, has allowed companies to circulate their annual (audited) �nancial statements and notice of 
general meetings to the members through email, thus saving the cost of printing and postage. 

Therefore, if you wish to receive the �nancial statements and notice of general meetings of the Company via email, please 
�ll in the attached “Request Form” mentioning your valid email address and send us the same as your consent for the 
purpose of receiving the annual reports and notices of annual general meetings electronically in future. The Request Form 
/ Consent Form is attached herewith. 

Please note that the Company shall continue to dispatch annual audited accounts and notice of general meetings by post 
(either through CD/DVD/USB) to the shareholders who do not opt for transmission through email. The members will be 
responsible to communicate any change in their registered email address in timely manner.

Yours truly,

Adnan Abdul Gha�ar
Company Secretary

Transmission of Financial Statements and Notice of 
General Meetings to the Shareholders through Email
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E-Dividend Mandate Form

Mandatory Credit Of Dividend Into Bank Account

Dear Sir/Madam,

The undersigned being member of AMRELI STEELS LIMITED (the Company), hereby authorize the company that all my cash 
dividend amounts declared by the company, from time to time, be credited into the bank account as per following details:

It is stated that the above mentioned information is correct that I will intimate the change in the above mentioned 
information to the Company and the concerned Share Registrar as soon as these occur.

________________________________                                                           

Signature of the member/shareholder                                                               Date: ______________

Note: 

1. Please provide complete IBAN after consultation with your bank branch. In case of any error or omission in given 
IBAN, the Company will not be held responsible in any manner for any loss or delay in your cash dividend payment.

2. In case of physical shares, a duly �lled-in e-Dividend Mandate Form shall be submitted with the Company’s Share 
Registrar. While for shares held in CDC, E-Dividend Mandate Form shall be submitted directly to member’s 
broker/participant/CDC as required by the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDCPL) vide its 
Circular No. 16 of 2017 issued on August 31, 2017.

(i) Shareholder's Detail

Name of the shareholder

Folio No. / CDC Participants ID & Sub Acc. No./CDC IAS Account

CNIC/NICOP No. (Please attach copy)

Passport No. [in case of Foreign Shareholder]  (Please attach copy)

Land Line Phone No.

Cellphone No.

Email Address. 

(ii) Shareholder's Bank Detail

Title of Bank Account

Bank Account Number

Bank's Name

Branch Name and Address

International Bank Account Number (IBAN) (24 digit)

Proxy Form
33rd Annual General Meeting

I,______________________________________________  S/o / D/o: __________________________________________ , 
holder of CNIC No. ___________________________________________________________________________________  
Resident of  _____________________________________________________ , being member of Amreli Steels Limited, 
holding ___________________ ordinary shares as per Registered Folio / CDS Account No. ___________________ hereby 
appoint Mr. /Ms. _________________________________, resident of __________________________________ member 
of the Company Registered Folio / CDS Account No. _________________________________________or failing him/her 
Mr./Ms.____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
resident of _________________________________________________________ who is also a member of the Company 
Registered Folio / CDS Account No. ______________________________________________, as my / our proxy to attend, 
act and vote for me/ us and on my / our behalf at the 33rd Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company to be held on 
Wednesday October 25, 2017 at 03:30 pm PST at Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), Aduitorium Hall, 
Chartered Accountants Avenue, Clifton Karachi and any adjournment thereof. 

As witness my / our hand / seal this _______________________ day of  ____________________________________2017.

Signed by _________________________________________________________________ in the presence of;

Witness:

1.  Name: 

 Signature____________________________________________

 Address: _____________________________________________    

 _____________________________________________________    

 CNIC or Passport No.: ___________________________________

2. Name: 

 Signature____________________________________________

 Address: _____________________________________________

 _____________________________________________________

 CNIC or Passport No.;___________________________________

Note:

1. The proxy form, duly completed and signed, must be received at the Registered O�ce of the Company,  
 A-18, S.I.T.E. Karachi. 

2. All members are entitled to attend and vote at the meeting.

3. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxy are deposited by a  
 member with the company, all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid.

4. Members are requested to notify any changes in their addresses immediately.
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AFFIX
CORRECT
POSTAGE

The Company Secretary
Amreli Steels Limited
A-18, S.I.T.E, Karachi, Pakistan
UAN: 111-267-354
Fax: + 92-21-32587240, 38798328
URL: www.amrelisteels.com
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Investors’ Education   
   

In pursuance of SRO 924(1)/2015 dated September 9th, 2015 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission 
of Pakistan (SECP), the following informational message has been reproduced to educate investors.

AFFIX
CORRECT
POSTAGE

The Company Secretary
Amreli Steels Limited
A-18, S.I.T.E, Karachi, Pakistan
UAN: 111-267-354
Fax: + 92-21-32587240, 38798328
URL: www.amrelisteels.com
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Glossary of Terms

AGM  Annual General Meeting

ASL Amreli Steels Limited

BCP  Business Continuity Planning

BOD  Board of Directors

CEO  Chief Executive O�cer

CFO  Chief Financial O�cer

CPIs  Critical Performance Indicators

CSR  Corporate Social Responsibility

DPS  Dividend Per Share

EBITDA  Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation, 
 and Amortization

EPS  Earnings Per Share

ERP  Enterprise Resource Planning

FBR Federal Board of Revenue

GDP  Gross Domestic Product

GIDC  Gas Infrastructure Development Cess

GOP  Government of Pakistan

GST  General Sales Tax

HRS Humen Resurce Steering Committee

HSE Health Safety & Environment

ICAP  Institute of Chartered Accountants Pakistan

IMF International Monetary Fund

ISO  International Organization for Standardization

IT Information Technology

KIBOR  Karachi Inter Bank O�er Rate

MMBTU  Million British Thermal Units

OHS  Occupational Health & Safety

OHSAS  Occupational Health & Safety Advisory Services

PICG  Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance

PSMA Pakistan Steel Melters Association

PSQCA  Pakistan Standards & Quality Control Authority

PSX  Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited

R&D  Research & Development

ROE  Return On Equity

SAP  Systems, Applications and Products

SECP  Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

SMS Steel Melt Shop

SWOT  Strength, Weakness, Opportunity, Threat

WPPF Workers’ Pro�t Participation Fund

WWF  Workers’ Welfare Fund 
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